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NOTICE OF 40THANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 
Notice is hereby given that the 40th Annual General Meeting of the members of Kalyani Commercials Limited 
will be held on Thursday, the 25th Day of September, 2025 at 12:00 Noon at the registered office of the Company 
situated at BG-223, Sanjay Gandhi Transport Nagar, GT Karnal Road, New Delhi-110042 to transact the 
following business:  
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 
 
ITEM NO.1 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial 
Year ended 31st March, 2025 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, along with the 
cash flow statements. 
 
ITEM NO.2 To Appoint a Director in place of Ms. Manushree Agarwal (DIN No. 06620217), who retires by 
rotation in terms of section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and, being eligible, offers herself for Re-
appointment. 
 
  
 SPECIAL BUSINESS: 
 
ITEM NO. 3 To Approve the Appointment of M/s. GA & Associates, Company Secretaries LLP as Secretarial 
Auditor of the Company for a period of five years 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:  
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 179 and 204 of the Companies Act, 2013(‘the Act’), 
read with rules made thereunder, and Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time, and based on the recommendation of the 
Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded for the 
appointment of M/s GA & Associates, Company Secretaries LLP (PRN No. 5860/2024), as Secretarial Auditors 
of the Company for a term of five consecutive years, commencing from Financial Year 2025- 26 till Financial 
Year 2029-30 at such remuneration and on such terms and conditions as may be determined by the Board of 
Directors (including its committees thereof), and to avail any other services, certificates, or reports as may be 
permissible under applicable laws.  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT The Board of Directors of the Company, (including its committees thereof), be and 
is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed proper, necessary, or 
expedient, including filing the requisite forms or submission of documents with any authority or accepting any 
modifications to the clauses as required by such authorities, for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution 
and for matters connected therewith, or incidental thereto.” 
 
  
ITEM NO. 4 To Re-appointment of Gagan Anand (DIN: 08604211) as an Independent Director for a second term 
of 5 (five) consecutive years under Section 149(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149,150,152 and any other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) and the Rules made thereunder, read with Schedule IV to the 
Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) 
thereof for the time being in force) and Regulation 17 and other applicable provisions of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the ‘SEBI Listing 
Regulations’) (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), 
based upon the recommendation of the Nomination and remuneration Committee, performance evaluation 
report and approval of the Board of Directors, the consent of the Members be and is hereby accorded to ratify 



 
 
 

 
the appointment of Mr. Gagan Anand (DIN: 08604211),who was appointed as an Independent Director of the 
Company for a term of five years and who being eligible for re-appointed as an Independent Director, and who 
has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria of independence under Section 149(6) of the Act and 
Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice 
in writing under Section 160(1) of the Act proposing his candidature for the office of a director, for a second 
term of five consecutive years, i.e. upto the annual general meeting to be held in financial year 2030 and who 
shall not be liable to retire by rotation.  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 197 and other applicable provisions 
of the Act read with the Rules made thereunder and Regulation 17(6) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, Mr. Gagan 
Anand, be paid such fees and remuneration and profit-related commission as the Board may approve from time 
to time and subject to such limits prescribed from time to time.  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and the Company Secretary of the Company be and are 
hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and execute all such documents, 
instruments and writings as may be required to give effect to this resolution.” 
 
Item No. 5 To Approve the increase in limit to borrow money above the limit prescribed u/s 180(1)(c) 
 
To consider and if, thought fit to pass with or without modifications, the following resolutions as a Special 
Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT the consent of the Members be and it is hereby given in terms of the Section 180(1) (c) of 
the Companies Act 2013 and other applicable provisions, if any of the Companies Act 2013 to the Board of 
Directors for borrowing any sum or sums of money from time to time from any one or more of the Banks, 
Financial Institutions, Central Government, State Government, any Authority, Corporation, Company/Body 
Corporate, Fund, etc. whether by way of advance, deposits, loans, bill discounting or any other Credit facility 
secured by Mortgage, charge, Hypothecation, lien of the Company’s assets and properties whether immovable 
or movable, work in progress of all or any of the undertakings of the Company or unsecured loans, 
notwithstanding that the moneys to be borrowed together with money already borrowed by the Company 
(apart from the temporary loans obtained from the Company’s Bankers in the ordinary course of business) will 
or may exceed the aggregate of the paid up capital of the Company and it’s free reserves, that is to say, reserves 
not set apart for any specific purpose but, so however, that the total amount to which the company may be 
borrowed by the Board of Directors and outstanding at any time shall not exceed the sum of Rs. 2,00,00,00,000 
(Rupees Two Hundred Crores Only) exclusive of interest. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above Resolution, the Board of Directors of 
the Company be and are hereby severally authorized to take all such actions and to give all such directions and 
to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary and/ or expedient in that behalf.” 
 
 
Item No. 6 To Approve the Increase in limit of Providing loan, Guarantees and making investment under section 
186 of the companies act, 2013: 
 
To consider and if, thought fit to pass with or without modifications, the following resolutions as a Special 
Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies 
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions and the Rules framed 
thereunder, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof 
for the time being in force), on the recommendation of the Board of Directors, the consent of members be and 
is hereby accorded to (a) give any loan to any person or other body corporate; (b) give any guarantee or provide 
security in connection with a loan to any other body corporate or person; and (c) acquire by way of subscription, 
purchase or otherwise, the securities of any other body corporate as it may consider necessary by the Board of 
Directors of the Company and in the interest of the Company, subject to the aggregate amount of the loans and 
investments so far made for which guarantees or securities provided to any Bank and/or other Financial 
Institution and/or any lender and/or any body corporate/ entity/entities and/or authority/authorities and/or 



 
 
 

 
any other person whether from India or outside India, in respect of or against any loans or to secure any 
financial arrangement of any nature by, any other person(s), any Body(ies) Corporate, whether in India or 
outside, which may or may not be subsidiary (ies) of the Company, whether existing or proposed to be 
incorporated, along with the additional investments, loans, guarantees or securities proposed to be made or 
given or provided by the Company, from time to time, in future, shall not exceed at any point of time upto Rs. 
200,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two Hundred Crores) over and above the limit of 60% of the paid- up share capital, 
free reserves and securities premium account of the Company or 100% of free reserves and securities premium 
account. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in terms of the provisions of Section 186 of the Act, where a loan or guarantee is 
given or where a security has been provided by the Company to its wholly owned subsidiary company or a joint 
venture company, or acquisition is made by the Company, by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise of, the 
securities of its wholly owned subsidiary company, the aforementioned limits shall not apply. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board be and is hereby 
authorized to do all such acts, deeds, things and matters as it may in its absolute discretion deem necessary, 
proper, or desirable and further to do all such acts, deeds and things and to execute all documents and writings 
as may be necessary, proper, desirable or expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 
 
 
Sd/- 
Sourabh Agarwal 
(Whole Time Director and CFO) 
DIN: 02168346 
Office Address: BG-223, Sanjay Gandhi       
Transport Nagar, GT Kamal Road,  
New Delhi-110042 
 

Date: 03.09.2025 
Place: New Delhi



 
 
 

 
NOTES: 

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (THE MEETING) IS 
ENTITLED TO APPOINT PROXY/PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL ON HIS/ HER BEHALF. THE 
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. PROXY IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE MUST BE 
DEPOSITED WITH THE COMPANY AT ITS REGISTERED OFFICE NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE 
SCHEDULED TIME OF THE MEETING. 

In case a proxy is proposed to be appointed by a member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of 
the company carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder. 
A person can act as proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in aggregate not more than 
10% of the total share capital of the Company. 

PROXIES SUBMITTED ON BEHALF OF THE COMPANIES, SOCIETIES, ETC., MUST BE SUPPORTED BY AN 
APPROPRIATE RESOLUTION / AUTHORITY, AS APPLICABLE. An incomplete proxy form or proxy form 
received beyond time limit is liable to be rejected. A proxy form is enclosed. 

2. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) vide General Circular Nos. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, 17/2020 
dated April 13, 2020, 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, and subsequent circulars issued in this regard, the latest 
being 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024 (collectively referred to as 'MCA Circulars') and Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January 5, 2023 issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (“SEBI Circular”), the notice of this 40th AGM is circulated through electronic mode to all the members 
whose names appear in the Register of the Members/Record of Depositories as on 29th August,2025 and who 
have registered their e-mail address with Depositories/RTA/Company. 
 

3. Members/Proxies should bring the Attendance Slip duly filled in for attending the meeting along with their copy 
of Annual Report. No extra attendance slip and/or Annual Report will be provided at the venue of the Annual 
General Meeting. Also, Route map to the venue of meeting is enclosed. 
 

4. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representative(s) are requested to send a duly certified 
copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting. 
 

5. Proxies shall be made available for inspection during the period beginning twenty-four hours before the time 
fixed for the commencement of the Meeting and ending with the conclusion of the meeting. 
 

6. Pursuant to section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013, the register of members and the share transfer books of the 
Company will remain closed from 19th September, 2025 to 25th September, 2025 (both days inclusive) for the 
purpose of Annual General Meeting. 

 
7. To support the ‘Green Initiative’, Members who have not yet registered their email addresses are requested to 

register the same with their DPs in case the shares are held by them in electronic form and with the Company’s 
RTA in case the shares are held by them in physical form. 
 

8. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number 
(PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, 
requested to submit their PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their DEMAT 
accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN to the Company’ RTA i.e., M/s. Skyline 
Financial Services Private Limited. 
 

9. The Company is providing facility of REMOTE E-VOTING and the business may be transacted through such 
voting. Details instructions are provided in the notice itself. The facility for voting through Ballot paper shall 



 
 
 

 
also be made available at the meeting and members attending the meeting who have not casted their vote by 
remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting. 
 

10. The members who have casted their vote by remote e-voting prior to the meeting may also attend the meeting 
but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. 
 

11. The ISIN of the Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each is INE610E01010. 
 

12. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for making nomination is available for the Members 
in respect of the shares held by them. Members who have not yet registered their nomination are requested to 
register the same by submitting Form No. SH-13. The said form can be downloaded from the Company’s website 
under Investor resources. Members are requested to submit the said details to their Depository Participants in 
case the shares are held by them in electronic form and to the Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent (‘RTA’) 
in case the shares are held by them in physical form, quoting their folio number. 
 

13. As per Regulation 40 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, transfer of securities would be carried out 
in dematerialized form only with effect from April 1, 2019, except in case of transmission or transposition of 
securities. However, Members can continue to hold shares in physical form. In view of the same and to eliminate 
all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management, Members holding shares in 
physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings to dematerialized form. Members can contact 
the Company’s RTA for assistance in this regard. 

 
14. Electronic copy of the Notice of Annual General Meeting and Annual Report 2024-25 is being sent to all the 

members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/Depositories for communication purposes unless 
any member has requested for a hard copy of the same. 

 
15. All the material documents, Resolutions, Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company etc. are 

open for inspection to the members during the office hour of all working day till the conclusion of the Annual 
General Meeting at the registered office of the Company. 

 
16. Members holding shares in the physical form are requested to notify changes in address, email id, bank 

mandate and bank particulars, if any, under their signatures to M/s. Skyline Financial Services Private Limited, 
D-153/A, 1st floor, Phase I, Okhla Industrial Area, New Delhi- 110020, the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents 
(RTA) of the Company, quoting their Folio numbers. Members holding shares in electronic form may update 
such information with their respective Depository Participants. 
  

17. Members are requested to notify the change in address, if any, to the Company quoting their Folio Numbers, 
Name and number of shares held by them etc. 

 
18. Members are requested to register their e-mail addresses with the Company or depository for receiving 

communications including Annual Reports, Notices and Circulars etc. by the Company electronically. 
 

19. For security reasons, no article/baggage will be allowed at the venue of the meeting. 
 

20. Members who hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to write their Client ID and DP ID Numbers 
and those who hold shares in physical form are requested to write their Folio Number in the Attendance Slip 
for attending the Meeting. 
 

21. In respect of the business under Item Nos. 2 & 4 set out above and the relevant details of the Directors seeking 
appointment/re- appointment at this AGM as required under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations 



 
 
 

 
and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India 
(‘Secretarial Standard’) are annexed hereto. Requisite declarations have been received from the Directors 
seeking appointment/reappointment.  
 

22. All documents referred to in accompanying Notice shall be open for inspection by members and shall be 
available at the registered office of the Company on all working days during business hours from the date of this 
Notice up to the date of AGM. 

 
23. The persons who have acquired shares and become members of the Company after the dispatch of notice and 

holding shares as on the cut-off date i.e., 18th September, 2025 then the member may obtain Login ID and other 
e-Voting related details from the Company. 

 
24. Only bona fide members of the Company whose names appear on the Register of Members/Proxy holders, in 

possession of valid attendance slips duly filled and signed will be permitted to attend the meeting. The Company 
reserves its right to take all steps as may be deemed necessary to restrict non-members from attending the 
meeting. 

 
25. DECLARATION OF RESULTS ON THE RESOLUTIONS: 

 
The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the completion of the scrutiny of the e-voting (votes cast during the 
AGM and votes cast through remote e-voting), within 2 working days from the conclusion of the AGM, submit a 
consolidated Scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favor and against the resolution(s), invalid votes, if 
any, and whether the resolution(s) has/have been carried or not, to the Chairman or a person authorized by 
him in writing. 
 
The result declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website 
https://kalyanicommercials.com/ and on the website of NSDL www.evoting.nsdl.com immediately after the 
result is declared. The Company shall simultaneously forward the proceedings to National Stock Exchange of 
India Ltd., where the securities of the Company are listed. 
 
Subject to the receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on the date of 
the Meeting i.e. 25th September, 2025. 
 

 
26. VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS 

 
i. In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements) 2015 , the Company is pleased to provide members facility to exercise their right to vote on 
resolutions proposed to be considered at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the 
business may be transacted through e-Voting Services. The facility of casting the votes by the members using 
an electronic voting system from a place other than venue of the AGM (“remote e-voting”) will be provided by 
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL). 
 

ii. The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM and the members attending the 
meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting 
through ballot paper. 

 
iii. The members who have casted their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM but 

shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. 



 
 
 

 
 

iv. The remote e-voting period commences on 22nd September 2025 (09:00 A.M.) and ends on 24th September, 
2025 (05:00 P.M.). During this period members of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in 
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date i.e., 18th September, 2025, may cast their vote by remote e-voting. 
The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is 
cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently. 

 
v. The process and manner for remote e-voting are as under: 

 

 How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account 
maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile 
number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Type of 
shareholders 

 Login Method 

Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in demat 
mode with NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL 
Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click 
on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is 
available under ‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt you to 
enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful 
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services 
under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” 
under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting 
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider 
i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of 
NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option 
to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select 
“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

2. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by 
typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the 
home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon 
“Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ 
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your 
User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold 
with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as 
shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you 



 
 
 

 
will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can 
see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-
Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period.  

3. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile 
App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code 
mentioned below for seamless voting experience. 

 

Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in demat 
mode with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can 
login through their existing user id and password. Option 
will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any 
further authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are 
requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and 
click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then user 
your existing my easi username & password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to 
see the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the 
evoting is in progress as per the information provided by 
company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be 
able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider 
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 
Additionally, there is also links provided to access the 
system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can 
visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 
 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to 
register is available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com 
and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click 
on registration option. 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-
Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The 
system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on 
registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat 
Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to 
see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and 
also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service 
Providers. 



 
 
 

 
Individual 
Shareholders (holding 
securities in demat 
mode) login through 
their depository 
participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL 
for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting 
option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to 
NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, 
wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-
Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period. 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 
Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login 
through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  
evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 
1800-21-09911 

  



 
 
 

 
 

B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 
 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 
 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a 
Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL 
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 
i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 
 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 
Client ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and 
Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 
IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 
Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 
registered with the company 

For example if folio number is 001*** and 
EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 
101456001*** 

 

 
5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password 
to login and cast your vote. 

 
b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve 

the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your 
‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force 
you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, 

your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the 
email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open 
the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the 
.pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for 



 
 
 

 
CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file 
contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in 
process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.  

 
6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten 

your password: 
a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat 

account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option 

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a 

request at evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio number, 
your PAN, your name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes 
on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

 
7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on 

the check box. 
8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system? 
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding 

shares and whose voting cycle is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares 
for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation 
page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 



 
 
 

 
General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy 
(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen 
signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to 
srcorporateconsultant@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com. Institutional shareholders 
(i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / 
Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-
Voting" tab in their login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to 
keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful 
attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User 
Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to 
reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-
voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call 
on : 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request  at evoting@nsdl.com  

 
Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring 
user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice: 
 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of 
the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to kalyanicommercialslimited@gmail.com. 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit 
beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested 
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to 
kalyanicommercialslimited@gmail.com. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method 
for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring user id and 
password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat 
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update 
their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 
27. Ms. Parul Khetrapal on behalf of M/s. GA & Associates Company Secretaries LLP has been appointed as the 

Scrutinizer for providing facility to the members of the Company to scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting 
process in a fair and transparent manner. 
 

28. The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be held, allow 
voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of Ballot Paper for all those members who are present at the 
AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting facility. 

 
29. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, will first count the votes cast at the 

meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses 
not in the employment of the Company and shall make, not later than three days of the conclusion of the AGM, 
a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person 
authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith. 

 



 
 
 

 
30. The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company 

and on the website of NSDL immediately after the declaration of result by the Chairman or a person authorized 
by her in writing. The results shall also be immediately forwarded to the stock exchange. 

 

For and on behalf of the Board 
For KALYANI COMMERCIALS LIMITED 
 
         
Sd/- 
Sourabh Agarwal 
(Whole Time Director and CFO) 
DIN: 02168346 
Office Address: BG-223, Sanjay Gandhi Transport  
Nagar, GT Kamal Road, New Delhi-110042 
 

Date: 03rd September,2025 
Place New Delhi  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 (1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH 
SECRETARIAL STANDARD 2 WITH RESPECTTO THE SPECIAL BUSINESSES MENTIONED IN THE NOTICE. 
 
ITEM NO. 3: To Approve the Appointment of M/s. GA & Associates, Company Secretaries LLP as Secretarial 
Auditor of the Company for a period of five years 
 
The Board at its meeting held on September 3, 2025, based on recommendation of the Audit Committee, after 
evaluating and considering various factors such as industry experience, competency of the audit team, efficiency 
in conduct of audit, independence, etc., has approved the appointment of M/s. GA & Associates, Company 
Secretaries LLP a Peer Reviewed Firm  (PR No. 5860/2024) as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a term of 
five consecutive years commencing from FY 2025-26 till FY 2029-30, subject to approval of the Members.  

The appointment of Secretarial Auditors shall be in terms of the amended Regulation 24A of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations vide SEBI Notification dated December 12, 2024 and provisions of Section 204 of the Act and Rule 9 
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.  

M/s. GA & Associates, Company Secretaries LLP is a well-known firm of Practicing Company Secretaries founded 
and based in Delhi. Renowned for its commitment to quality and precision, the firm has been Peer Reviewed and 
Quality Reviewed by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI), ensuring the highest standards in 
professional practices. 

M/s. GA & Associates, Company Secretaries LLP has confirmed that the firm is not disqualified and is eligible to 
be appointed as Secretarial Auditors in terms of Regulation 24A of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The services to 
be rendered by M/s. GA & Associates, Company Secretaries LLP as Secretarial Auditors is within the purview of 
the said regulation read with SEBI circular no. SEBI/ HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/CIR/P/2024/185 dated December 31, 
2024. 

No director, KMP or their relatives, is interested in or concerned, financially or otherwise, in passing the proposed 
resolution as set out in Item no.3  

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set out in Item No. 3 of this Notice for approval of the Members 
 
ITEM NO. 4 ITEM NO. 4 To Re-appointment of Gagan Anand (DIN: 08604211) as an Independent Director for a 
second term of 5 (five) consecutive years under Section 149(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Mr. Gagan Anand (DIN: 086042110) was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company pursuant to 
Section 149 of the Act, read with the Appointment Rules by the Board, effective from 06/11/2019. He is retired 
from the first term as an Independent Director.   As per Section 149 of the Act, an Independent Director may hold 
office for two terms of up to 5 (five) consecutive years each. Gagan Anand fulfils the requirements of an 
Independent Director as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Act, and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the LODR 
Regulations. 
 
The NRC, after taking into account the performance evaluation of Gagan Anand during his first term of 5 (Five) 
years and considering her knowledge, acumen, expertise, experience and substantial contribution and time 
commitment, has recommended to the Board his reappointment for a second term of 5 (Five) years. The NRC has 
considered her diverse skills, leadership capabilities, expertise in go-to market, ESG, general management, 
sustainability and vast business experience, among others, as being key requirements for this role. In view of the 
above, the NRC and the Board are of the view that Gagan Anand possesses the requisite skills and capabilities, 
which would be of immense benefit to the Company, and hence, it is desirable to reappoint his as an Independent 
Director.  
The Company has received all statutory disclosures / declarations, including   
(i)       Consent in writing to act as director in Form DIR-2, pursuant to Rule 8 of the Appointment Rules,  
(ii)      Intimation in Form DIR-8 in term   s of the Appointment Rules to the effect that she is not disqualified under 
sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the Act,  
(iii)   Declaration to the effect that she meets the criteria of independence as provided in sub-section (6) of Section 
149 of the Act,  



 
 
 

 
(iv)  Declaration pursuant to BSE Circular No. LIST/COMP/14/2018-19 dated June 20, 2018, that she has not been 
debarred from holding office of a director by virtue of any Order passed by the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India or any other such authority,  
(v) Confirmation that she is not aware of any circumstance or situation which exists or may be reasonably 
anticipated that could impair or impact her ability to discharge duties as an Independent Director of the Company, 
and In the opinion of the Board and based on its evaluation, Jyotsna fulfils the conditions specified in the Act, and 
Rules made thereunder and LODR Regulations for her reappointment as an Independent Director of the Company 
and she is independent of the Management of the Company. 
 

Brief Profile of Mr. Gagan Anand: 
 
Mr. Gagan Anand (DIN: 08604211) is an Independent Director of the Company since 6th November, 2019. He 
is an acumen businessman having vide experience in business development. His continuing guidance is very 
valuable to the company. A vision to lead the business in an ethical way helps the company to lead in the better 
corporate governance. 
 
Disclosure of relationship between director inter-se: 
 
Mr. Gagan Anand has no relationship with any of the Directors on Board. 
 
Disclosure pursuant to The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

 

 
 
 
Item No. 5 To Approve the increase in limit to borrow money above the limit prescribed u/s 180(1)(c) 
 
As per the provisions of Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of a company cannot, 
except with the consent of the Members of the company in a general meeting, borrow monies, apart from 
temporary loans obtained from the company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business, in excess of the 
aggregate of the paid-up capital of the Company, its free reserves, that is reserves not set apart for any specific 
purpose and Securities Premium. To meet the additional working capital requirements, it is necessary to have 

Name Mr. Gagan Anand  
Age 45 years 
Name of the Listed Companies in which Directorship 
held 

NIL 

Name of the Listed Companies in which Committee 
Membership held 

NIL 

Shareholding in the Company Nil 

Terms and Condition of re-appointment As per the Nomination and Remuneration 
policy 

Relationship with any Director(s)/ KMP of the 
Company 

 Nil 

Remuneration last drawn 

Remuneration drawn was within the overall 
limits in accordance with applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and as 
approved by the Members.  

Remuneration proposed to be paid  
As per the Nomination and Remuneration 
policy of the Company 

Number of Board Meeting attended during the year 08 (Eight) 

Expertise in specific functional area 
He is an acumen businessman having vide 
experience in business development. 

The skills and capabilities required for the role and 
the manner in which the proposed person meets 
such requirements 

financial acumen, strategic vision, industry 
expertise, objectivity, and ethical leadership 



 
 
 

 
borrowing limit for the Company. The approval of the Members is, therefore, being sought by way of a special 
resolution, pursuant to Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, borrow money above the limit prescribed 
u/s 180(1)(c) upto Rs. 200,00,00,000 (Two Hundred Crore Only)  
 
The said borrowing Limit may be unsecured or secured by way of charge / mortgage / hypothecation on the 
Company’s assets in favour of lender. It is necessary for the Company to pass a special resolution under Section 
180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, consenting to the creation of any Charge/ mortgage/hypothecation for 
outstanding amount not exceeding Rs. 200,00,00,000 (Two Hundred crore Only).  
 
The Directors recommend the Special Resolutions at Item Nos. 5 of the accompanying Notice for approval of the 
Members of the Company.  
 
None of the Directors or any of the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are directly or 
indirectly concerned or interested in the resolution set out at item No. 6 except to the extent of their shareholding 
in the Company, if any. 
 
Item No. 6 To Approve the Increase in limit of Providing loan, Guarantees and making investment under section 
186 of the companies act, 2013: 
 
In terms of the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, prior approval of the members of the 
Company by means of a special resolution passed by Postal Ballot is necessary to give any loan, make investment 
or give guarantee or provide any security in connection with a loan to any other body corporate including any 
overseas subsidiary or person and/or for acquiring by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, the securities 
of any other body corporate including any subsidiary or joint venture entity, beyond the prescribed ceiling of i) 
sixty per cent of the aggregate of the paid-up capital, free reserves and securities premium account or, ii) one 
hundred per cent of its free reserves and securities premium account, whichever is more. 
 
With a view to facilitate the business, future expansions (organic/inorganic)/ acquisitions or investments, the 
company may require the limit under section 186 of the Companies act, 2013 which is above the restriction placed 
in the act. The company proposed to get an approval of shareholders upto Rs 2,00,00,00,000/- (Two Hundred 
Crore only) for the loan/ investment/ providing guarantee /securities etc.  
 
 
The Directors recommend the Special Resolutions at Item Nos. 6 of the accompanying Notice for approval of the 
Members of the Company.  
 
None of the Directors or any of the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are directly or 
indirectly concerned or interested in the resolution set out at item No. 6 except to the extent of their shareholding 
in the Company, if any. 
 
 

Brief Profile of Ms. Manushree Agarwal: 
 
Mr. Manushree Agarwal (DIN: 066202217) is an Executive Director of the Company since 18th June, 2013. She 
is an acumen businessman having vide experience in business development. Her continuing guidance is very 
valuable to the company. A vision to lead the business in an ethical way helps the company to lead in the better 
corporate governance. 
 
Disclosure of relationship between director inter-se: 
 
Ms. Manushree Agarwal is one of the promoters of the company and has relationship with the Directors on 
Board. 
 
Disclosure pursuant to The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Name Ms.  Manushree Agarwal 
Age 31 years 
Name of the Listed Companies in which Directorship 
held 

NIL 

Name of the Listed Companies in which Committee 
Membership held 

NIL 

Shareholding in the Company NIL 

Terms and Condition of re-appointment 
As per the Nomination and Remuneration 
policy 

Relationship with any Director(s)/ KMP of the 
Company  Nil 

Remuneration last drawn 

Remuneration drawn was within the overall 
limits in accordance with applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and as 
approved by the Members.  

Remuneration proposed to be paid  As per the Nomination and Remuneration 
policy of the Company 

Number of Board Meeting attended during the year 08 (Eight) 



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Form No. MGT-11 
 

Proxy Form 
 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 
 
CIN: L45300DL1985PLC021453 
Name of the Company: Kalyani Commercials Limited 
Venue of the Meeting: BG-223, Sanjay Gandhi Transport Nagar, GT Karnal Road, New Delhi-110042 
Date and Time: Thursday, 25th September,2025 at 12:00 PM 
 
 
I/We, being the member(s) of ……………………………………… shares of the above-named company, hereby appoint 
 
 
1. Name: ___________________________ Address: __________________________________________________________ 
E-mail ID: ____________________________________Signature: ________________________________, or failing him/her 
 
 
2. Name: ___________________________ Address: __________________________________________________________ 
E-mail ID: ____________________________________Signature: ________________________________, or failing him/her 
 
 
3. Name: ___________________________ Address: __________________________________________________________ 
E-mail ID: ____________________________________Signature: ________________________________, or failing him/her 
 
 
as my/our Proxy to attend vote (for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company 
to be held on Thursday the 25th day of September, 2025 at 12:00 P.M. at BG-223, Sanjay Gandhi Transport 
Nagar, GT Karnal Road, New Delhi-110 042 and at any adjournment thereof) in respect of such resolutions as 
are indicated below:   
 
 

S. No. Resolution Number of shares 
held 

For Against 

Ordinary Business: 
           1 To receive, consider and adopt the 

Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company (including audited financial 
statements) for the Financial Year ended 
31st March, 2025 and the Reports of the 
Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, 
along with the cash flow statements. 

   

2 To Appoint a Director in place of Ms. 
Manushree Agarwal (DIN No. 
06620217), who retires by rotation in 
terms of section 152(6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and, being eligible, 
offers herself for Re-appointment 

   



 
 
 

 
Special Business: 

3 To Approve the Appointment of M/s. GA 
& Associates, Company Secretaries LLP 
as Secretarial Auditor of the Company 
for a period of five years.  

   

4 To Re-appointment of Gagan Anand 
(DIN: 08604211) as an Independent 
Director for a second term of 5 (five) 
consecutive years under Section 149(10) 
of the Companies Act, 2013. 

   

5 To Approve the increase in limit to 
borrow money above the limit 
prescribed u/s 180(1)(c) 

   

6 To Approve the Increase in limit of 
Providing loan, Guarantees and making 
investment under section 186 of the 
companies act, 2013: 

   

          
     ** This is optional. Please put a tick mark (√) in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the 
box. If a member leaves the “For” or “Against” column blank against any or all the Resolutions, the proxy will be 
entitled to vote in the manner he/she thinks appropriate. If a member wishes to abstain from voting on a 
particular resolution, he/she should write “Abstain” across the boxes against the Resolution. 
 
Signed this …… Day of ……………………… 2025 
 
Signature of shareholder...………………………………. 
 
Signature of Proxy holder(s) …………………………………. 
 
Note: 
 
This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the 
Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Affix One 
Rupee 
Revenue 
Stamp 



 
 
 

 
 

 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 

Name:  

Address:  

DP ID*  

Client ID*  

Folio No.  

No. of Shares Held  

  *Applicable for investors holding shares in Electronic form. 

1. I hereby record my presence at 40th Annual General Meeting of the Company being held on Thursday, 25th 
September, 2025 at 12:00 P.M. at the Registered Office of the Company situated at BG-223, Sanjay Gandhi 
Transport Nagar, GT Karnal Road, New Delhi-110042. 
 

2. Signature of the Shareholder/Proxy Present 
 

3. Shareholder / Proxy holder wishing to attend the meeting must bring the Attendance Slip to the meeting 
and handover the same at the entrance duly signed. 

 
4. Shareholder / Proxy holder desiring to attend the meeting may bring his / her copy of the Notice for 

reference at the meeting. 
 
NOTE: PLEASE CUT HERE AND BRING THE ABOVE ATTENDANCE SLIP TO THE MEETING. 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS 

EVEN (E Voting Event Number)  User ID Password / PIN 

   

   

 

Note: Please read the instructions printed under the Note to the Notice dated 3rd September, 2025 of the 40th 
Annual General Meeting of the Company. The E-Voting period starts from 9:00 A.M on Monday, 22nd September; 
2025 and ends at 05:00 P.M, Wednesday, 24th September, 2025. The e-Voting module shall be disabled by NSDL 
for voting thereafter.  

  



 
 
 

 
ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS 

 
EVEN (Electronic Voting 
Event Number) 

PASSWORD USER ID NO. OF SHARES 

    
 
The e-voting facility will be available during the following voting period: 

Commencement of e-voting 22nd September; 2025 at 09:00 A.M. 
End of e-voting 24th September, 2025 at 05:00 P.M. 

 

Notes: 

 The cut-off date for the purpose of e-voting is 18th September 2025 

 Please read the instructions printed under the Notes to the Notice dated 3rd September, 2025 of 
the 40th Annual General Meeting of the Company. The e-Voting modules shall be disabled by NSDL 
for voting thereafter.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
Route Map 

 

 
 
 
 
If undelivered please return to: 
 
KALYANI COMMERCIAL LIMITED 
Regd. Office: BG-223, Sanjay Gandhi Transport Nagar, 
GT Karnal Road, Delhi-110042 
E-mail: kalyanicommercialslimited@gmail.com 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
Form No. MGT-12 

 

[Pursuant to section 109(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 21(1) (c) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 

POLLING PAPER 
FOR FORTIETH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING SCHEDULED ON THURSDAY, THE 25TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 
2025 AT REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY SITUATED AT BG-223, SANJAY GANDHI TRANSPORT 
NAGAR, GT KARNAL ROAD, NEW DELHI-110042 AT 12:00 P.M. 
 

S. No.  Particulars  Details 
1.  Name of the first named shareholder (in block letters)   
2.  Postal Address  
3.  Registered Folio No. /*Client ID No. (*Applicable to 

investors holding shares in dematerialized form) 
 

4.  Class of Share Equity  
 I hereby exercise my vote in respect of Ordinary resolution enumerated below by recording my assent 
or dissent to the said resolutions in the following manner: 
 

S. No. Resolution Number of share held For Against 
Ordinary Business 

1.  To receive, consider and adopt the 
Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company (including audited financial 
statements) for the Financial Year ended 
31st March, 2025 and the Reports of the 
Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, 
along with the cash flow statements. 

   

2.  To Appoint a Director in place of Ms. 
Manushree Agarwal (DIN No. 
06620217), who retires by rotation in 
terms of section 152(6) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and, being eligible, offers 
herself for Re-appointment. 

   

Special Business 
3.  To Approve the Appointment of M/s. GA 

& Associates, Company Secretaries LLP 
as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for 
a period of five years 

   

4.  To Re-appointment of Gagan Anand 
(DIN: 08604211) as an Independent 
Director for a second term of 5 (five) 
consecutive years under Section 149(10) 
of the Companies Act, 2013. 

   

5.  To Approve the increase in limit to 
borrow money above the limit 
prescribed u/s 180(1)(c) 

   

6.  To Approve the Increase in limit of 
Providing loan, Guarantees and making 
investment under section 186 of the 
companies act, 2013: 

   

  
Place:  New Delhi                  (Signature of the Shareholder)              (Name & Signature of the Proxy) 
Date:     
Note: Proxy who are attending and voting in this fortieth Annual General Meeting on behalf of members 
are requested to first write their name before signing it. 



DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 

To, 
The Members, 
Kalyani Commercials Limited 

 
The Board of Directors of your Company is pleased to present the 40th Director’s Report on business and 
operations of the Company, along with Standalone Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended 
on 31st March, 2025. 

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS 
 
During the year under review, the Company registered a profit of Rs 336.02 lakh before tax for the year ended March 
31, 2025, on a standalone basis. A summary of the financial performance of the Company on a standalone and 
consolidated basis for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, is given below: 

(In Lakhs) 
Particulars For the year ended 

31.03.2025 
For the year ended 
31.03.2024 

Revenue from Operations 38730.46 27795.47 
Other Income 152.96 127.68 
Total Revenue 38,883.42 27,923.15 
Total Expenses 38,547.40 27,596.05 
Profit Before Tax & 
Extraordinary Item 

336.02 327.09 

Extraordinary Item - - 
Tax Expenses   

Current Tax 90.10 85.50 
- Deferred Tax Liability 
(Net) 

1.37 0.40 

- Income Tax Earlier Year 11.29 4.86 

Profit / Loss for the year after tax 233.25 236.33 

Share of Profit or loss
 from associate 

- - 

Total Other
 Comprehensive Income 
/ (Loss) 

7.37 (15.99) 

Total Comprehensive Income / 
Loss 

240.62 220.34 

Profit attributable to   

a) Parent - - 
b) Non-Controlling Interest - - 

Other Comprehensive
 Income 

  

attributable to   

a) Parent - - 
b) Non-Controlling Interest - - 

Earnings Per Share (EPS) 

a) Basic 

 
 

23.33 

 
 

23.63 

b) Diluted 23.33 23.63 



During the year under review, the total Income from the operation increased by 39.45%. The same was Rs. 
38,883.42 Lakhs for the current FY 2024-25 as compared to Rs. 27,923.15 Lakhs for the previous FY 2023-24. 
Total Net Profit decreased by 1.30%, the same was Rs. 233.25 Lakhs for the current FY 2024-25 as compared to 
Rs. 236.33 Lakhs for the previous FY 2023-24. 

 
2. STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS 

 
The Company is actively engaged in the trading of Heavy Commercial Vehicles, Three Wheelers, and provides 
servicing for these vehicles as an authorized dealership of TATA and Bajaj. This aspect of the Company's 
operations contributes significantly to their overall revenue stream and market presence. 

Moreover, the Company has also ventured into the petroleum product sector and secured a dealership with 
Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited. This strategic move enables them to distribute and market 
petroleum products, further diversifying their business portfolio. 

With a focus on growth and profitability, the Company aims to leverage its expertise in the automotive sector 
and its association with reputable brands like TATA, Bajaj, and Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited to tap into 
the expanding market opportunities in India. 

Furthermore, the Company is committed to expanding its business operations to reach new markets and 
customer segments. By exploring untapped opportunities, they aim to widen their customer base and achieve 
sustainable growth. 

As the Company continues to prioritize customer service and quality, it seeks to enhance its offerings in the 
automobile and petroleum sectors through innovation and investment in the near future. Additionally, the 
Company's commitment to operational excellence and cost-cutting initiatives is expected to yield positive 
outcomes in optimizing resources and driving financial efficiency 

3. OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 
 

During the period, the company achieved the Standalone turnover of Rs. 387,30,46,051.59/-(Rupees 
Three Hundred Eighty-Seven Crores Thirty Lakhs and Forty- Six Thousand Fifty One and Fifty Nine 
Paisa Only) for the year ended 31st March, 2025 as against. Rs. 2,77,95,47,060.97 /-(Rupees Two 
Hundred Seventy-Seven Crores Ninety- Five Lakhs and Forty- Seven Thousand Sixty and Ninety- 
Seven Paisa Only) for the year ended 31st March, 2024. The Company earned a profit before tax of Rs. 
3,36,02,380.31/- (Rupees Three Crores Thirty Six Lakhs Two Thousand Three Hundred and Eighty and 
Thirty One Paisa Only) during the year ended 31st March, 2025 as against the profit of Rs. 
3,27,09,936.25/- (Rupees Three Crores Twenty Seven Lakhs Nine Thousand Nine Hundred Thirty 
Six and Twenty Five Paisa Only) in previous year ended 31st March, 2024. The Company earned a profit 
after tax of Rs. 2,33,25,379.31/- (Rupees Two crores Thirty Three Lakhs Twenty Five Thousand 
Three hundred and Seventy Nine and Thirty one paisa) during the year ended 31st March 2025 as 
against the profit 2,36,33,244.76/- (Rupees Two crores Thirty Six Thousand Thirty Three Thousand Two 
hundred and Forty Four and Seventy Six Paisa) in the previous year ended 31st March 2024. 



 
 

 
4. DIVIDEND 

 
After considering the financial and non-financial factors prevailing during the Financial Year 2024-25, the 
Board of Directors have decided not to recommend dividend this year. However, the Directors are hopeful 
for better results in enduing future. 

 
5. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND AND UNCLAIMED SHARES: 

 
In terms of the provisions of Investor Education and Protection Fund (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) 
Rules, 2016 (including amendments and modifications, thereof), no unpaid/unclaimed dividends were 
transferred during the year under review to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. 

6. RESERVES AND SURPLUS 
 

The Company has Rs. 18,94,30,297.76 /- (Rupees Eighteen Crore Ninty Four Lakhs Thirty Thousand and Two 
Hundred Ninety-Seven and Seventy-Six Paisa Only) in the reserve and surplus. During the year the Company has 
transferred in its Retained Earnings Rs. 2,40,62,863.31/- (Rupees Two Crore Forty Lakhs Sixty-Two Thousand 
Eight Hundred and Thirty-One and Thirty-One Paisa Only). 

7. FUTURE OUTLOOK 

Kalyani Commercials Ltd aims to strengthen its core operations in vehicle dealerships and petroleum 
distribution by enhancing operational efficiency, optimizing margins, and expanding its regional footprint, 
while maintaining financial discipline and leveraging digital tools to drive sustainable, long-term growth. 

8. CHANGES IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE 

During the year under review, the share capital of the company remains unchanged and the company has 
also not issued any equity shares with differential rights and sweat equity shares. 

Chart Title 
4,50,00,00,000.00 

4,00,00,00,000.00 

3,50,00,00,000.00 

3,00,00,00,000.00 

2,50,00,00,000.00 

2,00,00,00,000.00 

1,50,00,00,000.00 

1,00,00,00,000.00 

50,00,00,000.00 

0.00 
Turnover Profit before Tax Profit after Tax 

Operational Revenue 31st March 2025 Operational Revenue 31st March 2024 



9. LISTING OF SECURITIES 
 

The 1,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each of the Company are listed on National Stock Exchange of 
India Limited (NSE) w. e. f., February 13, 2017. 

 
The Annual listing fees for the Financial Year 2025-26 have been paid to the Stock Exchange within the 
time limits as prescribed by the Exchange. 

10. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES 
 

The Company does not have any Subsidiary. 
 

Further, the Company does not have any associates and joint venture companies. The disclosure of 
particulars with respect to information related to performance and financial position of joint ventures or 
associate Companies subject to rule 8(1) and 8(5)(iv) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not applicable. 

 
11. DEPOSITS FROM PUBLIC 

 
The Company has not accepted any deposits from public and as such, no amount on account of principal or 
interest on deposits from public was payable or outstanding as on 31st March, 2025. The company has 
neither accepted nor renewed any deposits falling under chapter V of Companies Act, 2013. 

 

12. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACT OR ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED PARTIES U/S 188(1) 
 

All Related Party Transactions are presented before the Audit Committee for their review and the Board. 
Omnibus approval is obtained for the transactions which are foreseen and repetitive in nature. A statement 
of all related party transactions is presented before the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis, specifying the 
nature, value and terms and conditions of the transactions. 

The particulars of every contract or arrangement entered into by the Company with related parties 
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length 
transactions under third proviso thereto are disclosed in Form AOC -2 as Annexure -I. 

13. DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP) APPOINTED / RESIGNED 
DURING THE YEAR 

 
 

During the period under review, there was no change in details of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of 
the company. 
Further, list of directors/KMP is mentioned herein below for your reference: 

LIST OF DIRECTORS AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2025 



S. No Name Designation 

1. Mr. Shankar Lal Agarwal Managing Director 

2. Mr. Sourabh Agarwal Whole-time Director 

3. Ms. Manushree Agarwal Non-executive Director 

4. Mr. Gagan Anand Non- executive Independent Director 

5. Ms. Nikhita Agarwal Non- executive Independent Director 

 
 LIST OF KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP) AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2025: 

 
S. No. Name Designation 

1. Mr. Shankar Lal Agarwal Managing Director 

2. Mr. Sourabh Agarwal Whole-time Director 

3. Mr. Sourabh Agarwal Chief Financial Officer 

4. Mr. Suranjan Upadhyay Company Secretary and Compliance 
Officer 

 
 

14. MEETINGS OF BOARD HELD DURING THE F.Y. 2024-2025 
 

During the Financial Year under review the Meetings of Board and its committees were held as follows: 
 
 

 
Sr No. 

 
Date of 
Meeting 

 
Total no of 
Directors 
as on the 
date of 
Meeting 

 
Attendance 

No. of 
Directors 
Attended 

% of 
Attendance 

1. 29.05.2024 05 05 100% 

2. 12.08.2024 05 05 100% 

3. 02.09.2024 05 05 100% 

4. 25.09.2024 05 05 100% 

5.  19.10.2025 05 05 100% 

6. 13.11.2025 05 05 100% 

7. 07.01.2025 05 05 100% 

8. 10.02.2025 05 05 100% 



The Agenda and Notice of the Meetings were circulated well in advance to the respective Directors. The 
intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 
i.e. the maximum interval between any two board meetings did not exceed 120 days. Also, the meetings were 
conducted as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder and 
as per the Secretarial Standards -1 (SS-1) as framed by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India 
(ICSI) in this regard. 

15. COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD AS ON 31ST MARCH 2025: 

a) AUDIT COMMITTEE: 
 

In compliance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the objective of the audit 
committee is to review internal control and internal audit system, to ensure accurately and timely 
disclosures, to ensure accurately and timely compliances with all accounting standards, policies and 
applicable laws, to monitor and provide an effective supervision of the Management’s financial reporting 
process with the highest levels of transparency, integrity and quality of financial reporting. 
The Terms of reference broadly includes the following: 

 The recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the 
company. 

 Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit 
process. 

 Examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon; 

 Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments. 

 Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary. 

 
The Salient features of the policy and changes therein, if any along with the web address of the policy, is 
https://www.kalyanicommercials.com/policies 

 
The composition of Audit Committee of the Company is as following: 

 
S. No Name of Member Designation Category 

1. Mr. Gagan Anand Chairman Non-Executive & Independent 
Director 

2. Ms. Nikhita Agarwal Member Non-Executive & Independent 
Director 

3. Ms. Manushree Agarwal Member Non-Executive Director 

 
The Board has accepted all the recommendations proposed by audit committee during the Financial Year. 

 
During the Financial Year under review the Meetings of Audit committee were held as follows: 



Sr No. 
 

Date of Audit 
Committee Meeting 

Total no of 
Directors as on 

the date of 
Meeting 

Attendance 

No. of Directors 
Attended 

 
% of Attendance 

1. 29.05.2024 03 03 100% 

2. 12.08.2024 03 03 100% 

3. 13.11.2024 03 03 100% 

4. 10.02.2025 03 03 100% 
 
 

b) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 
 

In compliance with provisions of 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the purpose of the committee is to 
evaluate the performance of all the Directors on the board of the company, to Identify individuals 
qualified to serve as Directors (executive directors, non-executive directors and independent 
directors) or to serve in senior management and to review their remuneration, consistent with criteria 
approved by the Board, and to recommend to the Board for their approval. The composition of 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company is as following: 

 
S. 
N
o. 

Name of Member Designation Category 

1. Mr. Gagan Anand Chairman Non-Executive & 
Independent Director 

2. Ms. Manushree Agarwal Member Non- Executive Director 

3. Ms. Nikhita Agarwal Member Non-Executive & 
Independent Director 

 
The Salient features of the policy and changes therein, if any along with the web address of the policy, is 
https://www.kalyanicommercials.com/policies. 

During the Financial Year under review the Meetings of Nomination & Remuneration committee 
Meeting was held as follows: 

Sr No. Date of NRC 
Committee 
Meeting 

Total no of 
Directors 
as on the 
date of 
Meeting 

Attendance 

   
No. of 
Directors 
Attended 

% of 
Attendance 

1. 27.01.2025 03 03 100% 



c) SHAREHOLDER’S GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE: 

In order to comply with the Good Corporate Governance Norms, the Company has constituted this 
committee. The purpose of the committee is to assist the Board and the Company in maintaining healthy 
relationships with all stakeholders. 

The composition of Shareholder’s Grievance Committee of the Company is as following: 
 
 

S. 
No. 

Name of Member Designation Category 

1. Ms. Nikhita Agarwal Chairman Non-Executive & Independent 
Director 

2. Ms. Manushree Agarwal Member Non-Executive Director 

3. Mr. Gagan Anand Member Non-Executive & Independent 
Director 

 
The Salient features of the policy and changes therein, if any along with the web address of the policy, is 
https://www.kalyanicommercials.com/policies 

During the Financial Year under review the Meetings of Shareholder’s Grievance committee 
Meeting was held as follows: 

Sr No. Date of SRC Committee 
Meeting 

Total no of 
Directors as on 

the date of 
Meeting 

Attendance 

No. of Directors 
Attended 

% of Attendance 

1. 17.01.2025 03 03 100% 
 

d) INTERNAL COMPLAINT COMMITTEE: 
 

The Board of Directors has constituted Internal Complaint Committee pursuant to Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 for the 
purpose of adhering the Complaints of employees regarding Sexual Harassment. 

The composition of Shareholder’s Grievance Committee of the Company is as following: 
 

     S. 
    No. 

Name of Member Designation Category 

1. Ms. Manushree Agarwal Chairperson Women-Non- Executive Director 

2. Mr. Gagan Anand Member Non-Executive & Independent 
Director 

3. Ms. Nikhita Agarwal Member Non-Executive & Independent 
Director 



 
 

The Salient features of the policy and changes therein, if any along with the web address of the policy, is 
https://www.kalyanicommercials.com/policies 

 
During the Financial Year under review the Meetings of Investors Compliant committee Meeting was 
held as follows: 

 
 

          Sr. 
No. 

 
Date of ICC Committee Meeting 

 
Total no of 

Directors as on 
the date of 

Meeting 

 
Attendance 

No. of Directors 
Attended 

 
% of Attendance 

1. 16.01.2025 03 03 100% 

 
e) INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR COMMITTEE: 

 
According to Section 149(8) of the Companies Act, 2013 requires Independent Directors on the Board 
of the Company to abide by the provisions specified in SCHEDULE IV of the Companies Act, 2013 which 
defines Code for Independent Directors and Regulations 25 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirement), Regulations, 2015. He further stated that Clause VII of Schedule IV of the 
Companies Act, 2013 requires that “The Independent Directors” of the Company shall hold at least one 
meeting in a financial year, without the attendance of Non-Independent Directors and Members of the 
Management. 

The composition of Independent Director Committee of the Company is as following: 
 

S. 
No. 

Name of Member Designation Category 

1. Mr. Gagan Anand Member Non-Executive & Independent 
Director 

2. Ms. Nikhita Agarwal Member Non-Executive & Independent 
Director 

 
The Salient features of the policy and changes therein, if any along with the web address of the policy, is 
https://www.kalyanicommercials.com/policies 

 
During the Financial Year under review the Meetings of Independent Director committee Meeting was held 
as follows: 
 

 
Sr No. 

 
Date of ID 
Committee 

Meeting 

 
Total no of Directors as 
on the date of Meeting 

 
Attendance 

No. of 
Directors 
Attended 

 
% of Attendance 

1. 24.02.2025 02 02 100% 



 
 

16. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 

The Independent Directors have submitted their declarations of independence, as required pursuant to 
provisions of section 149(7) of the Act, stating that they meet the criteria of independence as provided in 
sub section (6) and Regulation 25 of Listing Regulations as laid by the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(SEBI). 

17. FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 

In terms of regulation 25(7) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, the Company familiarizes the Directors about their role and responsibility at the time of their appointment 
through a formal letter of appointment. All independent directors inducted into the Board attend an 
orientation program. Presentations are regularly made at the meetings of the Board and its various Committees 
on the relevant subjects. The details of programs for familiarization of Independent Directors can be 
accessed on the Company’s website. 

18. DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors hereby confirm 
that: 

 
 In the preparation of annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 the applicable 
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

 
 The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state 
of affairs of the Companies as at 31st March, 2025 and of the profit/loss of the Company for the period 
ended on that date; 

 
 The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the 
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 
     The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

 
 The Directors have laid down proper internal financial controls to be followed by the company and 
such internal financial control and adequate and were operating effectively; and 

 
 The Directors had devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
law and such systems are adequate and operating effectively.   

 
19. AUDITOR & AUDITORS’ REPORT; 

 Statutory Auditors and Audit Report 

In the 38th (Thirty Eighth) Annual General Meeting of the members of the company held on 27th 
September, 2023, M/s K Prasad & Company LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 
002755N) were re-appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a term of five 
years i.e. till the conclusion of its 43rd (Forty Third) Annual General Meeting of the company to be held 
in the Financial Year 2028-29. 
The Audit Report submitted by Statutory Auditor on Annual Standalone Financial Statement for the 
Financial Year 2024-25 does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer 
except the following: 
CIT (Remark 1) 

 
The Dues outstanding in respect of Income Tax and VAT on account of disputes as under: 

 
 



Name of the 
Statute 

Nature of Dues 
 

Demand (Rs. 
In Lakhs) 

Amount paid 
against 

demand (Rs. In 
Lakhs) 

Period to 
which the 

amount 
relates 

Forum where 
dispute is 
pending 

Income Tax 
Act, 1961 

Income Tax 5.73 0 FY-2019-20 Pending demand 

Income Tax 
Act, 1961 

Income Tax 3.05 0 FY-2009-10 Pending Demand 

Income Tax 
Act, 1961 

Income Tax 0.11 0 FY-2011-12 Pending Demand 

 
Note: For financial year 2017-18 
 
Board Reply: 
 
The notes to the accounts referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and, therefore, do not 
call for any further comments. The Auditors have also not reported any matter under Section 143(12) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

 
20. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

As per Regulation 15 of the SEBI (Listing Regulations and Disclosure Obligations Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the provisions of Chapter IV of the said Listing Regulations, 2015, the Compliance 
with the corporate governance provisions as specified in Regulations 17, 17A, 18, 19, 20, 21,22, 23, 24, 
24A, 25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and para C, D and E of 
Schedule V shall not be mandatory, for the time being, in respect of the following class of companies: 

A. The listed entity having Paid up Equity Share Capital not exceeding Rs.10 Crore and Net Worth not 
exceeding Rs.25 Crore, as on the last day of the previous financial year; 

B. The Listed Entity which has listed its specified securities on the SME Exchange. 
 
Since the Company’s paid-up share capital and net-worth doesn’t exceeds the prescribed 
threshold limits therefore, Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of sub regulation (2) of 
regulation 46 and Para-C, D and E of Schedule V are not applicable on the Company 

. 
 
21. Secretarial Auditor & Secretarial Audit Report 

In terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of 
Directors of the Company has appointed M/s. GA & Associates, Company Secretaries LLP as Secretarial 
Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2024-25. Secretarial audit report as provided by M/s. GA & 
Associates Company Secretaries LLP is also annexed to this Report, in the prescribed Form MR-3, as 
“Annexure-II”. 

The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 forms part of this report and 
confirms that the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines 
and that there were no deviations or non-compliances except the following: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Remark 1: Non-Compliance of Rule 6 of The Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of the Directors) Rules, 
2014 as the application for renewal for a further period after expiry of Registration tenure is not filed within 30 
days. 
 
Board Clarification 1: The Company had advised all its Independent Directors to complete the necessary 
compliance with Rule 6, including timely renewal of registration in the Independent Directors' Databank 
maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (IICA). Upon becoming aware of the non-compliance.  
The Company immediately advised the concerned Director to complete the renewal process. The Board regrets 
the inadvertent delay and assures that appropriate corrective measures have been taken. The Company remains 
committed to full compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and associated rules. 
 
Remark 2: During the year company has created, Modified and Satisfied the following charges of the company: 
 
1. On 25/09/2024, the company has created charge by way of hypothecation on the current assets of the 
company with Axis Bank Limited to secure the amount of Rs. 2,50,00,000/-. 
2. On 14/10/2024, the company has modified its charge already created with Axis Bank Limited for giving 
effect to increase it sanction limit and to secure the amount of Rs. 7,50,00,000/-. 
3. On 14/10/2024, the company has created charge by way of hypothecation on the current assets of the 
company with Axis Bank Limited to secure the amount of Rs. 2,00,00,000/-. 
4. On 21/01/2025, the company has modified its charge already created with Tata Capital Limited for giving 
effect to increase it sanction limit and to secure the amount of Rs. 4,00,00,000/-. 
 
Board Clarification 2 : The Company has ensured that all necessary filings under Form CHG-1 / CHG-9 have been 
made within the prescribed time limits and appropriate entries have been updated in the register of charges 
maintained under Section 85 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Remark 3: The Company has made investments of ₹1,80,50,000/- in Ganganagar Vehicles Private Limited and 
₹25,00,000/- in Ganganagar Automobiles Private Limited. Further, the Company has provided corporate 
guarantees of ₹74,09,54,000/- in favour of Ganganagar Vehicles Private Limited and ₹5,10,68,000/- in favour of 
Ganganagar Automobiles Private Limited. During the year, the company has exceeded the limit as prescribed 
under section 186 of Companies Act, 2013. Hence, the Company is in the process of obtaining the requisite 
approvals from the members in respect of the aforesaid transactions, in compliance with the applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. 
 
Board Clarification 3:  The Board has noticed that the aggregate of the above investments and guarantees has 
resulted in exceeding the limits prescribed under Section 186(2) of the Companies Act, 2013, which mandates 
prior approval of shareholders by way of a special resolution if the limits are crossed. 
 
The Board acknowledges that, while the transactions were undertaken in the ordinary course of business and in 
the interest of the Company, the prior approval of the members was not obtained, leading to a technical non-
compliance with the provisions of Section 186. 
 
The Board has taken cognizance of the matter and is in the process of regularizing the transactions by: 
 
Initiating the process for obtaining approval of the shareholders by way of a special resolution at the forthcoming 
general meeting; 
 
Ensuring that all relevant disclosures and explanatory statements are made to the members, as required under 
the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
The Board assures that adequate internal controls and compliance mechanisms are being strengthened to ensure 
that such lapses do not occur in the future. The Company Secretary has been directed to closely monitor all 
financial limits under applicable provisions and obtain necessary approvals well in advance. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



22. BOARD EVALUATION 

In terms of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 
17 of the Listing Regulations, it is required to have a formal annual evaluation of the performance of the Board, 
its Committees and the Directors individually. In pursuance of the aforesaid provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Listing Regulations, including the Guidance Note issued by SEBI on Board Evaluation, the Board 
carries out the annual evaluation of its own performance, the working of its various Committees as well as the 
evaluation of its directors individually. 

 
 

The evaluation process comprises of both assessment and review, including analysis of the functioning of the 
Board and its Committees, the time spent by it in considering matters and whether the terms of reference of its 
committees have been met, besides complying with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing 
Regulations. The evaluation of the performance of the Board, its committees and individual directors was done, 
after seeking inputs from all the Directors by way of a questionnaire. 

 
The questionnaire was prepared in a structured manner, ascertaining the individual director’s various attributes 
and their roles in bringing values to the deliberation and discussions at meetings. The Board of Directors also 
evaluated the functioning/performance of Audit Committee, Shareholders Grievances Committee and 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee and expressed satisfaction with their functioning/performance. A 
report in brief on Board evaluation has been given in the Corporate Governance Report which may be taken as 
forming a part of this Report. 
 

23. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 
As required to be reported pursuant to Section 134(3)(g) of Companies Act, 2013, the Complete 
details of Loans, Investments, Guarantees and Securities covered under Sec 186 of Companies Act, 
2013, as per following format: 

 
A. Details of Secured Loans: 

 
Details of Borrower NA 
Amount NA 
Purpose for which the loan is to be utilized by the recipient NA 
Time period for which it is given NA 

 
B. Details of Investments: 

 
 

Details of Investment NA 
Ganganagar Vehicles Private limited 1,80,50,000.00 
Ganganagar Automobile Private limited 25,00,000.00 
Purpose for which the proceeds from investment is proposed to be 
utilized by the recipient 

NA 

Details of Investment NA 
Ganganagar Vehicles Private limited 1,80,50,000.00 
Ganganagar Automobile Private limited 25,00,000.00 
Purpose for which the proceeds from investment is proposed to be 
utilized 
by the recipient 

NA 

 

 

 

 

 



C. Details of Guarantee / Security Provided: 

 
Details of recipient Amount 

Ganganagar Vehicles Private Limited 7409.54(Including 
Extension of Charge 
Rs. 1500 Lacs) 

Kota Trucks Private Limited 510.68 Lacs 
Purpose for which the security/guarantee is proposed to be utilized by 
the recipient NA 

 
24. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS 

 
There were no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the 
going concern status and Company’s operations in future. 
 

25. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 
 

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company, 
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements 
relate and till the date of this report. 

 
26. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS 

 
The Company operates as a going concern in the trading of Commercial Vehicles and as a Petroleum dealership 
for BPCL. These ventures are now the primary drivers of the Company's operations and financial performance. 

 
This strategic shift in business direction demonstrates the Company's adaptability and commitment to thrive in 
the market by capitalizing on its strengths and exploring opportunities in new sectors. As always, we remain 
dedicated to ensuring the Company's growth, profitability, and long-term success 

 
Currently, the Company operates as a going concern in the trading of Commercial Vehicles and as a Petroleum 
dealership for BPCL. These ventures are now the primary drivers of the Company's operations and financial 
performance. 

This strategic shift in business direction demonstrates the Company's adaptability and commitment to thrive in 
the market by capitalizing on its strengths and exploring opportunities in new sectors. As always, we remain 
dedicated to ensuring the Company's growth, profitability, and long-term success. 

 
27. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS OF ICSI 

 
The Company has duly followed the applicable Secretarial standards, relating to Meeting of the Board of 
Directors (SS-1) and General Meeting (SS-2), issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI). 

28. RISK MANAGEMENT 

Risk is an integral and unavoidable component of business and the Company has been addressing and 
analyzing various risks impacting the Company including details of significant changes in key financial ratios 
which is more fully provided in annexed Management Discussion and Analysis Report attached herewith 
and forms part of this Annual Report. The Company has a robust risk management process to identify key 
risks across the Group, and prioritize action plans to mitigate them. The proceedings of the review process 
include discussions on the management’s submissions on risks, prioritization of key risks and approval of 
action plans to mitigate such risks. Some of the uncertainties and risks that can affect the business are 
technological changes, changing customer preferences and behavior, competition, volatility in prices and 
macro- economic factors such as an economic slowdown. 

 

 



29. COMMODITY PRICE RISK OR FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES 

Your Company does not have material exposure of any commodity or foreign exchange and accordingly, no 
hedging activities for the same are carried out. Therefore, there is no disclosure to offer in terms of SEBI 
circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/ CIR/P/2018/0000000141 dated 15th November, 2018. 

30. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

The information as per Section 197 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is attached herewith as Annexure III. 

 

i. The ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company 
for the financial year 2024-25: 

 
 

S. No. Directors Ratio to median 

1 Mr. Shankar Lal Agarwal 2.36 

2 Mr. Sourabh Agarwal 4.72 

3 Ms. Manushree Agarwal 9.44 

4 Ms. Nikhita Agarwal NIL 

5 Mr. Gagan Anand NIL 
 
 

ii. There has been no increase in the remuneration of Managing Director, Whole Time Director/CFO of the 
Company in the financial Year 2024-2025. 

 
iii. There has been 7.80% increase in median remuneration of employees during the financial year 2024-25. 

 
iv. The total number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company during the financial year was 

177. 
 

v. There has been an average percentile increase in the Remuneration of Employees 16.34% in the salaries of 
Employees and no increase in the remuneration of managerial personnel as well. The total remuneration to 
employees for the financial year 2024-25 was Rs. 4,49,72,583.2/- as compared to Rs. 3,86,55,238/- in the 
Financial Year 2023-24. 

 
vi. The Company affirms that remuneration given is as per the remuneration policy of the Company. 

 
However, as per the provisions of Section 136 of the Act, the Report and Accounts are being sent to all the 
members excluding the information on particulars of employees which is available for inspection by the 
members at the Registered Office of the Company during business hours on working days of the Company up to 
the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

 
31. DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 5 (2) & (3) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION) 

RULES, 2014 
 

No Directors/employees of the Company was in receipt of amount exceeding a salary of Rs. 8,50,000/- per 
month or more when employed for a part of the financial year and Rs. 10,200,000/- per annum or more 
when employed for whole of the year, under the provision of Rule 5 (2) & (3) of The Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time. 
 
 
 
 
 



32. HUMAN RESOURCES 
 

The Company recognizes people as its most valuable asset and it has built an open, transparent and 
meritocratic culture to nature this asset. The company has kept a sharp focus on Employee Engagement. 
The Company’s Human Resources is commensurate with the size, nature and operation of the Company. It 
looks at the employee’s entire life cycle, to ensure timely interventions and help build a long-lasting and 
fruitful career. 

33. CORPORATE POLICIES 
 

We seek to promote and follow the highest level of ethical standards in our business transactions. The 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 mandated the formulation of 
certain policies for all listed companies. All the policies are available on the website of the Company viz. 
http://kalyanicommercialsltd.com/. 

 
The Policies are reviewed periodically by the Board and updated on the basis of need and new Compliance 
 

The Key Policies are as follows: 
 

Name of the Policy Brief Description 

VIGIL MECHANISM/ 
WHISTLE BLOWER 
POLICY 

This policy has been established with a view to provide a tool to Directors 
and Employees of the Company to report to Management genuine concerns 
including unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the 
code or the policy. The Policy also provides for adequate safeguards against 
victimization of Director(s)/Employee(s) who avail of the mechanism and 
also provides for direct access to the chairman of the Audit Committee in 
exceptional cases. 

 
The Whistle Blower Policy is provided on the website of the Company and may 
be accessed by clicking on the following link: 

 
https://www.kalyanicommercials.com/files/policies/policies_07.pdf 

REMUNERATION 
POLICY 

The Board has on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee framed and adopted a policy for selection and appointment of 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and their 
remuneration. 

The Remuneration Policy is provided on the website of the Company and 
may be accessed by clicking on the following link 

https://www.kalyanicommercials.com/files/policies/policies_01.pdf 

POLICY FOR 
DETERMINING 
MATERIALITY OF 
EVENT OR 
INFORMATION 

The Objective of this policy is to outline the guidelines to be followed by the 
Company for consistent, transparent and timely public disclosures of 
material information events/information and to ensure that such information is 
adequately disseminated to the stock Exchange(s) where the securities of the 
Company are listed in pursuance with the Regulations and to provide an 
overall governance framework for such determination of materiality. 

The Policy of determining Materiality of event/information is provided on 
the website of the Company and may be accessed by clicking on the following 
link: 
https://www.kalyanicommercials.com/files/policies/policies_06.pdf 



 POLICY OF 
PRESERVATION OF 
RECORDS 

This policy sets the Standards for classifying, managing and storing the 
records of the Company. The Purpose of this policy is to establish framework 
for effective records Management and the process for subsequent archival of 
such records. 

The policy of preservation of records is provided on the website of the Company 
and may be accessed by clicking on the following link: 
https://www.kalyanicommercials.com/files/policies/policies_04.pdf 

KYC AND AML 
POLICIES 

This policy is made to prevent criminal elements from using Company for money 
laundering activities and to enable the Company to know/ understand its 
customers and their financial dealings better which, in turn, would help the 
Company to manage risks prudently. 

The KYC and AML policies provided on the website of the Company and may 
be accessed by clicking on the following link: 
https://www.kalyanicommercials.com/files/policies/policies_08.pdf 

TERMS AND 
CONDITIONS 
 OF APPOINTMENT 
OF INDEPENDENT 
DIRECTORS 

This has prescribed the code of conduct terms and conditions of appointment 
of the Independent Directors, which are subject to the provisions of the 
applicable laws, including the Companies Act, 2013 (‘2013 Act’) and Clause 
49 of the Listing Agreement (as amended from time to time). 
The policy on terms and conditions of Appointment of Independent Director 
provided on the website of the Company and may be accessed by clicking on 
the following link: 
https://www.kalyanicommercials.com/files/policies/policies_11.pdf 

 

FAIR PRACTICE 
CODE 

This Code prescribes the guidelines to cover the general principles on 
adequate disclosures on the terms and conditions of a loan and adopting a 
non-coercive recovery method. 

The Fair Practice Code provided on the website of the Company and may be 
accessed by clicking on the following link: 
https://www.kalyanicommercials.com/files/policies/policies_09.pdf 

 

Policy for 
determining 
Material Subsidiary. 

The Board has adopted a policy for determining material subsidiaries. 

The policy for determining Material Subsidiaries is provided on the website of 
the Company and may be accessed by clicking on the following link: 
https://www.kalyanicommercials.com/files/policies/policies_12.pdf 

INSIDER TRADING 
PROHIBITION 
CODE PURSUANT 
TO (SEBI (PIT) 
REGULATIONS, 
2015) 

This Code has been formulated to regulate, monitor and report trading by the 
Designated Persons to comply with the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to 
time. The Code is prescribed to ensure that the Designated Persons do not trade 
in the Securities of the Company when in possession of UPSI, and to prevent any 
speculative dealings, knowingly or unknowingly, by the Designated Persons. The 
Policy was amended in line with SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2018, incorporating ‘legitimate purpose’ in 
connection with sharing of UPSI 

 



POLICY ON 
RELATED PARTY 
TRANSACTION(S) 

In compliance with the Listing Regulations, the Company has the policy for transactions 
with Related Parties (RPT Policy). During the year, the Company has revised its Policy 
on dealing with Materiality of Related Party Transactions, in accordance with the
amendments to the applicable provisions of the Listing Regulations.  
The RPT Policy is available on the Company website and can be accessed by clicking on 
the following link: 

https://www.kalyanicommercials.com/files/policies/policies_06.pdf  

POLICY ON 
FAMILIARIZATION 
OF INDEPENDENT 
DIRECTORS        

This policy has been formulated to familiarize the independent directors with the 
Company, the functions of the Company and specify their roles, rights, responsibilities 
in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model 
of the Company, etc., through various Programs. 
The policy on familiarization is available on the Company website and can be accessed 
by clicking on the following link: 
 
https://www.kalyanicommercials.com/files/policies/policies_10.pdf 



34. REPORT UNDER THE PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT ACT, 2013 
 

Your Company is committed to ensuring that all are treated with dignity and respect and having zero 
tolerance towards sexual harassment at the workplace and towards this end, has adopted a policy in line 
with the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder and adequate access has been provided to complainants who wish to 
register a complaint under the policy. All employees (permanent contractual, temporary, trainees) are 
covered under the said policy. An Internal Complaints Committee has also been set up to redress complaints 
received on sexual harassment. During the financial year under review, the Company has not received any 
complaints of sexual harassment from any of the women employees of the Company. 

The Policy is formulated by the Company for Prevention of sexual harassment is available on the website of 
the Company 

 
During the financial year under review, the company has complied with all the provisions of the POSH Act 
and the rules framed thereunder. Further details are as follows. 

A. Number of complaints of Sexual Harassment 
received in the Year 

0 

B. Number of Complaints disposed off during the year 0 

C. Number of cases pending for more than ninety days 0 

The Company has complied with the provision relating to the constitution of Internal Committee under 
POSH, 2013. In the Board Meeting held on 16.01.2025. 

 
 

35. DISCLOSURE ABOUT COST AUDIT 
 

As per the Cost Audit Orders, Cost Audit is not applicable to the Company's for the FY 2024-25. 
 

36. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 
 

The disclosure and the provisions of Section 135 and schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 
9 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the Company. 

 
37. ANNUAL RETURN 

 
The draft Annual Return in Form MGT-7 for the Financial Year 2024-25 is uploaded on the website of the 
Company and the same could be accessed by clicking on following link: 
https://kalyanicommercials.com/annual-returns. 

 
38. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND ANALYSIS 

 
The Management Discussion and Analysis forms part of this Annual Report for the year ended 31st March, 
2025 and is annexed as Annexure- IV of this Annual Report for the reference of the stakeholders. 



39. INTERNAL AUDIT & CONTROL 
 

During the year under review, the internal control and internal audit system was adequate in the company and 
is working effectively and efficiently. The internal control system is supported by an internal audit process 
for reviewing the adequacy and efficacy of the Company’s internal controls, including its systems and processes 
and compliance with regulations and procedures. 

Further, pursuant to Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, M/s 
DCJ & Associates, Chartered Accountants FRN:015039C, is the Internal Auditor of the Company for the Financial 
Year 2024-25 who performed all the duties as required to perform by the Internal Auditor under the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

 
40. DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR PROCEEDINGS PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY AND 

BANKRUPTCY CODE 2016 
 

During the year under review, there were no applications made or proceedings pending in the name of the 
Company under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

 
41. DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN VALUATION AMOUNT ON ONE TIME SETLLEMENT AND 

VALUATION WHILE AVAILING LOAN FROM BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 
 

During the year under review, there has been no onetime settlement of loans taken from banks and Financial 
Institutions. 

 
42. DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR PROCEEDINGS PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY AND 

BANKRUPTCY CODE 2016 
 

During the year under review, there were no applications made or proceedings pending in the name of the 
Company under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

 
43. DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN VALUATION AMOUNT ON ONE TIME SETLLEMENT AND 

VALUATION WHILE AVAILING LOAN FROM BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 
 

During the year under review, there has been no onetime settlement of loans taken from banks and Financial 
Institutions. 

 
43. REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT. 

 
During the year under review SKYLINE FINANCIAL SERVICES PVT. LTD. was the Registrar and Transfer 
Agent of the Company. 

 
 
44. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 

OUTGO 
 

In view of the nature of the activities carried out by the Company, Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 relating to conservation of energy and technology 
absorption, are not applicable to the Company. During the year under review, the Company had no earnings 
and expenditure in foreign exchange. 



45. GREEN INITIATIVES IN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs has permitted Companies to send copies of Annual report, Notices, etc., 
electronically to the email IDs of shareholders. 

 
Your Company has arranged to send the soft copies of these documents to the registered email IDs of the 
shareholders. To support the ‘Green Initiative’, members who have not registered their email addresses are 
requested to register the same with the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent/ Depositories for 
receiving all communications, including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars, etc., from the Company 
electronically. 

 
 

46. COMPLIANCE UNDER MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT, 1961. 
 

In accordance with the requirements of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended by the Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules, 2025, 
and pursuant to the Maternity Benefit (Amendment) Act, 2017 and the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
General Circular No. MCA/2025/Compliance/MB dated April 15, 2025, the Board of Directors of Kalyani 
Commercials Limited hereby confirms that: 
The Company has fully complied with all applicable provisions relating to maternity benefits, including the 
grant of paid maternity leave to eligible women employees, provision of crèche facilities at the workplace or 
within the prescribed radius, facilitation of work-from-home options wherever applicable, and dissemination 
of information regarding maternity entitlements through written and electronic modes, in accordance with 
the statutory requirements. 
The Company also ensures that no discrimination is made in recruitment or service conditions on the 
grounds of maternity. Necessary internal systems and HR policies are in place to uphold the spirit and 
letter of the legislation. 

 
47. GENDERWISE COMPOSITION OF EMPLOYEES 

 
In alignment with the principles of diversity, equity, and inclusion (DEI), the Company discloses below the 
gender composition of its workforce as on the March 31, 2025. 
 
Male Employees: 174(One Hundred and Seventy-Four)  

Female Employees: 03(Three)  

Transgender Employees: 00(Zero) 

This disclosure reinforces the Company’s efforts to promote an inclusive workplace culture and equal 
opportunity for all individuals, regardless of gender. 

 
48. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

 
Statements in the Directors Report and the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the company’s 
objectives, expectations or predictions, may be forward looking within the meaning of applicable securities 
laws and regulations. Actual results may differ materially from those expressed in the statement. Important 
factors that could influence the company’s operations include: domestic demand and supply conditions 
affecting selling prices, new capacity additions, availability of materials and their cost, changes in 
government policies and tax laws, economic development of the country, and other factors which are 
material to the business operations of the company. 



49. DOWN STREAM INVESTEMENT. 
 

The Company neither have any Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) nor invested as any Downstream Investment in 
any other Company in India. 

 
 

50. APPRECIATION 
 

The Directors take this opportunity to express their deep sense of gratitude to the banks, financial 
institutions, stakeholders, business associates, Central and State Governments for their co-operation, continued 
guidance, support and look forward to their continued support in future. The Directors would also like to place 
on record the sincere dedication, commitment and hard work of our employees and their contribution to your 
Company’s performance. We are deeply grateful for the confidence and faith that you have always reposed in 
us. 

 
By the order of the Board 
For KALYANI COMMERCIALS LIMITED 

 

 
Sd/- 
Sourabh Agarwal 
(Whole Time Director) 
DIN: 02168346 
Off. Address: BG-223, Sanjay Gandhi Transport Nagar, 
GT Karnal Road, Delhi-110042 

 

 
Sd/- 
Shankar Lal Agarwal 
(Managing Director) 

          DIN: 01341113 
Off. Address: BG-223, Sanjay Gandhi Transport Nagar, 
GT Karnal Road, Delhi-110042 



Annexure- I 

Form No. AOC-2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with 
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Act including certain arm’s 
length transactions under third proviso thereto. 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis- NA 
There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year under 
review which was not an arm’s length basis. 

 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis 
The details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis for the 
year ended March 31, 2025, are as follows: 

 

1. Corporate identity 
number (CIN) 

 
U50500DL2016PTC303464 

2. Name(s) of the related 
party 

Ganganagar Vehicles Private Limited 

3. Nature of the relationship - 

4. Nature of  
contracts/ arrangements/ 
transactions 

Purchase of 
Rs. 521.13 
Lakhs 

Sale of Rs 
370.63 
Lakhs 

Guarantee 
Fees Rs. 
74.10 
Lakhs 

Advance 
Given Rs. 
5481.45 
Lakhs 

Advance 
Repaid Rs 
5525.91 
Lakhs 

5. Duration of the 
contracts/arrangements/ 
transactions 

1 Year 1 year 1 year 1 year 1 year 

6. Salient terms of the 
contracts or 
arrangements or 
transactions, including 
actual / expected 
contractual amount 

On Purchase 
order Basis 

On Sales 
order Basis 

Corporate 
guarantee 
on loan 
taken by 
group 
Company 

Advance 
Received 
Basis 

Advance 
Repaid 
Basis 

7. Justification for entering 
into such contracts or 
arrangements or 
transactions 

The 
transaction 
relating to 
reimburseme
nt of actual 
expenses 
to/from 
Related 
Parties. 

The 
transaction 
relating to 
reimburse
ment of 
actual 
expenses 
to/from 
Related 
Parties. 

The 
transaction 
relating to 
reimburse
ment of 
actual 
expenses 
to/from 
Related 
Parties. 

The 
transaction 
relating to 
reimburseme
nt of actual 
expenses 
to/from 
Related 
Parties. 

The 
transaction 
relating to 
reimburse
ment of 
actual 
expenses 
to/from 
Related 
Parties. 

8. Date of approval by the 
Board (DD/MM/YYYY) 

29.05.2024 29.05.2024 29.05.2024 29.05.2024 29.05.2024 

9. Amount paid as advances, 
if any 

- - - - - 



10. Date on which the 
resolution was passed in 
general meeting as 
required under first 
proviso to section 188 
(DD/MM/YYYY) 

- - - - - 

11. SRN of MGT-14 - - - - - 

 
 

1. Corporate 
identity 
number (CIN) 

 
U51109DL2008PTC177265 

2. Name(s) of the 
related party 

Kota Trucks Private Limited. 

3. Nature of the 
relationship 

- 

4. Nature of  
contracts/ 
arrangements/ 
transactions 

Purchase 
of Rs. 
70.92 
Lakhs 

Sale of Rs 
98.83 
Lakhs 

Lease (Rent Received) Rs. 
19.80 Lakhs 

Guarantee Fees Rs. 
19.90 Lakhs 

5. Duration of 
the contracts/ 
arrangements/ 
transactions 

1 Year 1 year 60 months from 1st April 
2019 

1 year 

6. Salient terms 
of the 
contracts or 
arrangements 
or 
transactions, 
including 
actual/ 
expected 
contractual 
amount 

On 
Purchase 
order Basis 

On Sales 
order Basis 

1. As per the Lease 
agreement dated 1.4.2019 
for lending property 
situated at Plot No. A165, 
Jhalawar Road Road No. 5, 
Indraprastha Industrial 
Area, Kota, Rajasthan. 2. 
As per the Lease agreement 
dated 1.4.2019 for lending 
property situated at Khasra 
No. 1045/ 1049 NH – 12, 
Village Sathoor, Tehsil, 
Hindoli, Bundi, Rajasthan 
 

Corporate guarantee 
on loan taken by 
group Company 

7. Justification 
for entering 
into such 
contracts or 
arrangements 
or transactions 

The 
transaction 
relating to 
reimburse
ment of 
actual 
expenses 
to/from 
Related 
Parties. 

The 
transaction 
relating to 
reimburse
ment of 
actual 
expenses 
to/from 
Related 
Parties. 

The transaction relating to 
reimbursement of actual 
expenses to/from Related 
Parties. 

The transaction 
relating to 
reimbursement of 
actual expenses 
to/from Related 
Parties. 

8. Date of  
approval by the 
board 
(DD/MM/YYY

29.05.2024 29.05.2024 28.05.2019 29.05.2024 



Y) 

9. Amount paid 
as advances, if 
any 

- - - - 

10. Date on which 
the resolution 
was passed in 
general 
meeting as  
required  
under first 
proviso to 
section 188 
(DD/MM/YYY
Y) 

- - - - 

11. SRN of MGT-
14 

- -  - 

 



1. Limited Liability 
Partnership 
number (LLPIN) 

 
AAS-7958 

2. Name(s) of the 
related party 

GD Automobiles LLP 

3. Nature of the 
relationship 

- 

4. Nature of  
contracts/ 
arrangements/ 
transactions 

Purchase of Rs. 
3.86 Lakhs 

Sale of Rs 0.46 
Lakhs 

Payment of Lease Rent 
Rs. 2.83 Lakhs 

5. Duration of the 
contracts/ 
arrangements/ 
transactions 

1 Year 1 year - 

6. Salient terms of the 
contracts or 
arrangements or 
transactions, 
including actual/ 
expected 
contractual amount 

On Purchase order 
Basis 

On Sales order Basis As per the Lease 
Agreement 
 

7. Justification for 
entering into such 
contracts or 
arrangements or 
transactions 

The transaction 
relating to 
reimbursement of 
actual expenses 
to/from Related 
Parties. 

The transaction relating 
to reimbursement of 
actual expenses to/from 
Related Parties. 

The transaction 
relating to 
reimbursement of 
actual expenses 
to/from Related 
Parties. 

8. Date of approval 
(DD/MM/YYYY) 

29.05.2024 29.05.2024 - 

9. Amount paid as 
advances, if any 

- - - 

10. Date on which the 
resolution was 
passed in general 
meeting as required 
under first 
proviso to section 
188 
(DD/MM/YYYY) 

- - - 

11. SRN of MGT-14 - -  

 
 
 
 
 
 



1. Permanent Account Number (PAN) AAFPA9581K 

2. Name(s) of the related party Smt. Mala Agarwal 

3. Nature of the relationship Relative of Key Managerial 
Personnel 

4. Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions Payment of Lease Rent 0.60 
Lakhs 

5. Duration of the contracts/arrangements/ 
transactions 

From 1st April 2017 

6. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 
transactions, including actual / expected 
contractual amount 

As per the Lease Agreement 
 

7. Justification for entering into such contracts or 
arrangements or transactions 

The transaction relating to 
reimbursement of actual 
expenses to/from Related Parties. 

8. Date of approval by the board (DD/MM/YYYY) 30.05.2017 

9. Amount paid as advances, if any - 

10. Date on which the resolution was passed in general 
meeting as required under first proviso to section 
188 (DD/MM/YYYY) 

- 

11. SRN of MGT-14 - 

 

 

1. Permanent Account Number (PAN) ADPPA2143Q 

2. Name(s) of the related party Mr. Saurabh Agarwal 

3. Nature of the relationship Whole-time director/ CFO/ 
Promoter 

4. Nature of  
contracts/ arrangements/ transactions 

Payment of Lease Rent 6.72 
Lakhs 

5. Duration of the contracts/arrangements/ 
transactions 

From 1st April 2019 

6. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements 
or transactions, including actual / expected 
contractual amount 

As per the Lease Agreement 
 

7. Justification for entering into such contracts or 
arrangements or transactions 

The transaction relating to 
reimbursement of actual 
expenses to/from Related Parties. 



8. Date of approval by the board (DD/MM/YYYY) 28.05.2019 

9. Amount paid as advances, if any - 

10. Date on which the resolution was passed in 
general m ee t ing  as required under first 
proviso to section 188 (DD/MM/YYYY) 

- 

11. SRN of MGT-14 - 

 
By the order of the Board 
For KALYANI COMMERCIALS LIMITED 
 
 
Sd/- 
Sourabh Agarwal 
(Whole Time Director)  
DIN: 02168346 
Off. Address: BG-223, Sanjay Gandhi Transport Nagar, 
GT Karnal Road, Delhi-110042 
 
 
Sd/- 
Shankar Lal Agarwal  
(Managing Director) DIN: 01341113 
Off. Address: BG-223, Sanjay Gandhi Transport Nagar,  
GT Karnal Road, Delhi-110042 



 

Form No. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

  FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2025 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies 

[Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 
 

To, 
The Members, 
Kalyani Commercial Limited 

 
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliances of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s Kalyani Commercials Limited 
(hereinafter called as “the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 
(hereinafter called as the “period under review”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner 
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

 
Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the Company and the information provided by the 
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial 
Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering 
the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 has complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper board-processes and Compliance-
Mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner but subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company for the period under review, checked the applicability of the 
provisions of: 

 
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 

 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under; 

 
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 

 
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there 

sunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and 
External Commercial Borrowings; Not applicable during the period under review. 

 
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): - 
 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 
 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015; 

 
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) 

Regulations, 2018; 



 

 
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018; 
Not applicable during the period under review. 

 
(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits 

and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; Not Applicable during the reporting 
period. 

 
(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible 

Securities) Regulations, 2021; 
Not Applicable during the period under review. 

 
(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with 
client; Not applicable during the period under review. 

 
(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 

Regulations, 2021; Not Applicable during the period under review. 
 

(j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 
2018; Not Applicable during the period under review. 

 
 

(vi) Other laws specifically applicable to the Company 
 
Based on the information provided by the Company, following Labour laws are 
applicable on the Company: 
a) Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972; 
b) Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 
c) Employees Provident Fund Act, 1952; 
d) Payment of Wages Act, 1936 
e) Motor Vehicles Act, 1988; 
f) The Motor Transport Workers Act, 1961; 
g) The Explosive Act, 1884; 
h) The Petroleum Act 1934; 
i) Air (Prevention and Controlled of Pollution) Act, 1981; 
j) Water (Prevention and Controlled of Pollution) Act, 1974; 
k) Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Cess Act, 1977;  
l) Environment (Protection) Act, 1986;  

 
The management has also represented and confirmed that all the laws, rules, regulations, 
orders, standards and guidelines as are specifically applicable to the Company relating to 
Industry / Labour, etc., have been complied with. 

 
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
 Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
 The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchanges; Not 

Applicable during the period under review as no new listing agreement has been 
executed. 

 



 

During the period under review and as per the explanations and clarifications given to us and 
the representations made by the management, the Company has complied with the provisions 
of applicable Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. The 
attention is drawn to the following points: - 

 
 During the year the board of directors has noticed that the renewal of registration of 

the independent directors of the company in the Independent Directors' Databank 
maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (IICA) were expired and the 
application for renewal for a further period after expiry of Registration tenure is not 
filed within timeline prescribed under the Rule 6 of The Companies (Appointment and 
Qualifications of the Directors) Rules, 2014. 
 

 During the year company has created, Modified and Satisfied the following charges of 
the company: 

 
1. On 25/09/2024, the company has created charge by way of hypothecation on the 

current assets of the company with Axis Bank Limited to secure the amount of Rs. 
2,50,00,000/-. 

2. On 14/10/2024, the company has modified its charge already created with Axis 
Bank Limited for giving effect to increase it sanction limit and to secure the amount 
of Rs. 7,50,00,000/-. 

3. On 14/10/2024, the company has created charge by way of hypothecation on the 
current assets of the company with Axis Bank Limited to secure the amount of Rs. 
2,00,00,000/-. 

4. On 21/01/2025, the company has modified its charge already created with Tata 
Capital Limited for giving effect to increase it sanction limit and to secure the 
amount of Rs. 4,00,00,000/-. 

 
 
 The Company has made investments of ₹1,80,50,000/- in Ganganagar Vehicles 

Private Limited and ₹25,00,000/- in Ganganagar Automobiles Private Limited. 
Further, the Company has provided corporate guarantees of ₹74,09,54,000/- in favour 
of Ganganagar Vehicles Private Limited and ₹5,10,68,000/- in favour of Ganganagar 
Automobiles Private Limited. During the year, the company has exceeded the limit as 
prescribed under section 186 of Companies Act, 2013. Hence, the Company is in the 
process of obtaining the requisite approvals from the members in respect of the 
aforesaid transactions, in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.  

 
We further report that 
 
1. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 

Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There is no changes in the 
composition of the Board of Directors took place during the period under review. 

 
2. Adequate notices were given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Also, agenda 

and detailed notes on Agenda were sent to all the Directors at least seven days in advance. 



 

Also, a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the 
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

 
3. There are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and 

operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 
regulations and guidelines. 

 
For GA & Associates Company Secretaries LLP 
 
 
 
Sd/- 
Parul Khetrapal 
(Designated Partner) 
COP No. 22076 
Membership No. A37801 
PR No. 5860/2024                                                                       Date: 03.09.2025 
UDIN: A037801G001151760                                                                Place: New Delhi 
 
 
 
Note: This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure 
and forms an integral part of this report. 
  



 

‘Annexure I' 
To, 
The Members 
Kalyani Commercials Limited 
BG-223, Sanjay Gandhi Transport Nagar 
GT Karnal Road, New Delhi-110042 
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records 
based on our audit. 

 
2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain 

reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial 
records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are 
reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices, we 
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

 
3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and 

Books of Accounts of the Company. 
 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the 
Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

 
5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 

regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was 
limited to the verification of procedure on test basis. 

 
For GA & Associates Company Secretaries LLP 
 
 
 
Sd/- 
Parul Khetrapal 
(Designated Partner) 
COP No. 22076 
Membership No. A37801 
PR No. 5860/2024                                                                       Date: 03.09.2025 
UDIN: A037801G001151760                                                                Place: New Delhi 
 



Annexure-III 

Information as per Section 197 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014 Details of Top Ten Employees in terms of Remuneration Drawn 

S. 
No. 

Name of 
Employe 
e 

Designati 
on 

Remuner 
ation 
Received 
(in Rs.) 

Nature 
of 
Employ 
ment 

Qualificat 
ions 

Exper 
ience 

Date  of 
commence 
ment of 
employmen 
t 

Ag 
e 

Last 
Employm 
ent held 

Percentage 
of shares 
held 

Whether 
relative of 
any 
Director/ 
Manager 

1. Manish 
Jhamb 

General 
Manager 
(Sales) 

1297823 Regular Graduate 15 
Years 

01/07/2002 53 Uasha Arth 
Movers 

Nil No 

2. Jayant 
Sharma 

Deputy 
General 
Manager 
(Spare) 

288946 Regular Graduate 14 
Years 

12/10/2011 58 Pushpa 
Motors 

Nil No 

3. Anil 
Singh 
Shekhaw 
at 

Business 
Manager 
(Sales) 

824452 Regular M.B. A 6 
Years 

16/08/2017 41 Eicher 
Motors 

Nil No 

4. Ashutosh 
Bagadia 

Manager 6,00,000 Regular Graduate 03 
Years 

01/06/2020 42 NA Nil No 

5. Namita 
Bagadia 

Manager 6,00,000 Regular Graduate 3 
Years 

01/06/2020 40 NA Nil No 

 Pawan 
Kumar 
Mishra 

Manager 
(Worksho 
p) 

625513 Regular Diploma 
(Mechanic 
al 
Engineer) 

6 
years 

06/12/2017 41 N.A. Nil No 

6. Mahipal 
Singh 
Hada 

Deputy 
General 
Manager 
(Spare 
Parts) 

675900 Regular M.A. 15 
Years 

02/09/2002 45 N.A. Nil No 

7. Brijendra 
Swaroop 

Manager 
(Worksho 
p) 

670712 Regular Graduate 1 Year 07/02/2022 44 N.A. Nil No 



8. Manoj 
Kumar 
Goutam 

Manager 
(Worksho 
p) 

712000 Regular B.Tech 15 
Years 

08/01/2022 41 N.A. Nil No 

9. Prabhjot 
Singh 

Manager 560000 Regular Graduate 05 
Years 

10/09/2018 30 N.A. Nil No 

 
 

 
By the order of the Board 
For Kalyani Commercials Limited 

 

 

Sd/- 
Sourabh Agarwal 
(Whole Time Director) 
DIN: 02168346 
Off. Address: BG-223, Sanjay Gandhi Transport 
Nagar, GT Karnal Road, Delhi-110042 

Sd/- 
Shankar Lal Agarwal 
(Managing Director) 
DIN: 01341113 
Off. Address: BG-223, Sanjay Gandhi Transport 
Nagar, GT Karnal Road, Delhi-110042 

Date: 03rd September, 2025 
Place: New Delhi 



 
 

 
Annexure-IV 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report 
 

At Kalyani Commercials Limited, we constantly strive to trade products and technology-led 
services that enable our customers and stakeholders to Rise. By focusing on customer 
requirement, delivering accessible technology, innovating and enhancing people capabilities, we 
continue to drive growth in the domestic market. 

 
INDUSTRY OVERVIEW 

 
India emerged as the fastest-growing major economy globally during FY 2024–25, with an 
estimated real GDP growth of 6.5%. This robust performance was primarily driven by strong 
momentum in the construction, trade, and financial services sectors. Looking ahead, the Indian 
economy is projected to sustain its growth trajectory, with a real GDP growth forecast of 6.5% 
for FY 2025–26. Rural demand is expected to remain resilient, supported by favorable 
agricultural output. Additionally, improved business sentiment and higher capacity utilization 
are anticipated to catalyse increased investments in the manufacturing sector. However, global 
economic uncertainties pose a potential risk to the overall outlook. India continues to present a 
compelling long-term growth opportunity, underpinned by strong macroeconomic 
fundamentals and a large domestic market. 

 
OUR INDUSTRY SEGMENT 

 
The Indian automobile industry has historically been a good indicator of how well the economy 
is doing, as the automobile sector plays a key role in both macroeconomic expansion and 
technological advancement. The two-wheelers segment dominates the market in terms of 
volume, owing to a growing middle class and a huge percentage of India’s population being 
young. Moreover, the growing interest of companies in exploring the rural markets further aided 
the growth of the sector. The rising logistics and passenger transportation industries are driving 
up demand for commercial vehicles. Future market growth is anticipated to be fueled by new 
trends including the electrification of vehicles, particularly three-wheelers and small passenger 
automobiles. 

India enjoys a strong position in the global heavy vehicles market as it is the largest tractor 
producer, second-largest bus manufacturer, and third-largest heavy truck manufacturer in the 
world. India’s annual production of automobiles in FY24 was 25.9 million vehicles. India has a 
strong market in terms of domestic demand and exports. In April 2025, the total production of 
passenger vehicles*, three-wheelers, two-wheelers, and quadricycles was 23,58,041 units. 

 
Indian Automobile Sector 

 
The Indian auto industry recognizes the importance of reducing dependence on imported oil, 
enhancing road safety and most importantly, ensuring clean air. Over the years, the industry has 
made significant investments in indigenization of technologies in the conventional vehicles 
space e.g. meeting BS-VI in 3 years. In FY 2024- 25, the industry has implemented BS6.2 emission 
norms in India. The Government has notified Electric vehicle technology and Hydrogen fuel cell 
technology as advanced automotive technology under PLI (Production Linked Incentive) 
scheme and has approved E-Vehicle policy to promote India as a manufacturing destination for 
e-vehicles. This will provide Indian consumers with access to latest technology, boost the Make 
in India initiative, strengthen the EV ecosystem by promoting healthy competition amongst EV 
players leading to high production volumes, economies of scale, lower production cost, a 
reduction in our crude oil imports, and hence lower trade deficit and positive impact on 
environment. 



 
 

 
Indian Automobile Sector in Financial Year 2024-25 

 
In FY23, total automobile exports from India stood at 47,61,487. This sector's share of the 
national GDP increased from 2.77% in 1992-1993 to around 7.1% presently. It employs about 
19 million people directly and indirectly. India is also a prominent auto exporter and has strong 
export growth expectations for the near future. In addition, several initiatives by the 
Government of India such as the Automotive Mission Plan 2026, scrappage policy, and 
production-linked incentive scheme in the Indian market are expected to make India one of the 
global leaders in the two-wheeler and four-wheeler market by 2022. 

 
Over ten years between FY 2013-14 and FY 2023-24, the Utility Vehicle (UV) segment has been 
a key driver of Passenger Vehicle (PV) growth. FY2014-24: UV grew at CAGR 17% vs PV which 
grew at CAGR 5.4%. UV, as share of PV, has increased from 21% in FY 2013-14 to 59.7% in 
FY2023-24 and 60%-65% of total PV sales in FY 2024-25. 

 
The long-term growth outlook for the Indian Auto Industry is positive, driven by robust 
economic growth outlook, focused Government policies with vision for 2047, Government's 
focus on road and infrastructure development, increasing income levels, current low levels of 
vehicle penetration, rapid urbanization and a large, young and aspiring population. 

 
BUSINESS 

 
The Company is engaged in business of trading of automobiles, motorcars, lorries, buses, vans, 
motorcycles, cycle-cars, motor, scooters carriages and vehicles of all descriptions, whether 
propelled or assisted by means of petrol, diesel, spirit, steam, gas and other components and 
spare-part of such vehicles of Heavy Commercial Vehicles, Three Wheelers and servicing 
(Dealership of Bajaj and TATA), Petroleum Product Dealership. 

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS 
 

India being one of the largest automobile markets in the world, has a bright future because of 
several factors like rapid urbanization, Car buyers getting younger, growing middle class, overall 
growth of other industries, infrastructure development and the improved road infrastructure. 
This along with rising disposable income, aspirations for a better lifestyle and a slew of new 
product launches lined up by companies would aid overall increase in sales volumes. The 
Company, with its wide portfolio is expected to benefit from the same. Further, per capital 
penetration at around eighteen cars per thousand is among lowest in the world. This growing 
consumerism is expected to lead to an increase in car penetration. 

The Indian automotive industry continues to be recognized as a sunrise sector and a champion 
industry, owing to its significant contribution to the national economy. In FY 2024–25, the sector 
contributed around 7.1% to India’s GDP and nearly 49% of the country’s manufacturing GDP, 
further strengthening its position as a key growth driver. Passenger Vehicles achieved another 
record milestone with sales of 4.3 million units, reflecting a growth of 2% over the previous year, 
supported by strong demand in the Utility Vehicle segment, higher disposable incomes, easy 
credit availability, and a steady stream of new launches. Commercial Vehicles, however, reported 
a marginal decline of 1.2% in domestic retail sales, although exports grew by a robust 23% to 
0.81 lakh units, highlighting India’s growing role as a manufacturing hub. The Three-Wheeler 
segment witnessed healthy momentum with total sales of 7.41 lakh units, compared to 6.94 lakh 
units in FY 2023–24, led by passenger three-wheelers which grew by 8.6% and e-rickshaw sales 
which surged by nearly 60%. The industry also benefitted from the easing of the global 



 
 

 
semiconductor shortage, with supply improving to nearly 85–90% of requirements, enabling 
smoother production schedules compared to the disruption seen in earlier years. Overall, FY 
2024–25 marked another year of resilience and growth for the Indian automobile sector, 
underscoring its critical role in driving India’s economic progress and its steady transition 
towards cleaner and advanced mobility solutions. 

 

 
Threats 

The industry company faces several challenges that could potentially impact its growth and 
profitability. Intense competition within the industry from established players and new entrants 
poses a risk to market share and revenue. Economic volatility and shifting consumer preferences 
may affect consumer spending patterns and demand for automobiles. Regulatory changes could 
lead to increased compliance costs and impact product offerings. Supply chain disruptions, 
cybersecurity risks, and technological advancements by competitors pose additional threats. 
Geopolitical uncertainties, environmental concerns, and the potential for health crises also add to 
the risk landscape. Your Company recognizes these threats and is committed to implementing 
proactive measures to mitigate their impact and ensure sustainable success in this dynamic 
market. In response to the various threats faced by our esteemed automobile industry company, 
we have devised a comprehensive set of proactive solutions. Embracing innovation and 
adaptability, we are determined to safeguard our growth and profitability while addressing 
potential challenges. To stay ahead in the competitive landscape, we will focus on innovative 
product development, investing in cutting-edge research and development to introduce vehicles 
that align with shifting consumer preferences. Through strategic pricing and targeted marketing 
campaigns, we aim to enhance our market presence and engage our customers effectively. 

In anticipation of potential health crises and geopolitical challenges, we will develop 
comprehensive risk management strategies and contingency plans. By preparing for various 
scenarios, we aim to navigate uncertainties effectively. 

In conclusion, these solutions reflect our unwavering commitment to resilience, sustainability, 
and customer-centricity. As we implement these measures, Your Company is confident in its 
ability to thrive in the ever-changing automotive landscape, ensuring a prosperous and 
transformative future for our company. 

OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PROSPECTS 
 

India has consolidated its position as one of the fastest-growing automobile markets and is 
expected to remain the third-largest Passenger Vehicle market globally in FY 2024–25, supported 
by sustained consumer demand, rising incomes, and strong preference for Utility Vehicles. 
According to SIAM, the industry recorded moderate, single-digit growth in Passenger Vehicle 
sales during the year, achieving an all-time high of 4.3 million units. The Indian automotive sector 
continues to demonstrate immense potential and is projected to generate annual revenues in the 
range of US$ 251–283 billion by 2026, driven by robust domestic consumption, export 
opportunities, and adoption of advanced technologies. While global uncertainties and supply 
chain disruptions continue to pose short-term challenges, the industry has shown resilience, with 
recovery trends similar to those witnessed in other large markets. Increased urbanization and 
localized transport policies have further accelerated opportunities for Mobility-as-a-Service 
(MaaS), particularly in metro cities. Electric vehicles (EVs) are gaining significant traction in this 



 
 

 
shared mobility space, supported by favorable government incentives and ecosystem 
development. Companies such as Tata Motors Limited (TML) have been at the forefront of this 
transformation, entering into multiple strategic partnerships to strengthen their presence in the 
EV and new mobility solutions segment. Overall, FY 2024–25 has reinforced India’s emergence as 
a global automotive hub, with the sector steadily transitioning towards sustainable, technology- 
driven, and future-ready mobility. 

 
RISKS & CONCERNS 

 
The Company’s business continues to be exposed to various internal and external risks; 
accordingly, robust systems, processes, and review mechanisms have been instituted to actively 
monitor, manage, and mitigate such risks. In FY 2024–25, the automotive sector faced challenges 
from economic fluctuations, inflationary pressures, evolving regulatory requirements, and supply 
chain disruptions linked to global geopolitical developments. These risks had the potential to 
affect consumer sentiment, reduce credit availability, and moderate vehicle demand. However, 
the industry effectively countered these headwinds through strong risk management practices, 
technology adoption, and policy support. The implementation of Bharat NCAP (BNCAP) norms, 
the Government’s sustained thrust on Electric Vehicle (EV) adoption, and the incentives under 
the Production Linked Incentive (PLI) scheme created a more favorable environment for long- 
term growth. Despite near-term pressures, the Indian automotive sector in FY 2024–25 
reinforced its resilience, adaptability, and growth trajectory, supported by innovation, 
sustainability initiatives, and strategic collaborations. With these enablers, the industry is well- 
positioned to continue its transformation, strengthen India’s status as a global automotive hub, 
and contribute significantly to the nation’s economic development and technological 
advancement. 

HUMAN RESOURCES 
 

The Company has put in the best efforts to provide a safe and conducive working environment 
and is committed to ensuring highest standards of safety in the workplace. We believe that safe 
work practices lead to better performance, motivated work force and higher productivity. 

 
The Company’s relations with the employees continued to be cordial. 

 
 

FINANCIAL RESULTS 
 

The Financial performance of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025 is 
summarized below: - 

(In INR Lakhs 
Rupees, except EPS) 

Particulars For the year ended 
31.03.2025 

For the year ended 
31.03.2023 

Total Revenue & Other 
Income 

38,883.43 27,923.16 

Total Expenses 38,547.41 27,596.06 



 
 

 
Profit Before Tax & 
Extraordinary Item 

336.02 327.10 

Extraordinary Item 0.00 0.00 

Tax Expenses 
 

Current Tax 
- Deferred Tax 

Liability (Net) 
- Income Tax Earlier 

Year 

 
 
 
 

1.38 

11.29 

 
 
 
 

85.50 

4.86 

Profit / Loss For The Year 
After Tax 

233.25 236.33 

Share of Profit or loss from 
associate 

- - 

Total Other 
Comprehensive Income / 

7.37 (15.99) 

Total Comprehensive 
Income / Loss 

240.63 220.35 

Other Comprehensive 
Income attributable to 

a) Parent 
b) Non-Controlling 

Interest 

 
 
 
 

- 

- 

 
 
 
 

- 

- 

Earnings Per Share (EPS) 

a) Basic 
b) Diluted 

 
23.33 

23.33 

 
23.63 

23.63 

 
SEGMENT-WISE OR PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE 

 
The company operates in two segments. Hence segment wise performance is discussed as 
follows: 

 
 Primary Segment: Business Segment 

 
Based on the guiding principles given in “Ind Accounting Standard 108 Operating segment” 
notified under Companies (Accounting standard) Rules 2006, the Company’s operating business 
are organized and managed separately according to the nature of product of Trading and Services 
provided. 



 
 

 
The Two identified reportable segments. One is Automobile segment in which trading of vehicle 
and servicing and other which includes retail outlet of petroleum products (BPCL). 

 
 Secondary Segment: Geographical segment 

 
The analysis of Geographical segment is based on the geographical location i.e. domestic and 
overseas markets of the customers, 

 
Secondary Segment Reporting (By Geographical segment) 

 
The following is the distributions of the company’s consolidated revenue from operation (net) 
by Geographical markets, regardless of where the goods were produced: 

(Rs. In 
Lacs) 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 

Revenue from Domestic Market 38730.46 27795.47 

Revenue from Overseas Market 0.00 0.00 

Total 38730.46 27795.47 

 
Geographical segment wise receivables: 

 
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 

Receivables from Domestic Market 2941.53 1884.02 

Receivables from Overseas Market 0.00 0.00 

Total 2941.53 1884.02 

 
Geographical segment wise Fixed Assets: 

 
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 

In India 221.20 237.53 

Outside India 0.00 0.00 

Total 221.20 237.53 

 
 Segment accounting polices: 

In addition to the significant accounting policies applicable to the business segment, the 
accounting policies in relation to segment accounting are as under: 

 
i) Segment revenue & expenses: 

 
Joint revenue and expenses of segments are allocated amongst them on a reasonable basis. All 
other segment revenue and expenses are directly attributable to the segments. 

 
ii) Segment assets and liabilities: 

 
Segment assets include all operating assets used by a segment and consist principally of 
operating cash, receivables, inventories and fixed assets, net of allowance and provisions, which 
are reported as direct off sets in the balance sheet. Segment Liabilities include all operating 
Liabilities and consist principally of trade payables & accrued liabilities. Segment assets and 



 
 

 
liabilities do not include deferred income taxes except in the division of Commercial Vehicle. 
While most of the assets/liabilities can be directly attributed to individual segments, the carrying 
amount of certain assets/liabilities pertaining to two more segments are allocated to the 
segments on a reasonable basis. 

 
iii) Inter segment sales: 

 
Inter segment sales between operating segments are accounted for at market price. These 
transactions are eliminated in consolidation. The main division is Ganganagar Motors (A 
division of Commercials Vehicles) and funds provided by the Ganganagar Motors to other 
division and interests on such balances are not charged. 

 
Other segment having revenue from sale of external customers in excess of 10% of total revenue 
of all segments is shown separately and others are shown in other segment. 

 
iv) Information about business segments: 

For the year ending as on 31st March, 2025. 

(Rs. In Lacs) 

Particulars Automobile Others Total 

Curr. 
Year 

Prev. 
Year 

Curr. 
Year 

Prev. 
Year 

Curr. 
Year 

Prev. 
Year 

Segment Revenue :       

External sales/income (Net) 38071.29 27070.53 659.17 724.94 38730.46 33198.48 

Other receipt 152.96 125.69 0.00 2.00 152.96 25.32 

 
Total Revenue 

 
38224.25 

 
27196.22 

 
659.17 

 
726.94 

 
38883.42 

 
33223.81 

 
 

Segment Results: 

      

Segments results 817.40 711.36 6.61 -9.51 824.01 701.85 

Operation profit before Interest 817.40 711.36 6.61 -9.51 824.01 701.85 

Financial exp. (487.83) (374.94) (0.16) (0.18) (487.99) (374.76) 

Exceptional Item 0.00 0.00 
  

0.00 0.00 

Income tax current/Earlier Year (101.39) (90.36) 0.00 0.00 (101.39) (90.36) 

Deferred tax expenses (1.37) (0.41) 0.00 0.00 (1.37) (0.41) 

OCI (Net) 7.37 -15.98 0.00 0.00 7.37 -15.98 
 

Net Profit 
 

234.18 
 

246.02 
 

6.45 
 

-9.69 
 

240.63 
 

236.33 

Other Information:       

Segment Assets 7521.07 4623.34 169.98 154.01 7691.05 4777.35 



 
 

 
Total Assets 7521.07 4623.34 169.98 154.01 7691.05 4775.35 

Segments Liabilities:       

Share Capital 100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 
Reserve & Surplus 1745.24 1511.05 149.06 142.62 1894.30 1653.67 

Secured & Unsecured Loan 
(including current maturity) 

 
5186.10 

 
2348.96 

 
0.00 

 
0.00 

 
5186.10 

 
2348.96 

 
Segment liabilities 

 
510.21 

 
663.23 

 
0.44 

 
11.39 

 
510.65 

 
674.62 

Total Equity/ Liabilities 7541.55 4621.34 149.50 154.01 7691.05 4777.25 

Capital Expenditure 1.14 11.65 0.00 0.00 1.14 11.65 

Depreciation 28.29 45.92 0.00 0.00 28.29 45.92 

 
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUENCY 

 
Your Company has an effective system of accounting and administrative controls supported by 
an internal audit system with proper and adequate system of internal check and controls to 
ensure safety and proper recording of all assets of the Company and their proper and authorized 
utilization. 

 
As part of the effort to evaluate the effectiveness of the internal control systems, your Company's 
internal audit department reviews all the control measures on a periodic basis and recommends 
improvements, wherever appropriate. The internal audit department is manned by highly 
qualified and experienced personnel and reports directly to the Audit Committee of the Board. 
The Audit Committee regularly reviews the audit findings as well as the, an Information Security 
Assurance Service is also provided by independent external professionals. Based on their 
recommendations, the Company has implemented a number of control measures both in 
operational and accounting related areas, apart from security related measures. 

DETAIL OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIO 

 
 

 
Sr. No. 

 

 
Ratio 

 

 
Numerator 

 
Denomina 
tor 

 

 
2025 

 

 
2024 

 
% of 
Variance 

 
Reason for 
Variance 

 
 
 
 

 
1 

 
 
 

 
Debt Equity 
Ratio 

 
 

 
Debt 

consisting of 
borrowings 

 
 
 

 
Total 

Equity 

 
 
 
 

 
2.60 

 
 
 
 

 
1.34 

 
 
 
 

 
94.14% 

 
Due to 
higher 

availment of 
limits at the 
end of year 

 
 
 
 

2 

 
 
 

Return on 
Equity Ratio 

Profit for the 
year less 

Preference 
dividend (if 

any) 

 
 
 

Average 
equity 

 
 
 
 

12.45% 

 
 
 
 

17.19% 

 
 
 
 

-27.58% 

 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3 

 
 
 

Trade 
Payable 
Turnover 
Ratio 

Cost of 
Purchase = 

Opening 
Inventory+ 
purchases- 

Closing 
Inventory 

 
 
 
 

Average 
trade 

payable 

 
 
 
 
 
 

143.83 

 
 
 
 
 
 

15.34 

 
 
 
 
 
 

837.73% 

Due to 
higher 

availment of 
limits and 

decrease in 
creditors in 
current year 

 
 
 
 

 
4 

 
 

 
Net Capital 
Turnover 
Ratio 

 
 

 
Revenue 

from 
operations 

 
 
 

 
Working 
Capital 

 
 
 
 

 
25.33 

 
 
 
 

 
22.33 

 
 
 
 

 
13.45% 

 

 

 
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

 
This report describing the Companies activities, projections about future estimates, assumptions 
with regard to global economic conditions, government policies, etc. may contain “forward 
looking statements” based on the information available with the company. Forward-looking 
statements are based on certain assumptions and expectations of future events. These statements 
are subject to certain risks and uncertainties. The company cannot guarantee that these 
assumptions and expectations are accurate or will be realized. The actual results may be different 
from those expressed or implied since the company's operations are affected by the many 
external and internal factors, which are beyond the control of the management. 

 
Hence the company assumes no responsibility in respect of forward-looking statements that may 
be amended or modified in future on the basis of subsequent developments, information or 
events. 

 

 
By the order of the Board 
For Kalyani Commercials Limited 

 
 
 

 

Sd/- 
Sourabh Agarwal 
(Whole Time Director) 
DIN: 02168346 
Off. Address: BG-223, Sanjay Gandhi 
Transport 
Nagar, GT Karnal Road, Delhi-110042 

Sd/- 
Shankar Lal Agarwal 
(Managing Director) 
DIN: 01341113 
Off. Address: BG-223, Sanjay Gandhi 
Transport 
Nagar, GT Karnal Road, Delhi-110042 

 
 

Date: 3rd September, 2025 
Place: New Delhi 



ANNEXURE V 

CERTIFICATE FROM WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

 

Under Regulation 17(8) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

 

To,  
The Board of Directors,  
Kalyani Commercials Limited 
 
1. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement of Kalyani Commercials 

Limited for the financial year ended as on 31st March 2025 and that to the best of our knowledge 
and belief:  

a) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 
contain statements that might be misleading; 

b) These statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity’s affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.  

 
2. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company 

during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct. 
 

3. We accept the responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 
reporting and have evaluated the effectiveness of company’s internal control systems pertaining to 
financial reporting. We have not come across any reportable deficiencies in the design and 
operation of such internal controls. 

 
4. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee: -  

 
i. that there are no significant Changes in internal control over financial reporting during the 

year;  
ii. that there are no significant Changes in accounting policies during the year; and  
iii. that there are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware. 

 
 
Sd/- 
Sourabh Agarwal  
(Whole Time Director & Chief Financial officer) 
 
Date: 03.09.2025 
Place: New Delhi 
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________________ 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
  
TO THE MEMBERS OF KALYANI COMMERCIALS LIMITED 
 
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of KALYANI 
COMMERCIALS LIMITED (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 
31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows ended on that date, and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter 
referred to as the “standalone financial statements”). 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
March 31, 2025, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows 
for the year ended on that date. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing (“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial 
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of 
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements. 
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Key Audit Matters 
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 
in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We 
have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in 
our report. 
 
KEY AUDIT MATTERS  
 

AUDITORS’ RESPONSE 

1. Accuracy of recognition, measurement, 
presentation and disclosures of revenues and 
other related balances 

Principal Audit Procedures 
We assessed the Company’s process to 
identify the impact   of the revenue 
accounting standard. 
Our audit approach consisted testing of the 
design and operating effectiveness of the 
internal 
controls and substantive testing as follows: 

 Evaluated the design of internal 
controls relating to implementation of 
the revenue accounting standard. 

 Selected a sample and tested the 
operating effectiveness of the internal 
control, relating to identification of 
the distinct   performance obligations 
and determination of transaction 
price. We carried out a combination 
of procedures involving enquiry, 
observation, re-performance and 
inspection of evidence in respect of 
operation of these controls. 

 Tested the relevant information of 
management controls relating to sales 
and service and  other related 
information used in recording and 
disclosing revenue in accordance 
with the revenue accounting 
standard. 
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, 
Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, 
Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the standalone 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 
 
Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we 
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the 
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard. 
 
 
 Management’s Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and 
fair view of the financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and 
other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 
In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do 
so. 
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The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process. 

 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial 
statements. 

 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 
• Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has 
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls. 

 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management. 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern. 
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• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial 

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in 
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements 
in the standalone financial statements. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 

 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the 
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, 
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh 
the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) as amended 

issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in 
“Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to 
the extent applicable. 

 
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 
 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 
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c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account. 

 
d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS 

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of The Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014. 

  
e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 

2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as 
on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the 
Act. 

 
f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 

the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy 
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial 
reporting. 

 
g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 

with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 
 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in 
accordance with the provisions of section 197(16) of the Act. 

 
h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

 
i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial 

position 
  

ii. The Company did not have any long term contract including derivative contract for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

 
iii. There was no amount required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company. 
 
iv. (a) The Management has represented (refer note 44) that, to the best of its 

knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the 
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aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds 
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in 
any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, 
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in 
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) 
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; 

 
(b) The Management has represented (refer note 44), that, to the best of its knowledge 
and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have 
been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity 
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 
(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to 
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided 
under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement. 

 
v. The company during the year has not declared or paid any dividend.  

 
i. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ report under Section 197(16) of 

the Act: 
In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the 
remuneration paid during the current year by the Company to its directors is in accordance 
with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director by the 
Company, is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the 
Act which are required to be commented upon by us. 
 

j.   Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting 
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail 
(edit log) facility, and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant 
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not 
come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.  

 Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory 
requirements for record retention. 
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For K. Prasad & Company. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 002755N 
 
 
CA. Manmohan Mahipal 
Partner 
Membership No. 507113 
 
UDIN : 25507113BMNYRM1032 
Place : Kota 
Dated:  29.05.2025 
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ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITOR’S   REPORT 
 
Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on other legal and 
Regulatory requirements” of the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial 
Statements of Kalyani Commercials Limited (“The Company’’) for the year ended on 31st 
March 2025.  
 
Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the 
financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and 
explanations given to us and the books of accounts and other records examined by us in the 
normal course of audit, we report that: 
 

(i) (a) Property , plant and equipment and intangible Assets . 
 

    (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Property. 

 
 (B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets 

. 
 

(C) The company has a programme of verification to cover all the items of   property, plant 
and equipment in a phased manner which in our opinion , is reasonable having regard to the 
size of the company and nature of its assets , pursuant to the programme , certain property, 
plant and equipment were  physically verified by the management  during the year . 
according to the information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were 
noticed on such verification as compared to books records. 
 
(D) The title deeds of all the immovable properties ( other than properties where the 
company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee ) are 
held in the name of the Company .  
 
(E) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use 
assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 
3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable. 
 
(F) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any 
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and 
rules made there under. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i)(e) of the Order are not 
applicable. 

 
(ii) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at end of the  year . The 

procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the management are reasonable and 
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adequate in relation to the size of the company and nature of its business. No discrepancies of 10% or 
more in aggregate for each class of inventory between physical inventory and book records were 
noticed on physical verification. Discrepancies, if any , noticed on physical verification have been 
properly dealt with in the books of account. In our opinion the coverage and procedure of such 
verification by the management is appropriate.  

 
  
 (b) The company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in 

aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets during the 
year. On the basis of information and documents provided by the Company, in our opinion the 
quarterly statements filed by the company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement 
with the books of account of the Company except minor deviations found in stock statements. The 
difference is due to valuation of obsolete or non-moving stock by the management. 

           
 (iii) (a) The Company has made investments, provided/stood guarantee and granted loans, secured or 

unsecured the details of which are given below: 
             

                       Rs.in lacs 
Particulars Investment Loans Guarantee 
A. Aggregate amount granted/provided during 
the year 

   

 - Subsidiary/Joint Venture/Associate NA NA NA 
 - Related Party (3 nos.) 0.00 1989.50 0.00 
 - Other Entity ( 1 nos.) 0.00 0.00 0.00 
B. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date 
in respect of above cases  

   

 - Subsidiary/Joint Venture/Associate 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 - Related Party (3 nos.) 205.50 509.05 7920.22 
 - Other Entity ( 1 nos.) 0.00 169.77 0.00 

  
(b) In our opinion the investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and 

conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are 
not prima facie prejudicial to the company’s interest. 

 
(c) in respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and 

payment of interest has been stipulated and repayments or receipts are regular; 
  
(d) there is no amount which is overdue for more than 90 days and reasonable steps have been taken by 

the Company for recovery of the principal amount and interest. 
 
(e) loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the year, has neither been 

renewed nor extended nor fresh loans granted to settle the over dues of existing loans given to the 
same parties, 
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(f) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation provided to us, the company has not 

granted the Loans & advances in nature of loans to promoters or related parties as defined in clause 
(76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 which are repayable on demand or without specifying 
any terms or period of repayments. 

 
(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and  

best on the audit procedures performed by us , the, company has complied with the 
provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to loans granted .The has not provided 
any  guarantees , security or made any investments during the year to the parties covered under 

section 185 and 186 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of the para 3(iv) of the order in respect 

of providing guarantees, securities or investments made are not applicable to company. 
 
(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by the 

Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the 
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits . 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable. 

 
(vi) To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government has not specified maintenance of 
cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/ services.  
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable. 
 
(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed 
statutory dues including , goods and service tax  , provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax 
, Sales Tax ,service tax,   duty of customs, duty of excess , value added tax, cess and any other material 
statutory dues applicable to the Company during the year with appropriate authorities. According to the 
information and explanations given to us, there were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of goods 
and service tax  , provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax , Sales Tax ,service tax,   duty 
of customs, duty of excess , value added tax, cess or other material statutory dues outstanding as at 31 
March 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 
 
(b). The dues outstanding in respect of Income Tax on account of disputes are as under: 

 
Name of 
the Statute 

Nature of 
Dues 

Demand 
(Rs. In 
Lakhs) 

Amount 
paid 
against 
demand 
(Rs. In 
Lakhs) 

Period to 
which the 
amount 
relates 

Forum where 
dispute is 
pending 

Income 
Tax Act, 
1961 

Income 
Tax 

5.73 0 FY 2019-20 Pending 
demand  
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Income 
Tax Act, 
1961 

Income 
Tax 

3.05 0 FY 2009-10 Pending 
demand  

Income 
Tax Act, 
1961 

Income 
Tax 

0.11 0 FY 2011-12 Pending 
demand  

 
 
(viii) The company has not surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments 
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(viii) of the Order 
is not applicable. 
 
(ix) (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to   any bank    or  

 financial institution or government during the year. The Company did not have any  
 outstanding debentures during the year. 
  
(b) According to the information and explanation given to us on the bases of our audit procedures , we 
report that the company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
government or any government  authority . 

 
(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us , the company has 
utilized the money obtained by way off term loans during the year for the purposes for which they were 
obtained . 
 
(d) According to the information and explanations given to us ,  and  the procedures performed by us , 
and on an overall examination of the financial statements  of the company , we report that no funds raised 
on short term basis have been utilized for long term purposes by the company . 
 
(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall 
examination of the financial statements of the company we report that the company has not taken any 
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or 
joint ventures as defined under Companies Act, 2013. 
 
(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report 
that the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, 
joint ventures or associate companies. 
 
(x) (a) As per information and explanations given to us the Company did not raise moneys by way of 
initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year.  Accordingly, the 
provisions of clause 3(x)(a) of the Order are not applicable. 
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(b) As per information and explanations given to us during the year, the company has not made any 
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or 
optionally convertible). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(x)(b) of the Order are not applicable. 
 
(xi) (a) As per information and explanation given to us no fraud by the Company or on the company by 
its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the period covered by our audit. 
 
(b) & (c) As not fraud has been noticed or reported during the year the provisions of clause 3(xi)(b) & 
3(xi)(c) are not applicable to file any report under section 143(12) of the Act in form ADT – 4. 
 
 (xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii)(a), 3(xii)(b), 
3(xii)(c) of the Order are not applicable. 
 
(xiii) In our opinion all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 
of Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in the financial statements etc., as 
required by the applicable accounting standards. 
 
(xiv) (a) In our opinion, the internal audit functions carried out during the year by the Company and the 
firms of Chartered Accountants appointed by the Management have been commensurate with the size of 
the Company and the nature of its business. 

 
(b) We have considered the Internal Audit reports of the Company issued till date, for the period under 
audit. 
 
(xv) On the basis of the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the 
company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its 
directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the 
Company. 
 
xvi)(a) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of  India 
Act, 1934.  
 (b)The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a 
valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934. 
 
(c) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the 
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the clause 3(xvi)(c) is not applicable. 
 
(d) According to the information and explanation provided by the Company that the Group does not have 
any CIC as part of the Group. 
 
(xvii) As per the information and explanation given to us the company has not incurred cash losses in the 
financial year covered by the audit report and in the immediately preceding financial year. 
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(xviii) As per information and explanation given to us there has been no resignation of the statutory 
auditors during the year. 
 
(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, 
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other 
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has 
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the 
audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as 
and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.  
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state 
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee 
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, 
will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.  
 
 
(xx) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and  examinations of financial 
statements regarding amounts spent/transfer the unspent amount to a fund specified in Schedule vii to the 
Act within the time limits  on corporate social Responsibility activities are not applicable to the company 
. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 20(xx)(a) & clause 20(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable. 
 

For K. Prasad & Company. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 002755N 
 
 
CA. Manmohan Mahipal 
Partner 
Membership No. 507113 
 
UDIN : 25507113BMNYRM1032 
Place : Kota 
Dated:  29.05.2025 
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of 
our report to the Members of KALYANI COMMERCIALS LIMITED) 
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of KALYANI COMMERCIALS 
LIMITED (the “Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(the “ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of 
its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by 
the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to 
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error 
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company 
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and 
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, 
based on the internal financial control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI. 
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For K. Prasad & Company. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 002755N 
 
 
CA. Manmohan Mahipal 
Partner 
Membership No. 507113 
 
UDIN : 25507113BMNYRM1032 
Place : Kota 
Dated:  29.05.2025 
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KALYANI COMMERCIALS LIMITED 

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025 
(In Rs.) 

 
Notes As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024 

 
I ASSETS 

   

Non-current assets    

(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 2,21,20,304.18 2,37,52,676.55 
(b) Capital work-in-progress  - - 
(c) Investment property 5 81,13,708.29 91,96,239.29 
(d) Right to use assets  - - 
(e) Other Intangible assets 6 1.00 1.00 
(f) Financial assets  - - 

(i) Investments 7 2,05,53,000.00 2,05,53,000.00 
(ii) Loans  - - 
(iii) Other non-current financial assets 8 - 9,86,543.67 

(g) Deferred tax assets (Net) 9 2,82,051.42 2,71,307.42 
(h) Other non-current assets 10 10,64,240.85 10,48,556.85 

Total non-current assets  5,21,33,305.74 5,58,08,324.78 

Current assets 
   

(a) Inventories 11 30,93,38,201.71 20,58,89,003.37 
(b) Financial assets    

(i) Investments    

(ii) Trade receivables 12 29,41,52,778.17 18,84,01,884.01 
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 13 24,43,696.40 1,02,03,208.92 

(iv) Bank Balances other than (iii) above 13 3,61,815.00 3,45,422.00 
(v) Other Financial assets 14 371.00 345.00 

(c) Current Tax assets  - - 
(d) Other current assets 15 11,06,75,592.68 1,70,79,232.00 

Total current assets  71,69,72,454.96 42,19,19,095.30 
Total assets  76,91,05,760.70 47,77,27,420.08 

 
II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

   

Equity    

(a) Equity share capital 16 1,00,00,000.00 1,00,00,000.00 
(b) Instruments entirely equity in nature    

(c) Other equity 17 18,94,30,297.76 16,53,67,434.45 
Total equity  19,94,30,297.76 17,53,67,434.45 

Non-current liabilities 
   

(a) Financial liabilities    

(i) Borrowings 18 28,53,279.11 31,35,142.11 

(b) Provisions 19 27,49,739.00 17,98,090.00 
Total non-current liabilities  56,03,018.11 49,33,232.11 
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Current liabilities 
   

(a) Financial liabilities    

(i) Borrowings 20 51,57,57,434.40 23,17,60,793.29 
(ii) Trade payables 21 1,53,14,082.43 3,62,36,447.01 
(iii) Lease Liabilities  - - 

(iv) Other financial liabilities 22 42,85,968.00 32,16,850.00 
(b) Other current liabilities 23 2,44,05,462.37 2,38,93,793.24 
(c) Provisions 24 43,09,497.73 23,18,870.28 

Total current liabilities  56,40,72,444.93 29,74,26,753.82 
Total liabilities  56,96,75,463.04 30,23,59,985.93 
Total equity and liabilities  76,91,05,760.70 47,77,27,420.08 

 

 
See accompanying notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
Signed in terms of our report of even date annexed 

- (0.00) 

 

For K. Prasad & Company 
Firm`s Registration No. 002755N 
Chartered Accountants 

 
Sd/- 
CA Manmohan Mahipal 
(Partner) 
M.No 507113 

 

 
Place: Kota 
Date: 29.05.2025 
UDIN: 25507113BMNYRM1032 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
Kalyani Commercials Ltd 

 

 
Sd/- Sd/- 
Shankar Lal Agarwal Sourabh Agarwal 
Managing Director Whole Time Director &CFO 
DIN: 01341113 DIN: 02168346 

 
Sd/- 
Suranjan Upadhyay 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
M. No. A1653



 

 

 
 

KALYANI COMMERCIALS LIMITED 
Registered office: BG-223, Sanjay Gandhi Transport Nagar, GT Karnal Road, New Delhi-110042 
CIN L45300DL1985PLC021453 
E-mail: kalyanicommercialslimited@gmail.com 
Website: www.kalyanicommercialsltd.com 
Ph.: 011- 43063223, 011-47060223 

 
KALYANI COMMERCIALS LIMITED 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2025 
    Amount in Rs. 
  

 
Particulars 

 

 
Note No 

 

 
2024-25 

 

 
2023-24 

I Revenue from operations 25 3,87,30,46,051.59 2,77,95,47,060.97 
II  Other Income 26 1,52,96,938.05 1,27,68,774.61 
III Total Income  3,88,83,42,989.64 2,79,23,15,835.58 
IV Expenses:    

Purchase of Trading Goods 27 3,81,15,88,929.83 2,61,87,27,442.46 
Changes in inventories of Trading Goods 28 (10,34,49,198.04) 26,05,366.42 
Employee benefit expense 29 5,66,64,841.79 5,67,69,105.79 
Financial costs 30 4,87,99,304.18 3,49,76,153.39 
Depreciation and amortization expense 31 28,29,070.00 45,91,636.00 
Other expenses 32 3,83,07,661.57 4,19,36,195.27 
Total Expenses  3,85,47,40,609.33 2,75,96,05,899.33 
V Profit before exceptional items and tax 
(III-IV) 

  
3,36,02,380.31 

 
3,27,09,936.25 

VI Exceptional item (profit on sale of 
investments) 

  
- 

 
- 

VII Profit/(loss) before tax (V-VI)  3,36,02,380.31 3,27,09,936.25 

VIII Tax expense/ benefits    

(1) Current Income Tax  90,10,000.00 85,50,000.00 
(2) Deferred tax (Assets)Liability  1,37,544.00 40,531.00 
(3) Income Tax Expenses Earlier Years  11,29,457.00 4,86,160.49 

 
IX Profit/(Loss) for the year after tax 

  
2,33,25,379.31 

 
2,36,33,244.76 

 
XI Profit for the year 

  
2,33,25,379.31 

 
2,36,33,244.76 

XII Other Comprehensive Income    

A i) Items that will not be reclassified to 
profit or loss 

   

a) Re-measurements of the defined benefit 
plans 

 
5,89,196.00 (21,36,413.00) 

b) Equity instruments through Other 
comprehensive income 

  
- 

 
- 

ii) Income tax relating to items that will not 
be reclassified to profit or loss 

 
1,48,288.00 5,37,692.42 

Total (A)  7,37,484.00 (15,98,720.58) 
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B i) Items that will be reclassified to profit 
or loss 

   

(a) The effective portion of gains and loss on 
hedging instruments 
(b) Changes in Foreign Currency Monetary 
Item translation difference 
account(FCMITDA) 
ii) Income tax relating to items that will be 
reclassified to profit or loss 

   

Total (B) - - 
Total Other comprehensive income / (loss) 
(A+B) 

 
7,37,484.00 

 
(15,98,720.58) 

XIII Total comprehensive income / (loss) 2,40,62,863.31 2,20,34,524.18 
Earning per equity share (on profit for the 
year): 

  

(1) Basic 23.33 23.63 
(2) Diluted 23.33 23.63 

 
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to 
the financial statements 1&2 
Signed in terms of our report of even date 
annexed 

 

For K. Prasad & Company 
Firm`s Registration No. 002755N 
Chartered Accountants 

 
Sd/- 
CA Manmohan Mahipal 
(Partner) 
M.No 507113 

 
Place: Kota 
Date: 29.05.2025 
UDIN: 25507113BMNYRM1032 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
Kalyani Commercials Ltd 

 

 
Sd/- Sd/- 
Shankar Lal Agarwal Sourabh Agarwal 
Managing Director Whole Time Director 
&CFO 
DIN: 01341113 DIN: 02168346 

 
Sd/- 
Suranjan Upadhyay 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
M. No. A16537 
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KALYANI COMMERCIALS LIMITED 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025 
  For the year ended  

 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 
 (Rupees) (Rupees) 

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Net Profit after Tax 2,33,25,379 2,36,33,245 

 Add: Deferred Tax expense 1,37,544 40,531 
 Provision for Tax 1,01,39,457 90,36,160 
 Profit before tax & Exeptional Items 3,36,02,380 3,27,09,936 
 Adjustment for:   
 Depreciation and amortisation 28,29,070 4,198,120 
 Interest Income (51,16,378) (2,218,953) 
 Interest on Lease - - 
 Gratuity Expenses 19,35,698 12,43,390 
 Interest Expense 4,70,72,661 3,42,32,560 
 Increase in Gratuity provision 7,89,107 - 
 Gain on remeasurement of lease liability   
 Excess Provision written back - - 
 Profit on sale of Investment - - 
 Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets - (14,27,437) 
 Operating profit before working capital changes 8,11,12,538 7,02,40,532 

 
Adjustments for movement in working capital : 

  

 Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:   
 Stock (10,34,49,198) 26,05,366 
 Trade receivables (10,57,50,894) 17,02,95,191 
 Other Current Financial Assets (26) (74) 
 Other Current Assets (9,35,96,360) (4,85,001) 
  (30,27,96,478) 17,24,15,482 
 Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating 

liabilities: 
  

 Trade payables (2,09,22,364.00) 1,65,96,567 
 Other current financial liabilities 10,69,118 34,710 
 Other current liabilities 5,11,669 12,70,680 
  (1,93,41,577) 1,79,01,957 

 
Direct taxes paid/deducted at source (83,46,246) (1,47,23,696) 

 NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES (24,93,71,763) 24,58,34,275 

 
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 

 Decrease/(Increase) in other non current financial assets - - 
 Decrease/(Increase) in other non current assets (15,684) (3,04,244) 
 Interest Received 

 

51,16,378 11,09,553 
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Purchase of fixed assets  (1,14,167) (11,65,126) 
Sale of Investment  - - 
Sale of Fixed Assets  - 30,82,497 
NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES 49,86,527 27,22,680 

 
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

   

Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Borrowings  28,39,96,641 (20,72,20,940) 
Increase/(Decrease) in long term borrowings  (2,81,863) (16,41,383) 
Interest Paid  (4,70,72,661) (3,42,32,560) 
Lease Rent Payment  - - 
Increase/(Decrease) in other non-current financial 
liabilities 

 
- 

 
- 

NET CASH FROM / (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 23,66,42,117 (24,30,94,882) 

 
D, Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents 

 
(A+B+C) 

 
(77,43,119) 

 
54,62,072 

E. Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of previous 
period 

 
1,05,48,630 

 
50,86,557 

F. Cash and cash equivalents as at end of the year 
including bank balances other than cash and cash 
equivalants 

 
 

28,05,511 

 
 

1,05,48,630 

 
Note: 
The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in the Accounting 
Standard-3 on Cash Flow Statement Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

 
For K. Prasad & Company 
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NOTES ANNEXED TO 
AND FORMING PART 
OF THE BALANCE 
SHEET AS AT 31st 
March 2025 

A. Equity Share Capital (In Rs.) 
(1) Current Reporting Period 

Particulars Balance as at 
01.04.2024 

Changes in Equity Share 
Capital due to prior 

period errors 

Restated balance as 
at 01.04.2024 

Changes in equity share 
capital during the year 

Balance as at 
31.03.2025 

Share Capital 1,00,00,000.00  1,00,00,000.00 - 1,00,00,000.00 

 
(1) Previous Reporting Period 

Particulars Balance as at 
01.04.2021 

Changes in Equity Share 
Capital due to prior 

period errors 

Restated balance as 
at 01.04.2021 

Changes in equity share 
capital during the year 

Balance as at 
31.03.2022 

Share Capital 1,00,00,000.00  1,00,00,000.00 - 1,00,00,000.00 

B. Other Equity (Changes during the year) 
 

Particulars General 
Reserve 

Retained 
Earnings OCI for Actuarial loss Total 

Balance as at 1st April 2023 3,27,097.00 13,79,21,310.27 33,50,295.42 14,15,98,702.69 
Profit for the year  2,36,33,244.76  2,36,33,244.76 
Re measurement of net defined benefit plan (net of taxes)   (15,98,720.58) (15,98,720.58) 
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Transfer to OCI  - - - 
Balance as at 31st March 2024 3,27,097.00 16,15,54,555.03 17,51,574.85 16,36,33,226.88 

Profit for the year 
 

2,33,25,379.31 
 

2,33,25,379.31 
Re measurement of net defined benefit plan (net of taxes)   7,37,484.00 7,37,484.00 
Balance as at 31st March 2025 3,27,097.00 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

18,48,79,934.34 24,89,058.85 18,76,96,090.19 
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NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2025 AND STATEMENT OF 

PROFIT AND LOSS AND ALSO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON THAT DATE 
 
1. Company Overview: 

Kalyani Commercials Limited (Company) is a public limited company registered under Companies Act, 1956, 
listed in Bombay Stock Exchange. The registered office of the company is situated BG-223, Sanjay Gandhi 
Transport Nagar, GT Karnal Road, Delhi, 110042. 

 
The company dealing in trading of Heavy Commercial Vehicle and servicing (Dealership of TATA), Petroleum 
Product (Dealership of Bharat Petroleum Limited). The company has voluntarily surrendered its NBFC status to 
the RBI vide company letter dated 28.06.2019, but the application is pending with RBI. However, the company is 
not doing any NBFC business and continued to running its normal business activities. The financial statements 
have been approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on29.05.2025.. 

 
2(a)  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
2.1 Statement of Compliance 

 
In accordance with the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company is required to 
prepare its Standalone Financial Statements as per the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) prescribed under 
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) (to the extent notified) read with rules, as amended from time to 
time and guidelines issued by the securities and exchange board of India (SEBI) 

 
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially 
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in 
use. 
These financial statements which comprises the balance sheet as at 31.03.2025 the statement of profit & 
loss(including other comprehensive income), the statement of cash flows & the statement of changes in equity for 
the year ended 31.03.2025 and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (together herein after referred to as "financial statements"). 

2.2 Basis of Measurement 
 
The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis at the end of each reporting 
period, as explained in the accounting policies below. 

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or 
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company 
takes in to account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those 
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for 
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for 
sharebased payment transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102 and measurements that have some 
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realizable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36. 
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1,2, or 3 b
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on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs 
to the fair value measurements in its entirety, which are described as follows: 

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity 
can access at the measurement date; 

 
Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly; and 

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 
 
The Financial Statement is presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs except when 
otherwise stated. 

2.3 Use of estimates and judgments 
 
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make 
estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of 
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
period. The application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and 
subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed in Note 3 
Critical Judgements and Estimates. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. 

 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the Management 
becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the 
financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the 
notes to the financial statements. 

2.4 Basis of classifications of current and non-current 
 
All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current in the balance sheet, 

 
An asset has been classified as current if (a) it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption 
in, the Company’s normal operating cycle; or (b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; or (c) it is 
expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or (d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless 
it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date. 
All other assets have been classified as non-current. 

 
A liability has been classified as current when (a) it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating 
cycle; or (b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; or (c) it is due to be settled within twelve months 
after the reporting date; or (d) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the 
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date. All other liabilities have been classified as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as no-current assets/ liabilities. 
 
2(b)  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
2.1 Revenue Recognition 
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SALES AND SERVICES 

A. In case of sale of goods performance obligation is satisfied when control is transferred to customer and 
recoverability of amount is probable. Transaction price is same as invoice value excluding taxes. Revenue 
is recognized as and when performance obligation is satisfied. 

 
B. In case of sale of service performance obligation is satisfied when work is executed, customer approves 

the work performed and recoverability of amount is probable. Transaction price is same as invoice value 
excluding taxes. Revenue is recognized as and when performance obligation is satisfied. 

 
C. Revenue is adjusted for variable consideration such as discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, price 

concessions, incentives, or other similar items in supply and service when they are highly probable to be 
provided. The amount of revenue excludes any amount collected on behalf of third parties. 

D. Goods and Service Tax (GST) is not received by the company on its own account. Rather it is tax collected 
on value added to the goods/ services by the seller on behalf of the Government. Accordingly, it is 
excluded from revenue. However, such tax expenses is included in cost where Company is not availing tax 
credit of the same. 

 
INTEREST AND DIVIDEND INCOME 

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on, time basis, by 
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying 
amount on initial recognition. 

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has been 
established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of 
income can be measured reliably). 

 
2.2 Leases 

 
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 

 
The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or 
for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics. The Company has taken discount rate @12%. 

The Company as a lessee 
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases 
and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use 
assets representing the right to use the underlying assets. 

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a 
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 
months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low-value leases, the Company 
recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 
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Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. 
ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised. 

 
ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease 
term and useful life of the underlying asset. ROU assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of 
impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) 
is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely 
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash 
Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. 

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The 
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using 
the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with 
a corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will 
exercise an extension or a termination option. 

 
Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been 
classified as financing cash flows. 

 
The Company as a lessor 

 
Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the 
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a 
finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

The Company recognises lease income as and when due as per terms of agreements. The respective leased assets 
are included in the financial statements based on their nature. The Company did not need to make any 
adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing standard. 

 
2.3 Borrowing costs: 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are 
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use, are added to the 
carrying cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. 

 
All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are 
incurred. 

The Company determines the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization as the actual borrowing costs 
incurred on that borrowing during the period less any interest income earned on temporary investment of 
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets, to the extent that an entity borrows funds 
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. In case if the Company borrows generally and uses the 
funds for obtaining a qualifying asset, borrowing costs eligible for capitalization are determined by applying a 
capitalization rate to the expenditures on that asset. 

2.4 Retirement and other employee benefits: 
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The Company participates in various employee benefit plans. These benefit plans are classified as either defined 
contribution plans or defined benefit plans. Under a defined contribution plan, the company's only obligation is 
to pay a fixed amount with no obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to 
pay all employee benefits. The related actuarial and investment risks fall on the employee. 

Under a defined benefit plan, it is the Company's obligation to provide agreed benefits to the employees. The 
related actuarial & investment risks fall on the Company. 

Defined Contribution plan 

Company’s contributions paid/ payable during the year to Provident Fund, Employee state insurance are 
recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss Account. 

The company is depositing P.F. & ESI contribution only for eligible employees within statutory limits. The 
employees whose income is above the statutory limits have opted not to subscribe and accordingly, the company 
is not required to make the contribution. 

Defined Benefit Obligation Plans 

Gratuity 

The liability recognized in respect of gratuity is the present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the 
reporting period less the fair value of plan assets, where applicable. The Company makes contribution to the LIC 
for Employees Gratuity Scheme in respect of employees of the company. The defined benefit obligation is 
calculated annually by the actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method by the Actuarial Valuer. 
Remeasurement comprising actuarial gains and losses are recognized in the other comprehensive income for the 
period in which they occur and is not reclassified to profit or loss. 

All other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss as Employee 
benefit expenses. 

Compensated absences 

The Company has a policy on compensated absences which are non-accumulating in nature neither company 
provides encashment of leaves. 

2.5 TAXATION: 
 
Tax expense comprises of current tax, deferred tax and Dividend Tax which are described as follows -: 

(a) Current Tax 

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities, using the applicable tax rates. 
Current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting 
period. Current Tax is generally charged to profit & loss except when they relate to items which are recognized in 
other comprehensive income or equity. 

(b) Deferred Tax 
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Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Balance 
sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and are accounted for using the 
liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and 
deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and 
allowances to the extent that it is probable that in future taxable profits will be available to set off such deductible 
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the applicable tax rates. Deferred tax 
assets and deferred tax liabilities are off set, and presented as net. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is 
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable 
profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. 

 
2.6 Property, Plant and Equipment 

PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits associated 
with the items will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

 
PROPERTY, PLANT &EQUIPMENTS are stated at cost net of Cenvat less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses, if any. Cost of acquisition is inclusive of freight, duties, attributable overheads, taxes and 
incidental/preoperative expenses and interest on loans attributable to the acquisition of assets upto the date of 
commissioning of assets. 

Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in the assets under construction account. At the point when 
the asset is operating at management’s intended use, the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate 
category of the PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT and depreciation commences. 

 
Free hold land is carried at historical cost. 

 
Leasehold land is not amortized as all leasehold land is on 99 years lease with local authority. 

 
All other items of property plant and equipment are stated at historical cost. Historical cost includes expenditure 
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of items. 

Subsequent costs are included in assets carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as the case may be, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits with the PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT will flow to the 
entity and cost of the item will be measured reliably. 

 
Carrying amount of component is recognized as a separate asset. Such component is derecognized when replaced. 
Items of stores and spares that meet the definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost. 
Otherwise, such items are classified as inventories. 

 
Repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss account as and when they are incurred. 

 
An items of PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or 
retirement of an item of PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT is determined as the difference between the sales 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in statement of profit & loss. 
Depreciation 
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Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated 
residual value. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and 
properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using written down value method 
as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. 

2.7 Investment properties 
 
Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the 
group, is classified as investment property. Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related 
transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset's 
carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow 
to the group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are 
expensed when incurred. Leasehold land is stated at historical cost. Leasehold land is not amortised over the 
period of lease as all leasehold land is on 99 years lease with local authority. Though the Company measures 
investment property using cost based measurement, the fair value of investment property is disclosed in the 
notes. Fair values are determined based on annual evaluation performed by an external independent 
valuer/Internal assessment. 

 
2.8 Intangible Assets (Software) 

 
Identifiable intangible assets are recognized a) when the Company controls the asset, b) it is probable that future 
economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Company and c) the cost of the asset can be reliably 
measured. 
“Computer softwares are capitalized at the amounts paid to acquire the respective license for use and are 
amortized over the period of license, generally not exceeding six years on straight line basis. The assets useful 
lives are reviewed at each financial year end. Software is amortized over an estimated useful life of 3 years.” 

 
2.9 Capital Work in Progress 

 
Capital work in progress are stated at cost and inclusive of preoperative expenses, project development expenses 
etc. 

 
2.10 Impairment of Assets: 

 
The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date if there is any indication of impairment 
based on internal/external factors. 

An impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset 
or a cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of the assets (or where 
applicable, that of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs) is estimated as the higher of its net selling 
price and its value in use. A previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reversed depending on changes 
in circumstances. 

However, the carrying value after reversal is not increased beyond the carrying value that would have prevailed 
by charging usual depreciation if there was no impairment. 
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2.11 INVENTORIES 

 
Inventories, are valued at lower of cost (determined on FIFO Method and Specific identification method for 
Vehicles) and net realisable value. The bases for determining cost for different categories of inventory are as 
under: 

 
Trading Goods (Including 
Spare parts) 

Cost of purchase (including other cost incurred in bringing inventory to its 
present location and condition.) 

 
2.12 Provisions, contingent liabilities & Assets: 

 
A Provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that 
an outflow of resources will be required to settled the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation. Provisions are not disclosed to its present value and are determined based on best 
management estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each 
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of 
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either 
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be 
made. Information on contingent liability is disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements. Contingent assets 
are not recognized in financial statements but are disclosed, if any. 

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events the existence of which will be confirmed only 
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
enterprise. 

2.13 Financial instruments 
 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity. A financial assets or a liability is recognised when the Company becomes a 
Party to the contractual provision of the instrument. 
(a) "Financial Assets are measured at amortised cost or fair value through Other Comprehensive Income or fair 
value through Profit or Loss, depending on its business model for managing those financial assets and the assets 
contractual cash flow characteristics. Subsequent measurements of financial assets are dependent on initial 
categorisation. For impairment purposes significant financial assets are tested on an individual basis, other 
financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics. The company 
derecognizes a financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or it 
transfers the financial assets and the transfer qualifies for the derecognisition under Ind AS 109." 

Investment in subsidiaries, associate and Joint venture 
Investments in shares of Subsidiaries, Joint Venture & Associates are measured at cost subject to impairment 
losses, if any. 
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at fair value. Any subsequent fair value gain or loss is recognized through Other Comprehensive Income. 
 
The company assesses impairment based on expected credit loss (ECL) model to all its financial assets measured 
at amortised cost. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with 
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.For the 
purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short term deposits, as 
defined above. 

(b) All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and 
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other 
payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts. 

 
Loans & Borrowings 
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost 
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are 
derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. 

 
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that 
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and 
loss. 

 
Trade & Other payables 
A payable is classified as ’trade payable’ if it is in respect of the amount due on account of goods purchased or 
services received in the normal course of business. These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services 
provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are 
presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are 
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method." 

 
2.14 Segment Reporting 

 
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief 
operating decision maker. Chief operating decision maker review the performance of the Company according to 
the nature of products traded and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit 
that offers different products and serves different markets. The analysis of segments is based on the activities 
performed by each segment. 

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing 
and presenting financial statements of the Company as a whole. 

 
2.15 Earnings per Share 



Earnings considered in ascertaining the company’s earning per share comprises the net profit after tax 
attributable to equity shareholders. 
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Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period. Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity and dilutive 
equivalent shares outstanding during the period. 

3. Critical judgments and estimates 

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following estimates, 
assumptions and judgements, which have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statement. 
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcome that require a material adjustment 
to assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

i) Property, plant and equipment 
 
Property, Plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the company. The useful 
lives and residual value of the company’s asset are determined by the management at the time the asset is 
acquired and reviewed at each reporting date. 

ii) Contingencies 
 
In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the 
Company. Potential liabilities that are possible but not probable of crystalising or are very difficult to quantify 
reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not recognized. 

iii) Income Tax and Deferred Tax 
 
The Company’s tax jurisdiction is India. Significant judgements are involved in estimating budgeted profits for the 
purpose of paying advance tax, determining the provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be 
paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions. 

iv) Allowance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances 
 
Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by appropriate 
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables and advances are written off when 
management deems them not to be collectible. Impairment is made on the expected credit losses, which are the 
present value of the cash shortfall over the expected life of the financial assets. 

v) Impairment of non-financial assets 
 
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any 
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the assets’s 
recoverable amount. An assets’s recoverable amount is the higher of an assets’s or CGU’s fair value less costs of 
disposal and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the 
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 
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vi) Impairment of financial assets 

 
The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss 
rates. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment 
calculation, based on Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at 
the end of each reporting period. 

vii) Fair value measurement of financial instruments 
 
When the fair values of financials assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured 
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques, including the 
discounted cash flow model, which involve various judgements and assumptions. 

viii) Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19 
 
The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the 
carrying amounts of receivables, investment in subsidiaries/associate. In developing the assumptions relating to 
the possible future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at 
the date of approval of these financial statements has used internal and external sources of information including 
credit reports and related information, economic forecasts. The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on 
the assumptions used and based on current estimates expects the carrying amount of these assets will be 
recovered. The impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s financial statements may differ from that estimated as at 
the date of approval of these financial statements. 
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4. Property Plant & Equipment 

           

Particulars Leasehold 
land 

Commercial 
Land 

Buildings Plant and 
machinery 

Electrical 
fittings 

Office 
equipment 

Furniture 
and fixtures 

Computer vehicles Tangibles 
Total 

Cost/Deeme 
d cost As At 
31.03.2023 

 
25,63,311.00 

 
1,00,30,240.00 

 
2,74,54,824.65 

 
1,22,56,278.60 

 
10,28,249.55 

 
52,95,206.34 

 
58,94,814.27 

 
52,10,392.28 

 
65,62,341.30 

 
7,62,95,657.99 

Addition - - - 2,82,558.30 32,073.87 3,64,493.61 - 88,305.11 3,97,695.48 11,65,126.37 

Deduction - - - - - - - - 29,29,791.19 29,29,791.19 
As at 
31.03.2024 25,63,311.00 1,00,30,240.00 2,74,54,824.65 1,25,38,836.90 10,60,323.42 56,59,699.95 58,94,814.27 52,98,697.39 40,30,245.59 7,45,30,993.17 

Addition - - - - - 74,759.85 - 39,406.78 
 

1,14,166.63 
Deduction - - - - - - - - - - 
As at 
31.03.2025 25,63,311.00 1,00,30,240.00 2,74,54,824.65 1,25,38,836.90 10,60,323.42 57,34,459.80 58,94,814.27 53,38,104.17 40,30,245.59 7,46,45,159.80 
Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment         

As At 
31.03.2023 - - 2,00,13,170.38 86,26,379.41 9,75,388.55 49,42,433.40 53,90,451.93 49,43,870.75 39,94,684.39 4,88,86,378.81 
Depreciation 
expenses - - 12,49,780.00 8,20,688.00 11,514.00 1,79,221.00 2,56,002.00 29,778.00 6,19,686.00 31,66,669.00 

Deduction - - 
      

12,74,731.19 12,74,731.19 
As at 
31.03.2024 - - 2,12,62,950.38 94,47,067.41 9,86,902.55 51,21,654.40 56,46,453.93 49,73,648.75 33,39,639.20 5,07,78,316.62 

Depreciation expenses 
 

8,63,410.00 5,69,739.00 5,697.00 1,64,769.00 9,826.00 41,466.00 91,632.00 17,46,539.00 

Deduction - -         

As at 
31.03.2025 - - 2,21,26,360.38 1,00,16,806.41 9,92,599.55 52,86,423.40 56,56,279.93 50,15,114.75 34,31,271.20 5,25,24,855.62 
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Carrying Value          

As at 
31.03.2025 25,63,311.00 1,00,30,240.00 53,28,464.27 25,22,030.49 67,723.87 4,48,036.40 2,38,534.34 3,22,989.42 5,98,974.39 2,21,20,304.18 
As at 
31.03.2024 25,63,311.00 1,00,30,240.00 61,91,874.27 30,91,769.49 73,420.87 5,38,045.55 2,48,360.34 3,25,048.64 6,90,606.39 2,37,52,676.55 
As at 
31.03.2023 25,63,311.00 1,00,30,240.00 74,41,654.27 36,29,899.19 52,861.00 3,52,772.94 5,04,362.34 2,66,521.53 25,67,656.91 2,74,09,279.18 
useful Life of 
the Assets 
(Years) 

 
99.00 

 
 

30.00 
 

15.00 
 

10.00 
 

5.00 
 

10.00 
 

3.00 
 

8-10 

 

Method of 
depreciation NA NA WDV WDV WDV WDV WDV WDV WDV 

 

 
Notes - 

1. The company has elected to measure the items of property, plant and equipment at their previous GAAP carrying value at the date of transition to IND AS . Building includes 
building built on lease hold land. 

 2. The management of the company has reviewed the existing assets working conditions and utility at the balance sheet date and are of the opinion that there exists no indication 
that an assets has been carried out. 

 3. Certain Property, Plant and Equipment are mortgaged against borrowings 
 4. The title deeds of all the immovable properties are held in the name of the company. 
 5. The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment. 
 6. No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988. 
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5. Investment property    ( In Rs.) 
Particulars Leasehold land Commercial 

Land 
Buildings 
(Owned) 

Tangibles Total 

Cost/Deemed cost     

 
 

As At 31.03.2023 

 
 

316,114.00 

 
 

16,27,596.00 

 
2,79,18,931. 

00 

 
 

2,98,62,641.00 
 

Addition 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

Transfer 
 

- 
 

1,627,596.00 
24,623,433.0 

0 
 

26,251,029.00 

Deduction - - - - 

 
As at 31.03.2024 

 
316,114.00 

 
1,627,596.00 

 
2,79,18,931. 

00 
 

2,98,62,641.00 
Addition -   - 
Transfer -  

Deduction - - 

 
as at 31.03.2025 

 
316,114.00 

 
1,627,596.00 

 
27,918,931.0

0
 

29,862,641.00 

Accumulated depreciation 
and impairment 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
as at 31.03.2023 

 
- 

 
- 

 
1,92,41,434. 

71 
 

1,92,41,434.71 

Depreciation expenses - - 14,24,967.00 14,24,967.00 

Deduction - - 

 
as at 31.03.2024 

 
- 

 
- 

2,06,66,401. 
71 

 
2,06,66,401.71 

 
depreciation expenses 

 
- 

 
- 

 
10,82,531.00 

 
10,82,531.00 

Transfer - - - - 
Deduction - - - - 

 
 

as at 31.03.2025 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
2,17,48,932.7

1

 
 

2,17,48,932.71 
Carrying Value     

As at 31.03.2025 3,16,114.00 16,27,596.00 61,69,998.29 81,13,708.29 

As at 31.03.2024 3,16,114.00 16,27,596.00 72,52,529.29 91,96,239.29 
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useful Life of the Assets 
(Years) 

 
99.00 

  
30.00 

 

Method of depreciation NA NA WDV  

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 40 “Investment 
Property” 
a. Amount of Income recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss for investment property: 

(Rs. in lacs) 
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 

Rental Income derived from investment property 22.20 22.20 
(Exclusive of GST)   

Total 22.20 22.20 
 

 
b. Fair Market Value of Investment Property not done by the Company, therefor figures are not provided. 

(Rs. in lacs) 
Particulars 

2024-25 2023-24 
A-165, IPIA, Kota(Leasehold Land)   

Building A-165, IPIA, Kota*   

Building including commercial land at Sathoor, Bundi, 
Rajasthan* 

  

Total - - 
 

1. Certain Property Plant & Equipment are mortgaged/hypothecated against borrowings, the details relating 
to which have been described in Note 20 & 21 pertaining to borrowings. 

2. The company has elected to measure the items of Investment Properties at their previous GAAP carrying 
value at the date of transition to IND AS. Building includes building built on lease hold land 

3. The title deeds of all the immovable properties are held in the name of the company : 
4. The Company has not revalued its Investment Properties . 
5. No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company under the Benami Transactions 

(Prohibitions) Act, 1988. 
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NOTES ATTACHED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE 
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025 

 
6. Intangible Assets 

 Amount in Rs. 
Software 
Gross Carrying value 
As at 01.04.2023 9,84,492.00 
Addition - 
Deduction - 
As at 31.03.2024 9,84,492.00 
Addition - 
Deduction - 
As at 31.03.2025 9,84,492.00 

Accumulated Amortization and impairment 
as at 31.03.2023 9,84,491.00 
Amortization expenses - 
Deduction - 
as at 31.03.2024 9,84,491.00 
Amortization expenses - 
Deduction - 
as at 31.03.2025 9,84,491.00 
Net Carryng Value  

as at 31.03.2025 1.00 
as at 31.03.2024 1.00 
Useful Life of the assets (Range) 3.00 
Method of Amortization WDV 
Notes:-  

1. The company has elected to measure the items of other intangible at their previous GAAP carrying value at 
the date of transition to IND AS. 
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NOTES ATTACHED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025 

 
7. Investments Amount in Rs. 

 
 
 
 

 

Non Current Investments 

Investment in other equity 
Ordinary Share (Fully paid up) 
(at cost) 
Ganganagar Vehicles Private  

Limited**   10.00 18,05,000.00 1,80,50,000.00 1,80,50,000.00 
Ganganagar Automobile Private     

Limited   10.00 2,50,000.00 25,00,000.00 25,00,000.00 

Investment in Government 
securities (unquoted) 
(At Amortized Cost) 
National Saving Certificate ( 
Deposited with in Sales Tax Dept. 
interest  is  to  be  adjusted  in 
realisation) 3,000.00 3,000.00 

 
Grand Total  2,05,53,000.00 2,05,53,000.00  

 
NOTE :- 

 
No provision for diminution in the value of long term investment has been considered necessary, since in 
the opinion of 
the management, such diminution in their value is temporary in nature considering the nature of 
investments, inherent 
value and expected future cash flows from such investments. 

Sub note 

 As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024 
Unquoted   

Aggregate carrying value of 
unquoted investment (Cost) 

2,05,50,000.00 2,05,50,000.00 

 2,05,50,000.00 
 
 
  

2,05,50,000.00 

 

 
Particular 

 
Face 
value 

 

 
No. of Shares 

 

 
As at 31.03.2025 

 

 
As at 31.03.2024 
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As at 
(in Rs.) 

As at 
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

8. Other non current financial 
assets 
Income Tax Paid (Net of 
Provision) - 9,86,543.67 

 

9,86,543.67 
 

9. Deferred Taxes Assets 
Under Previous GAAP, deferred taxes were recognised for the tax effect of timing differences between accounting profit and taxable profit for the year using the 
income statement approach. Under Ind AS, deferred taxes are recognised using the balance sheet for future tax consequences of temporary differences between 
the carrying value of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. The above difference, together with the consequential tax impact of the other Ind AS 
transitional adjustments lead to temporary differences. Deferred tax adjustments are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in retained 
earnings or through other comprehensive income. 

 
Current Year 

Particulars As at 31.03.2024 
Arising during the 

year Arising during the year OCI As at 31.03.2025 

Deffered Tax Assets     

Property, Plant and Equipment including 
investment property 

 
5,49,882.00 

 
-1,37,544.00 

 
0.00 

 
4,12,338.00 

Other (other and lease liability) 0.00  0.00 0.00 
     

Total 5,49,882.00 -1,37,544.00 0.00 4,12,338.00 
Deferred Tax Liability     

     



 

 

KALYANI COMMERCIALS LIMITED 
Registered office: BG-223, Sanjay Gandhi Transport Nagar, GT Karnal Road, New Delhi-110042 
CIN L45300DL1985PLC021453 
E-mail: kalyanicommercialslimited@gmail.com 
Website: www.kalyanicommercialsltd.com 
Ph.: 011- 43063223, 011-47060223  

 

 
Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income     

Defined Benefit Obligation 2,78,574.58 0.00 1,48,288.00 1,30,286.58 
     

Total 2,78,574.58 0.00 1,48,288.00 1,30,286.58 
     

Net deferred tax (Assets)/liability 2,71,307.42 -1,37,544.00 -1,48,288.00 2,82,051.42 

 
Previous Year 
Particulars 

As at 31.03.2024 
Arising during the 

year Arising during the year OCI As at 31.03.2025 

Deferred Tax Assets     

Property, Plant and Equipment including 
investment property 5,90,413.00 -40,531.00 0.00 5,49,882.00 
Other (other and lease liability) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Total 5,90,413.00 -40,531.00 0.00 5,49,882.00 
     

Deferred Tax Liability     

     

Provision for gratuity and compensated 
expense 

 
8,16,267.00 

  
5,37,692.42 

 
2,78,574.58 

Total 8,16,267.00 0.00 5,37,692.42 2,78,574.58 
     

Net deferred tax (Assets)/liability -2,25,854.00 -40,531.00 -5,37,692.42 2,71,307.42 

10. Other non current assets 
    

Security Deposits/ Earnest 
Money 

  
10,64,240.85 10,48,556.85 
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10,64,240.85 10,48,556.85 

 
 
11. INVENTORIES (at lower of cost and net relisable value) 
Trading Goods 30,93,38,201.71 

 

 
20,58,89,003.67 

30,93,38,201.71 20,58,89,003.67 
 
Note: 
Inventories have been hypothecated as security against 
certain bank borrowings of the Company 

 

12. Trade receivables 
Unsecured 
Considered Good 29,41,52,778.17 

 

 
18,84,01,884.01 

Credit Impaired 19,52,892.00 19,52,892.00 

Sub Total 29,61,05,670.17 19,03,54,776.01 

Less: Allowance for doubtful 
debt 19,52,892.00 

 
19,52,892.00 

Total 29,41,52,778.17 18,84,01,884.01 
 
iii. Trade receivables (Current year ) : Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

 

Particulars Less than 6 
months 

6 months- 1 
year 

1-2 yrs. 2-3 yrs. More than 3 
yrs. 

Total 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables- considered 
good 

28,29,20,231.2 49,81,386.95 31,45,536.00 27,89,172.00 3,16,452.00 29,41,52,778.17 
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(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered 
Doubtful 

    1,952,892.00 1,952,892.00 

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good      0.00 
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered 
doubtful 

     0.00 

Unbilled Dues      0.00 
Total 28,29,20,231.22 49,81,386.95 31,45,536.00 27,89,172.00 22,69,344.00 29,61,05,670.17 

 
 

iii. Trade receivables (previous year) : Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 
Particulars Less than 6 

months 
6 months- 1 

year 
1-2 yrs. 2-3 yrs. More than 3 

yrs. 
Total 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables- considered 
good 

17,76,44,815.20 66,64,886.65 34,79,129.18 2,37,000.00 3,76,053.00 18,84,01,884.03 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered 
Doubtful 

    19,52,892.00 19,52,892.00 

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good      0.00 
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered 
doubtful 

     0.00 

Unbilled Dues      0.00 
Total 17,76,44,815.20 66,64,886.65 34,79,129.18 2,37,000.00 23,28,945.00 19,03,54,776.0 

3 
 
 

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024 
13. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
Balances with Banks 
On Current Account 4,45,866.92 96,83,666.72 
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Cash in Hand 19,97,829.48 5,19,542.20 

 24,43,696.40 1,02,03,208.92 
Bank Balances Other than cash and cash equivalents   

Balances with banks on   

Deposit account (With maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 
months) 3,61,815.00 3,45,422.00 
Note: 3,61,815.00 3,45,422.00 
Earmarked balance with HDFC against OD limit (In term deposit 
account) 3,61,815.00 3,45,422.00 
The deposits maintained by the Company with banks comprise of time deposits, which can be 
withdrawn by the Company at any point without prior notice or penalty on the principal. 

14. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS   

Interest accrued on FDR 371.00 345.00 
  - 
  371.00 345.00
15. Other Current assets   

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received 4,44,370.00 5,19,082.00 
Prepaid Expenses 97,915.00 1,28,821.00 
Advance for capital goods 16,98,788.00 - 
Loans and advances to other parties 1,69,76,694.00 1,55,74,949.00 
Loans and advances to Related Party 5,09,04,765.00 - 
Balance with revenue authorities etc. 3,98,92,851.68 - 
Gratuity Fund Assets ( Net) - - 
Advance to Staff 6,60,209.00 8,56,380.00 

 

 
  

11,06,75,592.68 1,70,79,232.00 



16. SHARE CAPITAL 
Particulars  Figures as at  Figures as at 
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AUTHORISED 

 31.03.2025 
(Rs.) 

 31.03.2024 
(Rs.) 

40,00,000 Equity Share Of Rs.10/- each 4,00,00,000.00 4,00,00,000.00 

 
ISSUED,SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP 

10,00,000 Equity Share Of Rs.10/- each 

 
 
 

1,00,00,000.00 

 
 
 

1,00,00,000.00 

 
Total 

 
1,00,00,000.00 

 
1,00,00,000.00 

Notes: 

1. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares. The Company has a single class of equity 
shares. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of 
Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders 
are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in 
proportion to their shareholding. 

 
2. Details of Share holders holding more than 5 % equity shares as at 31.03.2025 

 
 31.03.2025  31.03.2024  

Share Holder No. of Share Ownership 
Interest % 

No. of Share Ownership 
Interest % 

Shankar Lal 
Agarwal 

418000 41.80% 418000 41.80% 

3-  Shareholding of Promoter: 
Shares held by promotes at the end 
of the Year 
Promoter’s Name No. of 

Shares 
% of total 
shares 

No. of Shares 
previous 
year 

% of total 
shares 
previous year 

% Change 
during the Year 

Shankar Lal Agarwal 418000 41.80% 418000 41.80% 0.00% 
      

4- The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 is set out 
below: 
Particulars As at As at 

 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 
  10,00,000.0 

Number of shares at the beginning 10,00,000.00 0 
Add : New Share capital issued during the year 0.00 0.00 

  10,00,000.0 
Number of shares at the end  10,00,000.00 0 



5.no class of share have been bought back by the company during the period of 5 years immediately 
preceeding the reporting date 
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17. Other Equity 
 

 
Particulars 

 
General 
Reserve 

 
Retained 
Earnings 

Other 
Comprehensive 
Income 
that  will  not  be 

classified to Profit 
& Loss 

 

 
Total 

     

Balance as at 31.03.2023 3,27,097.00 13,79,21,310.27 50,84,503.00 14,33,32,910.27 

Profit for the period  2,36,33,244.76 - 2,36,33,244.76 

Remeasurments of the net 
defined benefit plans(Net of 
taxes) 

 
 

0.00 

 
 

- 

 
 

-15,98,720.58 

 
 

-15,98,720.58 
Balance as at 31.03.2024 3,27,097.00 16,15,54,555.03 34,85,782.42 16,53,67,434.45 

 
Profit for the period 

  
2,33,25,379.31 

  
2,33,25,379.31 

Remeasurments of the net 
defined benefit plans(Net of 
taxes) 

   

 
7,37,484.00 

 

 
7,37,484.00 

 
Balance as at 31.03.2025 

3,27,097. 
00 

18,48,79,934.3 
4 

 
42,23,266.42 

 
18,94,30,297.76 

Nature of Reserve 

1. General reserve amount transferred/apportioned represents is in accordance with (The Companies 
Act,1956) wherein a portion is apportioned to general reserve, before a company can declare dividend. 

2. The balance consists of surplus retained from earned profits after payment of dividend and 
taxes thereon 

3. Actual Gain and losses for defined plans are recognized through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re- 
measurement are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods 



 

 
 
KALYANI COMMERCIALS LIMITED 
Registered office: BG-223, Sanjay Gandhi Transport Nagar, GT Karnal Road, New Delhi-110042 
CIN L45300DL1985PLC021453 
E-mail: kalyanicommercialslimited@gmail.com 
Website: www.kalyanicommercialsltd.com 
Ph.: 011- 43063223, 011-47060223 

 

 

 

 
Particulars 

As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024 
Non-current Current Non-current Current 

 
18.  Borrowings 
Secured Borrowings 

 
 

(A) TERM LOAN From NBFC 
(in Indian currency ) - - 4,95,661.00 17,13,084.00 

 
Unsecured Borrowings (INR) 
Inter Corporate - 
Deposits* 28,53,279.11 - 26,39,481.11 

 
28,53,279.11 - 31,35,142.11 17,13,084.00 

 
*Interest paid @ 9% 
p.a. 

 

Name Of As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024 Terms of repayments Security 
Banker/NBFC/Ot 

her 
Non- 
current Current 

Non- 
current Current 

A. Term Loan from Banks (Secured) 
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      Loan of Rs. 5600000/-sanctioned on Second charge on all existing secuirty 
TATA MOTORS     31.03.2021 at KOTA for trade provided by the company under 
FINANCE 
SOLUTIONS LTD 
(FAST TRACK 

 
- 

 
- 

4,95,661.00 
17,13,084. 
00 

funding. Repayable to Tata Motor 
Finance from April 2022 in 36 
Monthly installments starting from 

exisiting 
facilities in favour of the Lender and 
NCGTC. 

LOAN)     04.04.2022 at an interest rate of 11.00 Primary Charge on the assets financed 
     % till 31.03.2025 under the facility. 
   4,95,661.0 17,13,084   

- - 0 .00 
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Particulars As at 
31.03.2025 

As at 
31.03.2024 

19. Provisions (Non current) 27,49,739.00 17,98,090.00 
Employee benefit(Gratuity) 

 
20. Short Term Borrowings (current) 
Secured 
Working Capital Loan(From HDFC Bank) 

 
(a) Indian Rupee [see Note - 1(i)] 

26,95,26,973.5 
5 3,17,77,918.15 

21,33,24,407.1 14,53,44,282.9 
(b) From Other Bank [See Note - 1(ii)] 6 5 
(c) From NBFC ( See Note - 2) 3,11,82,414.69 5,00,64,242.19 

Current Maturity of Long Term Borrowings 
(See Note 18) 

 
- 

 
17,13,084.00 

 Unsecured 
Credit Cards facility from Bank 

 
17,23,639.00 

 
28,61,266.00 

 51,57,57,434.  

 40 23,17,60,793.29 
 

 
1(i). Cash Credit Limit from HDFC is secured by way of hypothecation of all company`s current assets 
including all stocks and book debts and other movable, both present and future . These loans are further 
secured / to be secured by way of first charge by way of mortgage, by deposit of title deeds in respect of 
factory land and building located at Kota and also personal guarantees of the Shri Shankar Lal Agarwal & 
Sourabh Agarwal Directors of the company. 

 

1(ii). Secured by way of hypothecation of stock and book debts and from banks i.e., Axis Bank by Rs.819.35 
Lakhs (Rs. 4.49 Lacs in P year ), DBS Bank Rs. 3.29 lakhs (Rs.751.40 Lacs In P year ), IndusInd Bank Rs 
411.75 Lacs ( Rs 377.94 Lakhs in P Year ), Standard Chartered Bank Rs 898.85 Lakhs ( Rs. 319.62 Lacs in 
P Year). 
2. Secured by way of hypothecation of book debts and Stock from NBFC and outstanding balance at the 
year end from, Aditya Bilra Finance Rs. 135.08 (Previous year Rs. 497.92 lacs), Tata Capital Limited 
175.85 Lacs (Previous year - Rs.00 Lacs)and Tata Motor Finance Solution 0.89 Lacs (Previous year - Rs 
0.00 Lacs) 

 

4. Rate of Interest is from 8.65% to 11.75% 

 
21. Trade Payables  

(a)Micro, small and Medium    - - 
enterprises Development Act, 
2006 

    
1,64,325.00 

 
49,25,740.00 

(b) Others (Trade Payable and     3,13,10,707. 
others)    1,51,49,757.43 01 
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Ageing of Trade Payables (current year): 
(i) 

Undispute 

 

 
(ii) Undisputed 

 

 
(iii) Disputed 

 

 
(iv) Disputed 

Particulars d MSME Others dues- MSME dues- Others 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

 
 1,64,325.0   

Less than 1 yr. 
1-2 yrs. 
2-3 yrs. 
More than 3 yrs. 

0 1,51,49,757.43 

Total 164325 15149757.43   

 
Ageing of Trade Payables 
(previous year): 

    
 
 

(iv) 
 

Particulars 
 
(i) MSME 

 
(ii) Others 

(iii) Disputed 
dues- MSME 

Disputed 
dues- Others 

Outstanding for following 
periods from due date of 
payment 

    

 25,20,240.    

Less than 1 yr. 00 3,13,10,707.01 24,05,500.00  

1-2 yrs.  0.00   

2-3 yrs.  0.00   

More than 3 yrs.  0.00   

 25,20,240    

Total .00 3,13,10,707.01 24,05,500.00  

 
 

22. Other Financial Liabilities (Current) 
Employees dues payable 

   
 
 

42,85,968.00 

 
 
 

32,16,850.00 

   42,85,968.00 32,16,850.00 
 

23. Other Current 
liabilities 

Credit balance of 
customers 

   
 

 
1,64,55,210.23 

 
 

 
99,83,576.17 

Expense Payable   10,48,664.00 8,65,304.00 
Statutory Levies   69,01,588.14 47,23,765.00 
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   2,44,05,462.37 2,38,93,793.24 
 
 

24. Provisions (current) 

    

Income Tax (Net)  24,58,081.73 6,64,870.28 
Employee 
benefit(Garatuity) 

  
18,51,416.00 

 
16,54,000.00 

  
43,09,497.73 23,18,870.28 

Income Taxes     

Indian companies are subject to Indian income tax on a standalone basis. For each fiscal year, the entity profit 
and loss is subject to the regular income tax. Further, the government has introduced the Taxation Laws 
(Amendment) Act, 2019 and has given the option of lower tax rate subject to certain conditions. The management 
has carried out an assessment according to which the Company shall opt for new tax regime. 

Statutory income taxes are assessed based on book profits prepared under generally accepted accounting 
principles in India adjusted in accordance with the provisions of the (Indian) Income tax Act, 1961. Such 
adjustments generally relate to depreciation of fixed assets, disallowances of certain provisions and accruals and 
retirement benefit costs. Statutory income tax is charged at 22% plus a surcharge and education cess. 

Particulars For the year ended   

 31.03.2025 31.03.2024  

Current Tax     

Tax provision 90.10 85.50  

Tax refund/reversal pertaining to earlier 
years 

 
- 

 
- 

  

Total Current Tax     

Deferred Tax     

Deferred Tax - -   

Other Adjustments - -   

Total Deferred tax - -   

Total tax expense debited to profit & 
Loss A/c 

90.10 85.50  

The reconciliation between the provisions of income tax of the company and amounts computed by applying 
the Indian Statutory Income tax rate to profit before taxes is as follows:- 

 

Particulars For the year ended  
 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

Profit/loss before tax 336.02 327.10 
Enacted Tax rate in India 25.17% 25.17% 
Expected income tax expense/ 
(benefit) at statutory tax rate 

84.58 82.33 
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Effect of expenses that are not 
deductible in determining taxable 
profit 

- 3.17 

Other adjustment - - 

Tax Expense reported in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss 

84.58 85.50 

 
Amount in Rs. 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 

 
25. Revenue From Operations 

  

Sale of Goods (A) 
Sales of Vehicle and Spare Parts thereof 
including oil, Lubricants and Petro Products 

 
 

3,80,62,52,45 

 

(Net of discount) 2.36 2,71,59,80,060.21 

Sale of Services (B) 
  

Job work Receipt 5,37,14,983.48 5,12,62,972.35 
Commission Received 24,56,152.00 22,48,009.00 
Incentive Income 1,06,22,463.75 1,00,56,019.41 

 3,87,30,46,05  

(A+B) 
Particulars of Sales of Goods 

1.59 
 

3,56,29,64,449. 

2,77,95,47,060.97 

Vehicle & vehicle Body 73 2,45,40,19,190.64 
 17,73,70,961.5  

Vehicle Spare Parts & accessories 8 18,94,66,909.11 
Petro Products 6,59,17,041.05 7,24,93,960.46 

 3,80,62,52,45  

Total 2.36 2,71,59,80,060.21 
 

26. OTHER INCOME 
Interest income* 

 
 

51,16,378.00 

 

Rent 22,20,000.00  

Miscellaneous Income 
Gain on Re-measurement of Lease Liability 

40,340.05 
- 

Excess Provision Written Back  - 

Corporate guarantee services* 79,20,220.00 79,20,220.00 
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets  14,27,437.00 

 1,52,96,938.0  

Total 5 1,27,68,774.61 
* Related parties (refer note : 37 )   

27. Purchase of Trading Goods   
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Purchases Vehicle ( Net of Incentive / Claims) 

3,58,73,97,849. 
50 2,36,86,71,572.84 

Purchases Spare Parts & Accessories including 
other (Net of Incentive / Claims) 

16,01,52,135.7 
3 17,84,91,979.74 

Purchase Petro Product 6,40,38,944.60 7,15,63,889.88 
 3,81,15,88,92  

Total 9.83 2,61,87,27,442.46 
 
 

28. Changes in inventories of Trading 
Goods 
OPENING INVENTORIES 

  

Trading Goods  
17,77,92,276.6 

 

Vehicles 8 49,55,957.33 
Vehicle Spare Parts 2,31,40,769.66 1,94,00,059.08 
Petrol Products 49,55,957.33 52,45,111.17 

 20,58,89,003.  

Total 67 20,84,94,370.09 

CLOSING INVENTORIES 
  

Trading Goods  
27,55,77,133.8 

 

Vehicles 6 17,77,92,276.68 
Vehicle Spare Parts 2,89,24,585.62 2,31,40,769.66 
Petro Products 48,36,482.23 49,55,957.33 

 30,93,38,201.  

 71 20,58,89,003.67 
   

 (10,34,49,198.  

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN INVENTORIES 04) 26,05,366.42 
 

29. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 
Salaries, Wages, Bonus, Gratuity and 
Allowances etc. 

 
 
 

5,11,84,780.00 

 
 
 

5,12,08,771.00 
Contribution of PF, ESI and other welfare fund 
scheme 29,32,130.00 29,96,819.00 
Employee Welfare Exp. Including 
compensation 

 
6,12,233.79 

 
11,31,296.79 

Contribution to Gratuity fund and other 
Expenses 19,35,698.00 14,32,219.00 

 5,66,64,841.7  

Total 9 5,67,69,105.79 
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30. Finance Costs  

Bank charges 17,26,642.73 7,43,593.74 
Interest Expenses 4,70,72,661.45 3,42,32,559.65 

 4,87,99,304.1  

Total 8 3,49,76,153.39 

31. Depreciation and amortization expense 
  

Depreciation on Property Plant & Equipment 17,46,539.00 31,66,669.00 
Amortisation of Investment Property 10,82,531.00 14,24,967.00 
Total 28,29,070.00 45,91,636.00 

32. Other Expenses 
  

Trading & Job / Servicing Expenses 
Stores, Spares and Tools Consumed. 

 
7,72,312.44 

 
7,18,649.82 

Job work and other charges 1,44,57,495.62 1,35,16,201.62 
Repairs and Maintenance 

a)  To Machinery 2,99,749.00 7,71,665.69 
b)  To Building 15,00,351.19 7,82,054.56 

Insurance Expenses 2,25,331.60 1,91,554.00 
 1,72,55,239.8  

Total 5 1,59,80,125.69 

Establishment and Selling Exp. 
Rent 

 
12,00,471.80 

 
14,26,383.88 

Electricity & Water 22,75,048.68 17,91,703.00 
Telephone, telex and postage 16,43,136.19 15,09,064.70 
Travelling and conveyance expenses 19,47,358.82 15,11,869.40 
Legal, consultancy, retainership, professional 
arbitration expenses 17,88,631.39 47,39,233.96 
General repairs 9,65,319.68 6,59,824.54 
Vehicle running and maintenance 13,36,276.61 16,74,057.09 
Miscellaneous expenses 34,53,507.11 30,84,111.65 
Payment To Auditors 1,25,000.00 1,25,000.00 
Advertisement 33,440.00 35,200.00 
Sales Promotion 2,85,173.00 6,01,292.14 
Claims / rebate and discount exp. 59,99,058.44 62,68,329.22 
Sales Commission  30,000.00 
Corporate Guarantee charges**  25,00,000.00 

 2,10,52,421.7  

 2 2,59,56,069.58 
   

 3,83,07,661.5  

 7 4,19,36,195.27 
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*including listing fees to NSE Rs. 3.00 Lacs 
**Related parties (refer note : 37 ) 

 
Notes to the standalone financial statements 

 
33. Segment Reporting: 

(a) Primary Segment: Business Segment 

Based on the guiding principles given in “Ind Accounting Standard –108 Operating Segment” notified 
under Companies (Accounting standard) Rules 2006, the Company’s operating business are organized 
and managed separately according to the nature of the product of Trading and services provided. The two 
identified reportable segments. One is automobile segment in which trading of vehicles and servicing 
(including Heavy Commercial Vehicle and Three Wheeler segment (discontinued from 1st Quarter)) and 
other which includes retail outlet of Petroleum Products (BPCL). 

Secondary Segment: Geographical segment: 
The analysis of Geographical segment is based on the geographical location i.e. domestic and overseas 
markets of the customers. 

Secondary Segment Reporting (By Geographical segment) 
The following is the distribution of the company`s revenue from operation (net) by Geographical markets, 
regardless of where the goods were produced: 

(Rs. In Lacs) 
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 

Revenue from domestic Market 38730.46 27795.47 

Revenue from Overseas Market 0.00 0.00 

Total 38730.46 27795.47 
 

Geographical segment wise receivables: 
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 
Receivable of domestic Market 2941.93 1884.02 
Receivables of Overseas Market 0.00 0.00 
Total 2941.93 1884.02 

 
Geographical segment wise Property, Plant & Equipment: 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 
In India 221.20 237.53 
Outside India 0.00 0.00 
Total 221.20 237.53 

 
a) Segment accounting polices : 

In addition to the significant accounting policies applicable to the business segment as set in note 2, the 
accounting policies in relation to segment accounting are as under: 

i) Segment revenue & expenses : 
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Joint revenue and expenses of segments are allocated amongst them on a reasonable basis. All other 
segment revenue and expenses are directly attributable to the segments. 

ii) Segment assets and liabilities: 
Segment assets include all operating assets used by a segment and consist principally of operating cash, 
receivables, inventories and fixed assets, net of allowance and provisions, which are reported as direct off 
sets in the balance sheet. Segment Liabilities include all operating Liabilities and consist principally of 
trade payables & accrued liabilities. Segment assets and liabilities do not include deferred income taxes 
except in the segment of the Commercial Vehicle. While most of the assets/liabilities can be directly 
attributed to individual segments, the carrying amount of certain assets /liabilities pertaining to two more 
segments are allocated to the segments on a reasonable basis. 

iii) Inter segment sales : 
Inter segment sales between operating segments are accounted for at market price. The main segment is 
Ganganagar Motors (A segment of Commercials Vehicles) and funds provided by the Ganganagar Motors 
to segment division and interest on such balances are not charged. 

Information about business segments : 
for the year ending as on 31st March 2025 

(Rs. In lacs) 
Particulars Automobile Others  Total 

 Curr. Prev. Curr. Prev. Curr. Prev. 
 Year Year Year Year Year Year 

Segment Revenue :       

External sales/income 
(Net) 

 
38071.29 

27070.5 
3 

 
659.17 

 
724.94 

 
38730.46 

 
27795.47 

Other receipt 152.96 125.69 0.00 2.00 152.96 127.69 
 

Total Revenue 
 

38224.25 
27196.2 

2 
 

659.17 
 
726.94 

 
38883.42 

27923.1 
6 

Segment Results :       

Segments results 817.40 711.36 6.61 -9.51 824.01 701.85 
Operation profit before 
Interest 

 
817.40 

 
711.36 

 
6.61 

 
-9.51 

 
824.01 

 
701.85 

Financial exp. (487.83) (374.94) (0.16) (0.16) (487.99) (374.76) 
Exceptional Item 0.00 0.00   0.00 0.00 
Income tax 
current/Earlier Year 

 
(101.39) 

 
(90.36) 

 
0.00 

 
0.00 

 
(101.39) 

 
(90.36) 

Deferred tax Liability (1.37) (0.41) 0.00 0.00 (1.37) (0.41) 
OCI (Net) 7.37 -15.98 0.00 0.00 7.37 -15.98 
Net Profit 234.18 246.02 6.45 -9.69 240.63 236.33 
Other Information :       

Segment Assets 7521.07 4623.34 169.98 154.01 7691.05 4777.35 

Total Assets 7521.07 4623.34 169.98 154.01 7691.05 4777.35 
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Segment Liabilities :       

Share Capital 100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 
Reserve & Surplus 1745.24 1511.05 149.06 142.62 1894.30 1653.67 

Secured & Unsecured 
Loan (including current 
maturity) 

 

 
5186.10 

 

 
2348.96 

 

 
0.00 

 

 
0.00 

 

 
5186.10 

 

 
2348.96 

Segment liabilities 510.21 663.23 0.44 11.39 510.65 674.62 

Total Equity/Liabilities 7541.55 4621.34 149.50 154.01 7691.05 4777.25 
Capital Expenditure 1.14 11.65 0.00 0.00 1.14 11.65 

Depreciation 28.29 45.92 0.00 0.00 28.29 45.92 
 
 

34. Retirement and other employee benefits: 

(a) Defined contribution plans 
 

The Company operates defined contribution retirement benefit plan for all qualifying employees. 
Company directly contribute to the provident fund and having no obligation for further contribution: 

(Rs. In Lacs) 
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 
Provident Fund 24.27 24.47 
Contribution Employee State Insurance 5.04 5.50 

 
(b) Defined Benefit Plans 

 
Gratuity 
Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees of the company on retirement, death, permanent disablement 
and resignation in terms of the provision of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The benefits would be paid 
at the time of separation. 

 
The employees’ gratuity fund defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation is determined based 
on actuarial valuation using by projected unit credit method in case of gratuity 
 Particulars Gratuity (Funded) 
  2024-25 2023-24 

a Changes in present value of defined benefit obligations   

 Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of 
the Year 

153.70 120.73 

 Current Service Cost 16.87 14.27 
 Interest Cost 11.08 9.05 
 Actuarial changes arising from change in financial assumptions (7.07) (18.56) 
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 Actuarial changes arising from change in experience 

adjustments 
0.00 0.00 

 Benefits paid 0.00 8.91 
 Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the Year 

(Total) 
174.59 153.70 

b Changes in fair value of Plan Assets:   

 Fair value of Plan Assets as at beginning of the Year 119.19 120.01 
 Interest Income 8.59 9.00 
 Employer Contribution 1.97 1.89 
 Actuarial changes arising from change in experience 

adjustments 
(1.17) (2.79) 

 Return on plan assets excluding interest income ( Fund 
Management Charges) 

  

 Benefits paid 0.00 -8.91 
 Fair value of plan Assets as at end of the Year 128.58 119.19 

 
 Particulars Gratuity (Funded) 
  2024-25 2023-24 

c Net asset / (liability) recognised in the balance sheet   

 Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the Year 174.58 153.71 
 Fair value of plan Assets as at end of the Year 128.58 119.19 
 Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet   

 Net (liability) / assets - Current (18.51) (16.54) 
 Net (liability) / assets - Non - current (27.50) (17.98) 

d Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss for 
the year 

  

 Current Service Cost 16.87 14.27 
 Interest Cost on benefit obligation includes Expected return on 

plan assets (net) 
2.49 0.05 

    

 Total expenses 19.36 14.32 
 
 

 Particulars Gratuity (Funded) 
  2024-25 2023-24 

e Recognized in other comprehensive income for the year   

 Actuarial changes arising from change in financial assumptions 9.09 (5.82) 
 Actuarial changes arising from change in experience 

adjustments 
(16.16) (15.54) 

 Return on plan assets excluding interest income 1.17  

 Recognized in other comprehensive income (5.89) (21.36) 
 

 Particulars Gratuity (Funded) 
  2024-25 2023-24 
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1 Principal Actuarial Assumptions used as at the Balance 

Sheet date : 
  

 Discount Rate 6.80% 7.21% 
 Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets 6.80% 7.21% 
 Salary Escalation Rate 7.00% 7.00% 
 Mortality Rate 3% at 

younger ages 
reducing to 
1% at older 

ages 

3% at 
younger ages 

reducing to 
1% at older 

ages 
 

The assumption of future salary increase takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other 
relevant factors such as supply and demand in employment market. The above information is certified by 
the Actuary. 

A. Actuarial Risk: It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the 
following reasons: 

 
Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary escalation will 
result into an increase in Obligation at a rate that is higher than expected. 

Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate 
assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. The impact of this will depend 
on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation date. 

 
B. Investment Risk: For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets 
certified by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, the 
present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in wide fluctuations 
in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in the discount rate during the inter- 
valuation period. 

 
C. Liquidity Risk: Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, 
accumulate significant level of benefits. If some of such employees resign/retire from the company there 
can be strain on the cashflows. 

 
D. Market Risk: Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of 
the financial markets. One actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the discount rate. The discount 
rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads to decrease in Defined Benefit 
Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption depends on the yields on the 
corporate/government bonds and hence the valuation of liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields 
as at the valuation date. 

 
E. Legislative Risk: Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan 
assets due to change in the legislation/regulation. The government may amend the Payment of Gratuity 
Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will directly affect the 
present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same will have to be recognized immediately in 
the year when any such amendment is effective. 
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35. Financial instruments 

 
35.1 Fair Valuation Techniques 

 
The Company maintains policies and procedures to value financial assets or financial liabilities using the best and 
most relevant data available. The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that 
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. 

 
Rs. In lacs 

 
Particulars 

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 
Carrying 

values 
 

Fair value 
Carrying 

values 
 

Fair value 
Financial assets     

Measured at Amortised cost     

Loans (Non-Current) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Loans (Current) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Other financial assets(Non-current) 0.00 0.00 9.87 9.87 
Trade receivables 2941.53 2941.53 1884.02 1884.02 
Cash and cash equivalents 24.44 24.44 102.03 102.03 
Bank balances other than cash and cash 
equivalents 3.61 3.61 3.45 3.45 
Non-current Investments (Equity Shares - 
others, subsidiary and associates and NSC) 

205.53 205.53 205.53 205.53 

Other Financial Assets (Current) 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 
Total financial assets at amortised cost (A) 3175.12 3175.12 2204.91 2204.91 

     

Financial assets     

Measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income 

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 

Financial assets N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 
Measured at fair value through profit and 
loss 

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 

Total financial assets at fair value through 
profit and loss (C ) 

    

Total financial assets (A+B+C) 3175.12 3175.12 2204.91 2204.91 
     

Financial Liabilities     

Measured at amortised cost     

Long term Borrowings 28.53 28.53 31.35 31.35 
Short term Borrowings* 5157.57 5157.57 2317.61 2317.61 
Trade Payables 153.14 153.14 362.36 362.36 
Other financial liabilities (Non-Current)     

Other financial liabilities (Current) 42.85 42.85 32.17 32.17 
Total financial Liabilities at amortised cost 5382.09 5382.09 2743.49 2743.49 

* Including Current Maturity of Long Term Debt. 
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The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values: 
1) Fair value of cash and deposits, other bank balances, trade receivables, loans, trade payables, and other 
financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of 
these instruments. 
2) Long-term fixed-rate and variable-rate receivables / borrowings are evaluated by the Company based on 
parameters such as interest rates, specific country risk factors, credit risk and other risk characteristics. Fair value 
of variable interest rate borrowings approximates their carrying values. For fixed interest rate borrowing fair 
value is determined by using the discounted cash flow (DCF) method using discount rate that reflects the issuer's 
borrowings rate. Risk of non-performance for the company is considered to be insignificant in valuation. 

 
Fair Value Hierarchy 

 

Particulars 
As at 31st 

March 2025 
As at 31st 

March 2024 Level 
Valuation techniques and key 
inputs 

Long term Borrowings*  

Carrying value 28.53 31.35 2 
Discounted cash flow – 
observable future cash flows 
are based on terms 
discounted  at  a  rate  that 
reflects market risks. 

 
 

Fair value 

 
 

28.53 

 
 

31.35 

 
 

2 
* not including current maturity 

 
There is no instruments like preference shares measured at fair value using level iii technique so no 
sensitivity analysis and reconciliation are not given. 

 
35.2 Financial Risk Management 

 
The Company’s activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks from its operations. The key financial risks 
include market risk (including interest rate risk etc.), credit risk and liquidity risk. The company’s overall risk 
management policy seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on company’s financial performance. 

(A) Market Risk: Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flow of financial instruments will 
fluctuate because of change in market prices. Market risk comprises mainly of interest rate risk. 

 
(a) Interest rate risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Any change in the interest rates environment may 
impact future rates of borrowing. The company mitigates this risk by regularly assessing the market scenario, 
finding appropriate financial instruments, interest rate negotiation with the lenders for ensuring the cost effective 
method of financing. 

 
(b) Interest Rate Sensitivity: The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonable possible change in 
interest rate on financial assets affected. With all other variable held constant, the company’s profit before tax is 
affected through the impact on finance cost with respect to our borrowing as follows: 

A change in 25 basis points in interest rates would have following impact on profit after tax calculated on the 
outstanding amount of long term and short term borrowings at the year end. 

Rs. In Lakhs 
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Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024 
Total Borrowings (Non-Current and 
Current) 

5186.10 5186.10 

Change in basis points +25 +25 
Effect on Profit after Tax 12.96 5.87 
Change in basis points -25 -25 
Effect on Profit after Tax -12.96 -5.87 

 
(c) Price Risk: The Company don’t have exposure to securities price risk. 

 
(d) Commodity price risk: The Company is affected by the price volatility of certain commodities. Its operating 
activities require the purchase of trading goods therefore, requires a continuous supply of certain raw materials. 
To mitigate the commodity price risk, the Company has an approved supplier base to get competitive prices for 
the commodities and to assess the market to manage the cost without any comprise on quality. 

(B) Credit Risk: 
Credit risk arises from the possibility that counter party may not be able to settle their obligation as agreed. Credit 
risk primarily arises from financial assets such as trade receivables, other balance with banks, loans and other 
receivables. 

Trade Receivables: - The maximum exposure to credit risk is primarily from trade receivables. The company 
periodically assesses the credit quality of counter parties, taking into the financial condition, current economic 
trends, past experiences and other factors. 

 
The company has a well-defined sale policy to minimize its risk or credit defaults. Outstanding receivables are 
regularly monitored and assessed. Impairment analysis is performed based on historical data at each reporting 
date on an individual basis. 

 
Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as customer failing to 
engage in a repayment plan with the company. 

 
Ageing of the trade receivable is given at Note 13. 

(C) Liquidity Risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk, where the company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with 
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The company’s approach to 
ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. 

 
The table below summarizes the maturity profile of company’s financial assets and liabilities based on contractual 
undiscounted payments. 

 
Rs. In lacs 

Particulars 
31.03.2025 

<1 year 1-5year >5year Total 
Financial assets     

Non-current Investments   205.53 205.53 
Loans (Non-current)    0.00 
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Loans (current)    0.00 
Trade receivables 2879.01 62.51 0.00 2941.52 
Cash and cash equivalents 24.44 0.00 0.00 24.44 
Bank balances other than cash and cash 
equivalents 3.62 0.00 0.00 3.62 
Other financial assets (Non-current) 0.00 0.00 0.00 9.87 
Other financial assets (current) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Total financial assets  

2907.07 
 

62.51 
 

205.53 
 

3184.98 
Financial Liabilities     

Long term Borrowings 0.00 28.53 0.00 28.53 
Short term Borrowings 5157.57 0.00 0.00 5157.57 
Trade Payables 153.14 0.00 0.00 153.14 
Other financial liabilities (Non-Current) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Other financial liabilities (Current) 42.86 0.00 0.00 42.86 
Total financial Liabilities 5353.56 28.53 0.00 5382.10 

 
Rs. In lacs 

Particulars 
31.03.2024 

<1 year 1-5year >5year Total 
Financial assets     

Non-current Investments   205.53 205.53 
Loans (Non-current)    0.00 
Loans (current)    0.00 
Trade receivables 1843.10 40.92 0.00 1884.02 
Cash and cash equivalents 102.03 0.00 0.00 47.71 
Bank balances other than cash and cash 
equivalents 3.45 0.00 0.00 3.15 
Other financial assets (Non-Current) 0.00 9.87 0.00 9.87 
Other financial assets (Current) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Total financial assets 1948.58 50.79 205.53 2204.90 
Financial Liabilities     

Long term Borrowings 0.00 31.35 0.00 31.35 
Short term Borrowings 2317.61 0.00 0.00 2317.61 
Trade Payables 362.36 0.00 0.00 362.36 
Other financial liabilities (Non-Current) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Other financial liabilities (Current) 32.17 0.00 0.00 32.17 
Total financial Liabilities 2712.14 31.35 0.00 2743.49 

 
Collateral 
The Company has mortgaged/ hypothecated of its Intangible assets, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents 
(details as specified in note no. 19 and 20) in order to fulfill certain collateral requirements for the banking/ Other 
Financial Institutions (NBFC) facilities extended to the Company. There is obligation to return the securities to 
the Company once these banking facilities are surrendered. 

(D) Capital risk management 
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The Company’s policy is to maintain an adequate capital base so as to maintain creditor and market confidence 
and to sustain future development. Capital includes issued capital, share premium and all other equity reserves 
attributable to equity holders. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maintain an 
optimal structure so as to maximize the shareholder’s value. In order to strengthen the capital base, the company 
may use appropriate means to enhance or reduce capital, as the case may be. 

 
The Company is not subject to any external imposed capital requirement. The company monitors capital using a 
gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital. Net Debt is calculated as borrowings less cash and cash 
equivalents. 

 
 

(Rs. In Lacs) 

Particulars 
As at 31st 

March 2025 
As at 31st 

March 2024 
Long term borrowings 28.53 31.35 

Short term borrowings 5157.57 2317.61 

Total 5186.10 2348.96 

Less: cash and cash equivalent 24.44 102.03 

 
Less: bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent 

 
3.61 

 
3.45 

Net debt 5396.75 2243.48 

Total equity 1994.30 1751.75 
Gearing ratio 2.71 1.28 

Note 1. Equity includes all reserves of the company that are managed as capital. 
2. Debt is defined as long and short term borrowings. 

 
36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS 

(RS. IN LACS) 
 

S. No. Particulars As at 
31.03.2025 

As at 
31.03.2024 

i) Other Claims against the Company not acknowledged a debt 
relating to supplies and service matters 

37.82 68.67 

ii) 
Show cause/demand/notices by excise deptt., service tax, 
income tax authorities being disputed by the company. (net 
demand) 

6.50 6.50 

iii)  
Capital commitment (Shop purchased from JDA 
pending for registration ) 

16.98  
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Based on favorable decisions in similar cases, legal opinion taken by the company., discussions with the 
solicitors, etc., the company believes that there is fair chance of decisions in its favors in respect of all the 
items listed in (ii) above and hence no provisions is considered necessary against the same. 

Bank Guarantee given to related party 
 

Name of Party Amount (Rs. In Lacs) 

Ganganagar Vehicles Pvt. Ltd. 5100.00 

Ganganagar Vehicles Pvt. Ltd. 4909.54 

 

 
37. Related Party disclosure under Accounting Standard IND AS-24 “Related party disclosures” notified 
under Companies (Accounting standard) Rules 2006. 

 
During the year, the company entered into transactions with the related parties. Those transactions along with 
related balance as at 31st March 2025 and for the year ended are presented below. 

List of related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year along with nature and volume of 
transactions are summarized as follows: List of related parties and relationship: 

 
 

Name of the related 
party 

Relationship % of holding Incorporated in 

Enterprises controlled 
or are under 
same management with 
reporting 
enterprise 

   

Ganganagar Vehicles 
Priavte 
Limited 

 19%  

Ganganagar 
Automobiles Private 
Limited 

 12.50%  

Argent Leasing and 
Finance 
Limited 

   

Kota Trucks Private 
Limited 

   

GD Automobiles LLP    

Key Management 
personnel 

   

Shankar Lal Agarwal Managing Director   

Sourabh Agarwal Whole Time Director   
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Manushree Agarwal Director   

Surajan Upadhay Company Secretary   

Relatives of Key 
management 
persons 

   

Smt. Mala Agarwal    

 
 

b) Transactions with related parties: (Rs. In Lacs) 
S. 
N. 

Name Nature of Transaction 2024-25 2023-24 

1 
Ganganagar Vehicles 
Private Limited 

Opening Balance Dr. 0.00 2.22 
Shares Opening Balance 180.50 180.50 
Transaction   

Purchase 521.13 322.78 
Sale 370.63 108.85 
Guarantee fees services receipt 74.10 74.10 
Net payment/Adjustment Cr. 150.50 216.15 
Investment Sale 0 0 
Advance/loan received 5481.45 6302.71 
Advance repaid 5525.91 6302.71 
Interest paid 49.40  

TDS Deducted 4.93  

Outstanding at the year end 87.43  

Shares closing Balance 180.50 180.50 
Creditor/(Debtor) 0.00 0.00 

   

2 
Ganganagar Automobile 
Private Limited 

Opening Balance Dr. 0.00 0.00 
Shares Opening Balance 25.00 25.00 
Loan / advance given 776.76  

Interest income 9.75  

Loan received 776.76  

closing Balance (Shares ) 25.00 25.00 
closing Balance (Loans) 9.75 25.00 

   

3 
Argent Leasing & Finance 
Ltd.(NBFC) 

Opening Balance Cr. 26.39 24.42 
Payment 0.00 0.00 
Interest Paid 2.38 2.20 
TDS Deducted 0.24 0.22 
Outstanding Balance(Cr.) 28.53 26.39 

   

4 
M/s Kota Trucks Pvt. Ltd. 

Opening Balance(Dr.) 0.00 0.91 
Opening Balance Unsecured loan 0.00 0.00 
Transaction During the year   
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 Rent (Received) excluding GST 19.80 19.80 

Purchases 70.92 100.71 

Sales 98.83 129.54 
Guarantee fees services receipt 19.90 19.90 
Net Payment 27.91 29.74 
Loan Received 726.50 585.00 
Loan Repayment 731.67 585.00 
Interest Paid 5.75 0.00 
TDs Deducted 0.57 0.00 
Outstanding at the year end (Dr.) 6.02 0.00 
Unsecured Loan 0.00 0.00 

   

 GD Automobiles LLP Opening Balance (Cr.) 0.00 0.00 
  Rent 2.83 2.83 
  Purchase 3.86 10.33 
  Reimbursement of exp. 19.92  

  Sale 0.46 26.63 
  Loan given 1110.24 0.00 
  Loan received 628.75 0.00 
  Interest paid 17.93 0.00 
  TDS 1.79 0.00 
     

  Outstanding at year end 19.35 0.00 
  Loan Advance (Dr.) 497.63  

     

5 Shankar Lal Agarwal Opening Balance (Cr.) 0.00 0.00 
Director Remuneration 6.00 6.00 

     

  Outstanding at the year end 0.00 0.00 
     

6 Sourabh Agarwal Opening Balance (Cr.) 0.00 0.00 
Opening Loan A/c 0.00 42.37 
Rent Paid (without GST) 6.72 7.08 
Director Remuneration 12.00 12.00 
Amount Received 0.00 0.00 
Interest Paid (less TDS) 0.00 0.00 
Amount Paid (Loan Repayment) 0.00 42.37 
Loan account cr. Balance 0.00 0.00 

     

7 Manushree Agarwal Director Remuneration 24.00 24.00 
Loan Received 0.00 0.00 
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  Loan Repayment 0.00 0.00 
     

8 Suranjan upadhyay 
(CS) 

Opening 0.30 0.30 
Salary Paid 3.60 3.60 
Outstanding at the year end 0.30 0.30 

(V)Relatives to the Key Management:   

1 Smt. Mala Agarwal Opening 0.00 0.00 
Opening Balance (Sec. Deposit) 0.00 0.00 
Rent during the year 0.60 0.60 
Amount Paid 0.60 0.60 

   

 
Note: The transaction relating to reimbursement of actual expenses to/from related parties have not 
been considered above below. 

38. Details of dues to Micro Small and medium enterprises as per MSMED Act. 2006 as identified by the 
company. 

(Rs. In lacs) 
 

Particulars 2025 2024 

The principal amount due and remaining unpaid to any supplier 
as at the end of each accounting year 

1.64 49.26 

The interest due an unpaid principal amount remaining as at the 
end of the each accounting year 

 - 

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of 
the Micro Small and medium enterprises Development Act, 2006 
along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier 
beyond the appointed day during each accounting year. 

- - 

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in 
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed 
day during the year) But without adding the interest specified 
under Micro Small and medium enterprises Development Act, 
2006 

- - 

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end 
of each accounting year, and 

- - 

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even 
in the succeeding years , until such date when the interest dues as 
above are actually paid to the Small Enterprises for the purpose 
of disallowance as a deductible expenditure U/s. 23 of the Micro 
Small and medium enterprises Development Act, 2006 

- - 
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39. Earning per Shares (E.P.S.) 
 

S. No. Particulars 2025 2024 
i) Calculation of weighted average number of face 

value of equity shares of Rs. 10 each 
  

 No. of shares at the beginning of the year. 1000000 1000000 
 Total equity shares outstanding at the end of the 

year 
1000000 1000000 

 Weighted average no of equity shares outstanding 
during the year. 

1000000 1000000 

ii) Net Profit after Tax available for equity shares 
holders (Rs.) 

23325379 23633246 

iii) Basic and diluted earning per shares 
( Rs.) 

23.33 23.63 

iv) Nominal value of equity shares (Rs. ) 10 10 
 
 

40. Loans and advances include following amounts: 
(Amount in Lakhs) 

Name of The Party Amount outstanding as at 
year end 

Maximum Amount outstanding 
during the year 

2025 2024 2025 2024 
Ganganagar Vehicles Private Ltd. 0.00 0.00 836.72 1715.00 

Ganganagar Automobiles Pvt Ltd 9.76  526.76  

Ganganagar Vaahan Udhog Pvt Ltd 1.67  74.56  

GD Automobile LLP 497.67  540.00  

 
41. The dues outstanding in respect of Income Tax and VAT on account of disputes are as under: 

 
Name of the 
statute 

Nature of dues Demand (Rs. 
In Lakhs) 

Amount paid 
against 
demand (Rs. 
In Lakhs) 

Period to 
which the 
amount 
relates 

Forum where 
dispute is 
pending 

Income Tax Act, 
1961 

Income tax 5.73 0 FY 2019-20 Pending 
demand 

Income Tax Act, 
1961 

Income tax 3.05 0 FY 2009-10 Pending 
demand 

Income Tax Act, 
1961 

Income tax 0.11 0 FY 2011-12 Pending 
demand 
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44. No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any 
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries). 
The Company has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the 
Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on 
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries.” 

 
45. The company has called for complete information from all the vendors regarding their status as Small 
scale / Micro industrial undertaking. Based on information received regarding the status of the vendors 
are prepaid the financial statements. 

46. Other Additional information related to financial statements. 
 

a. i. The details of Trading goods opening, purchases, sales and closing stock are given as under. 
 

Particulars 2025 2024 
 Qty/No/Ltr Amt (Rs.) Qty/No/Ltr Amt (Rs.) 

Opening Stock     

Comm. Vehicle 57 1777.92 66 1838.49 
MS 12998 13.29 11974 12.36 
HSD 39752 34.49 32532 29.42 

     

Purchases     

Comm. Vehicle 1167 36144.61 722 0.00 
MS 128877 129.87 107058 128.67 
HSD 588309 509.84 2132411 588.60 

     

Sales     

Comm. Vehicle 1126 35629.64 731 2454.01 
MS 128196 111.04 106061 111.04 
HSD 589676 524.46 2122918 613.43 

     

Closing Stock     

Comm. Vehicle 98 2755.77 57 1777.92 
MS 13679 13.71 12998 13.29 
HSD 38385 33.36 39752 34.49 

     

Shortage     

MS 487  1766  

HSD 674  2134  

 
b. (Rs. in Lacs) 

S. No. Particulars 2025 2024 
I C.I.F. Value of Imports 0 0 



 

 

KALYANI COMMERCIALS LIMITED 
Registered office: BG-223, Sanjay Gandhi Transport Nagar, GT Karnal Road, New Delhi-110042 
CIN L45300DL1985PLC021453 
E-mail: kalyanicommercialslimited@gmail.com 
Website: www.kalyanicommercialsltd.com 
Ph.: 011- 43063223, 011-47060223  

 

 
 

 
 Raw Material 0 0 
 Stores & Spares 0 0 
 Machinery 0 0 

ii) EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY (PAID OR 
PROVIDED) INCLUDING OVERSEAS BRANCHES 

0 0 

iii) Income in Foreign Currency 0 0 
iv) Net dividend remitted in foreign currency/foreign 

intuitional investors 
0 0 

 No. of NRI share holders 0 0 
 No of shares held by them 0 0 
 Dividend paid (Rs. In lacs) 0 0 
 Year to which dividend relates NA NA 

 
 

iv) VALUE OF RAW MATERIAL & STORES AND COMPONENTS CONSUMED: Not applicable since the company 
is in business of trading and service. 

 
Additional Regulatory Information 

c. No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company under the Benami Transactions 
(Prohibitions) Act, 1988, 

d. Borrowing: 

The Company has borrowed from banks or financial institutions (see note 20) on the basis of security of current 
assets and also filed quarterly returns or statements of current assets of by the Company with banks or financial 
institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts 

 
e. Willful Defaulter: * 

 
The company is not a willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender: 

 
* “willful defaulter” here means a person or an issuer who or which is categorized as a willful defaulter by any 
bank or financial institution (as defined under the Act) or consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelines 
on willful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India. 

 
f. Relationship with Struck off Companies: 

 
The company has not any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 
or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956, 

 
g. Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies: 

 
Charges were registered with Registrar of Company within the statutory period 

 
Satisfaction of following charges are still in the process and have not been satisfied with ROC: 
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Date of creation of charge/ Date 
of Modification 

Name of Financial Institutions Amount (Rs. In Lacs) 

29-12-2015 HDFC Bank 21.50 
30-05-2012 HDFC Bank 1200.00 

 
2.Charges To be created with the Registrar of Companies. 

Date of creation of 

charge/Date of 

Modification 

Name of Financial 

Institution 

Amount (Rs. in Lacs) Remarks 

19-03-2021 Tata Motor Finance 
 

Solutions Ltd. 

56.00  

 
 
 

h. Compliance with number of layers of companies: the company or group does not have any layers of the 
companies, hence the clause is not applicable to the Company. 

 
i. Disclosure of Ratios: For calculation of ratios, guidelines issued by the ICAI are considered 

 
 

 
Sr. No. 

 

 
Ratio 

 

 
Numerator 

 
Denomina 

tor 

 

 
2025 

 

 
2024 

 
% of 
Variance 

 
Reason for 
Variance 

 
1 

Current 
Ratio 

Total 
Current 
Assets 

Total 
Current 
Libility 

 
1.27 

 
1.42 

 
-10.40% 

 

 
 
 
 

2 

 

 
Debt Equity 

Ratio 

 
 

Debt 
consisting of 
borrowings 

 

 
Total 

Equity 

 
 
 
 

2.60 

 
 
 
 

1.34 

 
 
 
 

94.14% 

Due to 
higher 

availment of 
limits at the 
end of year. 

 
 
 

3 

 
Debt Service 

Coverage 
Ratio 

Net Profit 
after tax + 
interest + 

depreciation 

principal 
repayment 

+ total 
Interest 

 
 
 

1.54 

 
 
 

1.72 

 
 
 

-10.84% 

 

 
 

 
4 

 

 
Return on 

Equity Ratio 

Profit for the 
year less 

Preference 
dividend (if 

any) 

 

 
Average 
equity 

 
 

 
12.45% 

 
 

 
17.19% 

 
 

 
-27.58% 

 

 
 

 
5 

 
Inventory 
turnover 

ratio 

COGS = 
Opening 

Inventory + 
Purchase + 

Direct 

Average 
Inventory 

= (Opening 
Inventory 
+ Closing 

 
 

 
14.46 

 
 

 
12.73 

 
 

 
13.61% 
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  Expense - 

Closing 
Inventory 

Inventory) 
/2 

    

 
 
 
 
 

6 

 
Trade 

Receivable 
Turnover 

Ratio 

 
 
 

Revenue 
from 

operation 

 
 
 

Average 
trade 

receivable 

 
 
 
 
 

16.05 

 
 
 
 
 

7.99 

 
 
 
 
 

100.78% 

Due to 
credit 
facility 
given 

to 
coustomer 

 
 
 
 

 
7 

 

 
Trade 

Payable 
Turnover 

Ratio 

Cost of 
Purchase = 

Opening 
Inventory+ 
purchases- 

Closing 
Inventory 

 
 

 
Average 

trade 
payable 

 
 
 
 

 
143.83 

 
 
 
 

 
15.34 

 
 
 
 

 
837.73% 

Due to 
higher 

availment of 
limits and 

decrease in 
creditors in 
current year 

 
8 

Net Capital 
Turnover 

Ratio 

Revenue 
from 

operations 
Working 
Capital 

 
25.33 

 
22.33 

 
13.45% 

 

 
 
 

9 

 
Net Profit 

Ratio 

 
Profit for the 

year 

 
Revenue 

from 
Operations 

 
 
 

0.60% 

 
 
 

0.85% 

 
 
 

-29.17% 

Due to 
increase in 

financial 
cost 

 
 

 
10 

 
Return on 

Capital 
Employed 

 
Profit before 

tax and 
finance cost 

CE = Net 
Worth + 
Deferred 

Tax 
Liability 

 
 

 
41.38% 

 
 

 
38.66% 

 
 

 
7.04% 

 

 
 

 
11 

 

 
Return on 

Investment 

Income 
Generated 

from 
Investment 

Funds 

 
Average 

Investmen 
t 

 
 

 
0.00 

 
 

 
0.00 

  

 
j. No scheme of Arrangements has been approved by the competent Authority in terms of section 230 to 
237 of the Companies Act, 2013, therefore this clause is not applicable to company. 

k. The company has not surrendered or disclosed any income during the year. Accordingly, this clause is 
not applicable to company. 

l. Corporate social Responsibility activities are not applicable to the company. Accordingly, this clause is not 
applicable to company. 

m. The company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial 
year. Therefore, this clause is not applicable to company. 
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47. Figures for previous year have been re-arranged/regrouped wherever necessary to make them comparable. 

 
For K. Prasad & Company. 
Firm`s Registration No. 002755N 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

 
CA Manmohan Mahipal 
(Partner) 
M.No 507113 
Place: Kota 
Date: 29.05.2025 
UDIN: 25507113BMNYRM1032 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
KALYANI COMMERCIALS LTD 

 
Shankar Lal Agarwal Sourabh Agarwal 
Managing Director Whole Time Director &CFO 
DIN: 01341113 DIN: 02168346 

 
Suranjan Upadhyay 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
M. No. A16537 
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